CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Regular Board Meeting
3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923

January 28, 2021
Thursday
9:00AM
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Carmel Area Wastewater District
P.O. Box 221428 Carmel California 93922 ❖ (831) 624-1248 ❖ FAX (831) 624-0811

Board of Directors
Barbara Buikema
General Manager
Ed Waggoner
Operations Superintendent
Robert R. Wellington
Legal Counsel

Gregory D'Ambrosio
Michael K. Rachel
Robert Siegfried
Charlotte F. Townsend
Ken White

COVID-19 Public Meeting Procedures
As per the Governor’s Executive Order #N-29-20 (March 17, 2020) the following will
be in effect until rescinded.
•

CAWD will not make a physical location available from which members of the
public may observe and offer public comment.

•

All CAWD public meetings shall take place via teleconferencing and shall be
posted on the District website (www.cawd.org) and allow members of the public
to attend and address the meeting electronically.

•

The District will give advance notice of all teleconference meeting as prescribed
by the Brown Act

•

The public may listen to the meeting by logging on to the District website and
clicking on the Virtual Webinar.

•

Public comment may be submitted 24 hours prior to the meeting by clicking on
the “Public Comment Form” listed directly beneath the Virtual Webinar on our
website. If received within 24 hours of the meeting we will ensure that a
response is given at the meeting. All participants have access during the meeting
to be recognized and utilize the platform to speak. Please use the virtual "raised
hand" to be acknowledged.

•

The District is requesting that the public submit comments at least 24 hours in
advance of the scheduled meeting to enable staff to post all comment on the
District web site. Any comment received after this time will be posted after the
Board meeting.

•

The teleconference Board meeting will require that all voting is done by roll call

•

The teleconference Board meeting will require that speakers identify themselves
prior to addressing other attendees in order to facilitate the flow of the meeting
and minimize confusion.

•

The District advises that the public refer to our website periodically for updates
regarding the District and Board activity.
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES

Thursday, 9:00 a.m., December 10, 2020

Teleconference Webinar
(See California Executive Order N-29-20 during Covid-19 Pandemic)

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - The meeting was called to order at 9:05 a.m.

Present: Directors: Greg D’ Ambrosio, Robert Siegfried, Charlotte Townsend, Michael Rachel, and
President Ken White
Absent: None
A quorum was present.
Others:

1.

Via Zoom
Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD)
Rachél Lather, District Engineer, CAWD
Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD
Ed Waggoner, Plant Superintendent, CAWD
Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent, CAWD
Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent, CAWD
Domine Barringer, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD
Kristina Pacheco, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD
Rob Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD Legal Counsel
Dick Gebhart, Director, Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD)
Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD
Karen Ferlito, newly elected City Council member (Carmel-by-the-Sea)
Meghan Rasmussen, Owner of the restaurant Carmel Belle

Public Comments:

Karen Ferlito, City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Council member, gave a brief introduction of
herself and her wish to work with CAWD during her tenure.

2.

Meghan Rasmussen, owner of Carmel Belle, spoke about a letter that she submitted prior
to the Board Meeting regarding item No.27 on the Agenda (COVID-19 Rate Relief
Program). She reiterated support of a rate adjustment for businesses negatively impacted
by the pandemic including her restaurant. If there is anything further she would like to
add she will do so during the item’s discussion later in the meeting.
Agenda Changes:

No Agenda Changes
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CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS

The Consent Agenda consists of routine items for which Board approval can be taken with a single
motion and vote. A Board Member may request that any item be placed on the Regular Agenda for
separate consideration.

Board Action
A motion to receive and approve was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by
Director Rachel. After a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously received and approved the
Meeting Minutes and the following Consent Calendar/Agenda items:

3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Regular Board Meeting Minutes of October 29, 2020
and Pension Committee Meeting Minutes of November 2, 2020
Bank Statement Review by Hayashi Wayland – October 2020
Schedule of Cash Receipts & Disbursements – October 2020

Register of Disbursements – Carmel Area Wastewater District – October 2020

Register of Disbursements – CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project – October 2020
Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules – October 2020

Collection System Superintendent’s Report – (2020 – October, September, August)

10. Safety and Regulatory Compliance Report – October 2020

11. Treatment Facility Operations Report – (2020 – October, September, August)
12. Laboratory/Environmental Compliance Report – October 2020
13. Capital Projects Report/Implementation Plan
14. Project Summaries

15. Plant Operations Report – October 2020

16. Maintenance Projects Report – October 2020

17. Principal Engineer Monthly Report General Engineering – October 2020
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ACTION ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD
Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are acted
upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) Public Comments,
and (4) Board Discussion and Action.

RESOLUTIONS
18. Resolution No. 2020-70; Report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema

Board Action
A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director D’Ambrosio and seconded by
Director Townsend. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution
2020-70, adopting the CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project Audit for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2020.

19. Resolution No. 2020-71; Report by Board Secretary, Domine Barringer

Board Action
A motion to approve the appointment of the Board President and President Pro Tem was
made by Director Townsend and seconded by Director Rachel. Following a Roll Call vote,
the Board unanimously selected Ken White as President and Robert Siegfried as
President Pro Tem of the Board of Carmel Area Wastewater District to a term of one year
beginning December 10,2020.

A motion to maintain status quo for the Secretary and Secretary Pro Tem was made by
President White and seconded by Director Townsend. Following a Roll Call vote, the
Board unanimously selected Domine Barringer as Secretary and Kristina Pacheco as
Secretary Pro Tem of the Board of Carmel Area Wastewater District to a term of one year
beginning December 10,2020.
The above two motions passed Resolution No. 2020-71, unanimously.

20. Resolution No. 2020-72; Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor

Board Action
A motion to approve the resolution was made by President White and seconded by
Director D’Ambrosio. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed
Resolution 2020-72, authorizing the purchase of a chopper pump for the Influent Pump
Station at a cost not to exceed $38,000 including tax to address the high incidence of
clogging and ragging at the pump station.
After extensive discussion, The Board also voted to have a separate article (the Pine Cone
or Monterey Weekly) or mailer (mailed to all district users) created with a focus on the
clogging of the influent pumps and the mainline sewer pipes caused by wipes that are
flushed down toilets and not discarded in waste bins. CAWD and PBCSD will work
together to develop the notification.
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21. Resolution No. 2020-73; Report by Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather

Board Action
A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by
Director Rachel. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution
2020-73, amending the contract amount with Graniterock in an amount not to exceed
$23,139.82 for additional work completed during Wetland Basin Grading for the Hatton
Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project #18-17.

22. Resolution No. 2020-74; Report by the Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather
Resolution No. 2020-75; Report by the Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather

Board Action
A motion to approve both resolutions was made by Director D’Ambrosio and seconded
by Director Townsend. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed
Resolution 2020-74, adopting an addendum to the Mitigated Negative Declaration and
Resolution 2020-75, authorizing the General Manager to invite construction bids, for the
Upper Rancho Canada Pipe Relocation Project #19-13.

23. Resolution No. 2020-76; Report by the Principal Engineer, Rachél Lather

Board Action
A motion to approve the resolution was made by Director Siegfried and seconded by
Director Rachel. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously passed Resolution
2020-76, authorizing a contract with PSOMAS to provide construction management and
inspection services for the Upper Rancho Canada Pipe Relocation Project #19-13 in an
amount not to exceed $175,465.

OTHER ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD
24. 2021 Committee Assignments, PBCSD Regular Board Meeting Attendance Assignments, and
Conference Schedule for 2021 – Report by Board Secretary, Domine Barringer

Board Action
A motion to maintain status quo for the 2021 Committee assignments and PBCSD
Regular Board Meeting attendance assignments was made by President White and
seconded by Director Townsend. The Board unanimously approved those assignments.

25. COVID-19 Rate Relief Program – Report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema

Board Action
After extensive discussion, a motion was made by President White and seconded by
Director Rachel. Following a Roll Call vote, the Board unanimously voted on having
this program referred to the Budget Committee for further development.
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COMMUNICATIONS
26. General Manager’s Report - oral report by Barbara Buikema
This report is informational only, and no action was taken.

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

* These are informational only items, and no action was taken.

27. No update on the proposed Mr. Larsen sewer connection in Carmel Highlands as reported
by Collections Superintendent, Daryl Lauer

28. PBCSD October 30, 2020 Board Meeting, report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema

29. Pension Committee Meeting of November 2, 2020, report by General Manager, Barbara
Buikema

30. Monterey County Treasurer Report of September 30, 2020, report by General Manager,
Barbara Buikema

31. NPDES permit violations, report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema &
Superintendent of Operations, Ed Waggoner

32. General Manager Quarterly Progress Report - Report by General Manager,
Barbara Buikema

In addition to her report, the General Manager was asked on the performance of CAWD’s new
employee, Alex Quintero. Both of his supervisors gave positive and complementary reports.

33. Letter from Meghan Rasmussen, Carmel Belle

34. Announcements on subjects of interest to the Board made by members of the Board or
Staff

•
•
•

•

A Board member reported on meeting CAWD’s contract electrician, Bryan Mailey

Director Siegfried is scheduled to attend the December 11, 2020 PBCSA Board Meeting.
Director Townsend is scheduled to attend the January 29, 2021 PBCSD Board Meeting.
Director Townsend is scheduled to attend the Tuesday, January 19, 2021 Special
Districts Association of Monterey County meeting.

President White and Director Townsend are scheduled to attend the Reclamation
Management Committee meeting on February 9, 2021.
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•

Rachél Lather, CAWD Principal Engineer, invited everyone to attend her swearing in as
the new President of Soquel Creek Water District’s Board of Directors. The ceremony is
on December 15, 2020 at 6:30 p.m.

35. CLOSED SESSION: As permitted by Government Code Section 54956 et seq., the Board of
Directors may adjourn to a Closed Session to consider specific matters dealing with litigation,
certain personnel matters, real property negotiations, or to confer with the District’s MeyersMilias-Brown representative.

A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) Government Code
section 54956.9 Two cases

B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Real Property Negotiator Pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.8
Property:
Negotiating Party:
Under Negotiations:

APN number 015-163-007
County of Monterey
All terms

C. Conference with Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6
Consider Request of Legal Counsel for Partial Revision of Contract (Re: Hourly Fee)

The Board adjourned to closed session at 10:27 a.m. and after a brief recess the
Board convened in closed session at 10:35 a.m. The Board came out of closed
session at 12:00 p.m. and Legal Counsel reported hereby that in the closed session
the Board took up each of the four listed agenda items – A) Anticipated, Potential
Litigation – 2 cases; B) Conference with Legal Counsel/Real Property Negotiator
(Russel J. Austin, Esq.); and C) Conference with Labor Negotiators (the Board of
Directors). As to each matter, information was provided to the board and
discussion followed; regarding each matter no reportable action was taken.

36. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to come before the Board, the President adjourned the meeting
at 12:01 p.m. The next Regular Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, January 28, 2021, or
an alternate acceptable date, via teleconference webinar. The teleconference webinar is hosted
through Zoom and you may receive access by visiting our website, www.cawd.org, calling the
District office at 831-624-1248 or via email at downstream@cawd.org.
As Reported To:

APPROVED:

____________________________________________________
Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board

________________________________________________
Ken White, President

8

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD)
SALARY & BENEFIT COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
December 15, 2020 at 2:00 p.m.
Via “ZOOM”

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL
Present:

Absent:
Others:

The meeting commenced at 2:00 p.m.

Director Michael Rachel, Committee member
President Ken White, Committee member
General Manager, Barbara Buikema

Karla Cristi, CMMS/Plant Administrative Assistant
Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer
Kevin Young, Plant Supervisor
Mark Napier, Collection Worker II

AGENDA ITEMS:
CLOSED SESSION:
1. Conference with Labor Negotiator regarding employee health insurance negotiations –
Government Code § 54956 et seq.; &

2. Conference with Labor Negotiator regarding the General Manager annual salary request
– Government Code § 54956 et seq.

The Salary & Benefits Committee came out of closed session at 3:30 p.m. and Barbara
Buikema, General Manager, announced that the Committee had taken up the matters
agendized and approved increase in employee health benefits with instructions to
return to full Board at next regular meeting to approve their actions, there were no
additional reportable actions taken. The Committee then reconvened to open session at
3:31 p.m.
ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Committee, the meeting
concluded at 3:34 p.m. The next Regular Board Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, January 28,
2021, or an alternate acceptable date, via teleconference webinar. The teleconference webinar is hosted
through Zoom and you may receive access by visiting our website homepage, www.cawd.org, calling the
District office at 831-624-1248 or via email at downstream@cawd.org.
As Reported To:
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__________________________________________
Barbara Buikema, General Manager

APPROVED:
________________________________________________
Ken White, President

10

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD)
PENSION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
January 7, 2021 at 10:00 a.m.
Via “ZOOM”

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL
Present:

The meeting commenced at 10:00 a.m.

Absent:

Director Michael Rachel, Trustee & Committee member
Legal Counsel, Robert Wellington, Trustee & Committee member
General Manager, Barbara Buikema, Trustee & Committee member

Others:

Robert Siegfried, Director

None

AGENDA ITEMS:
The Pension Committee met to discuss A, B, C & D.
Following discussion of the items on the agenda the Committee recommended that B, C & D
be brought before the full Board for approval. No other action was taken and there was
nothing further to report.
ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Committee, the meeting concluded
at 11:30 a.m. The next Regular Board Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, January 28, 2021, or
an alternate acceptable date, via teleconference webinar. The teleconference webinar is hosted through
Zoom and you may receive access by visiting our website homepage, www.cawd.org, calling the District
office at 831-624-1248 or via email at downstream@cawd.org.
As Reported To:

__________________________________________
Barbara Buikema, General Manager
APPROVED:
________________________________________________
Ken White, President
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD)
SPECIAL BUDGET COMMITTEE
MEETING MINUTES
January 13, 2021 at 10:00 a.m.
Via “ZOOM”

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL
Present:

The meeting commenced at 10:00 a.m.

Absent:

Director Greg D’Ambrosio, Committee member
Director Robert Siegfried, Committee member
General Manager, Barbara Buikema
Maintenance Superintendent, Chris Foley

Others:

Nick Becker, PBCSD District Engineer

None

AGENDA ITEMS:
1. The Committee discussed potential user fee rebates due to COVID-19
2. The Committee discussed draft 2021-22 CIP Budget
ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Committee, the meeting concluded
at 12:04 p.m. The next Regular Board Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, January 28, 2021, or
an alternate acceptable date, via teleconference webinar. The teleconference webinar is hosted through
Zoom and you may receive access by visiting our website homepage, www.cawd.org, calling the District
office at 831-624-1248 or via email at downstream@cawd.org.
As Reported To:

__________________________________________
Barbara Buikema, General Manager
APPROVED:
________________________________________________
Ken White, President
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD)
BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
January 15, 2021 at 10:00 a.m.
Via “ZOOM”

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL
Present:

The meeting commenced at 10:00 a.m.

Absent:

Director Greg D’Ambrosio, Committee member
Director Robert Siegfried, Committee member
General Manager, Barbara Buikema
Maintenance Superintendent, Chris Foley

Others:

Nick Becker, PBCSD District Engineer

None

AGENDA ITEMS:
1. The Committee discussed draft 2021-22 Budget
ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Committee, the meeting concluded
at 10:20 a.m. The next Regular Board Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, January 28, 2021, or
an alternate acceptable date, via teleconference webinar. The teleconference webinar is hosted through
Zoom and you may receive access by visiting our website homepage, www.cawd.org, calling the District
office at 831-624-1248 or via email at downstream@cawd.org.
As Reported To:

__________________________________________
Barbara Buikema, General Manager
APPROVED:
________________________________________________
Ken White, President
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Carmel Area Wastewater District
Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - NOVEMBER 2020
Capital

BALANCE BEGINNING OF MONTH
Receipts:
User Fees
Property Taxes
PBCSD Treatment Fees
Reclamation O & M reimbursement
Reclamation capital billing
Permits
PBCSD capital billing
Other misc. revenue
Interest income
Connection Fees
CCLEAN receipts
Reclamation transfer to pay their a/p
Hatton Canyon Project grant funds
CRFree Project grant funds
Void checks-replace lost check
Total Receipts
Fund Transfers:
Transfers to Chase/Union Bank O&M
Transfers to Chase/Union Bank PR
Transfer to Chase Bank Defined Benefit
Transfer Union Bank PR to O&M
Rebalance Capital and O&M Reserves
Total Transfers
Disbursements:
Operations and capital
Payroll & payroll taxes
Employee Dental reimbursements
CALPERS EFT
CAWD SAM pension EFT
CAWD pension loans EFT
Home Depot EFT
US Bank EFT
Deferred comp contributions EFT
PEHP contributions EFT
Bank/ADP fees
Highlands Bond Debt Service Payment
Annual County admin billing fee
Unfunded CALPERS liability
GASB 68 report fee & SSA 218 fee
Total Disbursements
BALANCE END OF MONTH

Compensated

Defend or

COUNTY

Chase/Union

Chase/Union

Capital

Improvement

General O & M

Accruals

Managed Retreat

Total Fund

Bank O & M

Bank PR

L.A.I.F.

Fund

Reserve

Fund

Reserve

Reserve

Balance

Balance

Balance

Balance

$7,441,287

$15,652,911

77,999

$5,674,171

$245,477

$3,000,000

$32,013,846

14,923

$1,305,888

$4,812

$1,191,704

100
90,000

3,190
259,884
806

0

22,334

0

77,999

(120,469)

(120,469)

14,923

0

0

92,922

(479,531)

0

(479,531)

0

0

(600,000)

763,589
39,255
24,884
1,204,041

600,000
(480,000)
(20,000)
124,530

(124,530)

224,530

355,470

1,607,432
3,102
31,274
0
587
1,256
15,621
5,267
0
417

194,360

0

0

480,000

0

225,540

5,267
3,072
25

0

0

194,360

0

0

194,360

1,664,957

233,904

0

7,320,818

15,730,911

5,015,203

245,477

3,000,000

31,312,409

1,069,502

126,378

1,191,704
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Carmel Area Wastewater District

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - DECEMBER 2020
Capital

BALANCE BEGINNING OF MONTH
Receipts:
User Fees
Property Taxes
PBCSD Treatment Fees
Reclamation O & M reimbursement
Reclamation capital billing
Permits
PBCSD capital billing
Other misc. revenue
Interest income
Connection Fees
CCLEAN receipts
CAWD bond payment transfer in error by County
Hatton Canyon Project grant funds
CRFree Project grant funds
Void checks-replace lost check
Total Receipts
Fund Transfers:
Transfers to Chase/Union Bank O&M
Transfers to Chase/Union Bank PR
Transfer from Chase Bank Defined Benefit
Intra-fund transfers for capital expenditures
Rebalance Capital and O&M Reserves
Total Transfers
Disbursements:
Operations and capital
Payroll & payroll taxes
Employee Dental reimbursements
CALPERS EFT
CAWD SAM pension EFT
CAWD pension loans EFT
Home Depot EFT
US Bank EFT
Deferred comp contributions EFT
PEHP contributions EFT
Bank/ADP fees
Highlands Bond Debt Service Payment
Annual County admin billing fee
Unfunded CALPERS liability
GASB 68 report fee & SSA 218 fee
Total Disbursements
BALANCE END OF MONTH

Compensated

Defend or

COUNTY

Chase/Union

Chase/Union

Capital

Improvement

General O & M

Accruals

Managed Retreat

Total Fund

Bank O & M

Bank PR

L.A.I.F.

Fund

Reserve

Fund

Reserve

Reserve

Balance

Balance

Balance

Balance

$7,320,818

$15,730,911

1,217,753

$5,015,203

$245,477

$3,000,000

$31,312,409

5,139,138

$1,069,502

$126,378

$1,191,704

139
139

0

21,417
180,000
231,263
6,960
18,159
6,694
80,403
194,360

0

1,217,753

(431,637)
(431,637)

5,139,138

0

0

6,356,891

431,637
0

431,637

0

0

0

739,255

0
(225,000)
20,000

(0)
225,000

(205,000)

225,000

855,064
2,578
31,303
0
587
822
3,281
10,535
3,950
367

0

231,632

0
0
518

0

0

0

0

0

0

908,488

232,150

0

6,889,181

16,948,664

10,585,977

245,477

3,000,000

37,669,300

695,268

119,366

1,191,704
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STAFF REPORT
TO:

Board of Directors

FROM:

Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent

DATE:

January 28, 2021

SUBJECT:

Monthly Report – November & December

RECOMMENDATION
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.

Permits Issued
Sewer Lateral Permits issued in November & December .......................
Total Fees

.......................................................................................................

30/22
$9,340.00

Maintenance
Attached is a map of the areas cleaned and Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) inspected in
past three months of 2020. In the month of November there was 56,040 feet of sewer lines
cleaned, 19,265 feet of (CCTV) inspections, and 192 manhole inspections were performed.
During the month of December there was 80,282 feet of sewer lines cleaned, 15,395 feet of
(CCTV) inspections, and 281 manhole inspections were performed .
Recent Line Cleaning Summary
Cleaning period
December
November
October

Footage
Cleaned
80,282 ft.
56,040 ft.
45,951 ft.

Percentage Cleaned

Size of Pipe Cleaned

19.52%
13.63%
11.17%

6 – 15 inches
6 - 12 inches
6 – 27 inches
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Annual Line Cleaning Graph

Line Cleaning Table
Total Target Amount
(Linear Feet)
615,000 (in 2020)

Cumulative Complete
(Linear Feet)
595,359
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Remaining (Linear Feet)
19,641

CCTV Progress Graph (River Watch Settlement Agreement Target)

CCTV Table
Total Required
amount (Linear Feet)
408,672

Cumulative Complete
(Linear Feet)
203,243
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Remaining (Linear Feet)
205,429

Manhole Inspection Progress Graph (Riverwatch Settlement Agreement Target)

Manhole Inspection Table
Total Required Amount
(Manholes)
1434

Actual Complete
(Manholes)
547

Remaining
(Manholes)
887

Construction activities
• N/A
Staff Development
• Staff completed several online safety trainings and in person tail gate training.
General comments
• Staff continues to practice social distancing with other staff and contractors, driving
to locations throughout the District in separate vehicles. Staff is educated on the best
practices of PPE and personal hygiene. Staff has been cleaning and sanitizing
buildings, equipment, and vehicles daily as part of their routine duties.
•

CAWD’s annual root foaming program wrapped up in the first week of November
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covering 20,593 feet. The total amount of sewer lines treated during 2020 was 40,265
feet. See map for areas that were treated.

Service calls responded to by Collection Crew:
Date
Time
11/17/2020 10:30 AM

Callout
Lateral Overflow

11/17/2020 11:45 AM

Odor Complaint

11/28/2020 6:48 AM

Power Fail

11/28/2020 8:28 AM

Odor Complaint

12/3/2020

Lateral overflow

2:39 PM

12/17/2020 10:50 AM

Resolution
Called by homeowner for a lateral
overflow. Staff cleaned District main
line and found no problems in
Districts line. Staff informed
homeowner to call a plumber of
their choice.
Call by homeowner for an odor in
their home. Staff had just cleaned the
main line and had sucked out some
of the p-traps in the home. Staff
informed homeowner to run water
down all drains to eliminate the
odor.
Power outage at Hacienda pump
station. Staff monitored station until
power was restored.
Call by resident for an odor coming
from a manhole. Staff opened
manholes in the area. Staffed walked
nearby easement to ensure there was
no backup.
Called by homeowner for a lateral
overflow. Staff cleaned District main
line and found no problems in
Districts line. Staff informed
homeowner to call a plumber of
their choice.
Called by anonymous neighbor for a
report of a lateral overflow. Staff
found nothing overflowing from the
cleanout. Staff noticed the

Lateral Overflow
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homeowner was dumping sewage
on property. Staff called Health
department for a welfare check of
the resident.
12/18/2020 10:45 PM

Pump Fail to Start

12/21/2020 10:00 AM

Odor Complaint

12/23/2020 8:59 AM

Lateral Overflow

Called to Hacienda for a pump fail
to start. Staff reset control panel and
the pump failed again. Staff to the
pump offline for the night. Staff
pulled the pump the next day and
found rags to be the cause of the
pump tripping the breaker.
Called by homeowner for an odor
complaint in the area. Staff checked
nearby manhole. No odor was
detected. Informed homeowner to
call when the odor was smelled
again.
Staff noticed a lateral overflow while
walking easements. Staff found no
problems in Districts line. Staff
informed homeowner to call a
plumber of their choice.

USA Location Requests – (106) Nov & (99) Dec
Plumbing permit inspections – (30) Nov & (24) Dec
Private Sewer Lateral Compliance Certificates Issued – (28) Nov & (21) Dec
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December (Red)
November (Yellow)
October (Green)

15,395 feet
19,265 feet
12,085 feet

Monthly CCTV Map

1/4/2021
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December (Red)
November (Yellow)
October (Green)
Root Treatment (Orange)

80,282 feet
56,040 feet
45,951 feet
20,593 feet

Monthly Cleaning Map

1/4/2021
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2020 CAWD Collections Annual Report
This report provides an overall summary of system wide cleaning and Closed-Circuit
Television (CCTV) activities, construction, and Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO)
information for the year of 2020.
Cleaning Activity: The Collection crew maintains 408,581 feet of gravity sewer lines
and 21,600 feet of force mains in the District. During 2020, staff cleaned the entire
system in a little over 8 months. The cleaning methods used were hydro-cleaning and
root foaming.
Activity

Feet Cleaned

Cleaning - Jetting

579,690 ft.

High Frequency Lines

15,669 ft.

Root Foaming

40,265 ft.

Total

635,624 ft.

Cleaning Activity
2%

0%

12%

Cleaning -Jetting
High Frequency Lines
Root Foaming

86%

Maintenance Activity: Collection crews responded to 59 service calls in 2020; with most
calls being private lateral problems. The remaining calls were for odor complaints,
pump station related problems, backed up plumbing, and rattling manholes.
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There were 1,269 Underground Service Alerts calls for marking sewer locations in 2020.
Collection crews were able to CCTV inspect 119,419 feet of sewer line. The District’s
root foaming program treated 40,265 feet of problematic lines with roots.

Lateral Permit Inspection
Shop Cleanup
Treatment Plant
Data
Equiptment Repairs
Storm Drain
Out of Office
Manhole Work
Service Call
Canyon Round
Pump Station Work
CCTV
Sewer Main Point Repair
USA Markout
Training/Safety
Line Cleaning

Maintenance Activity Hours

Maintenance Activity Hours

0

1000

2000

3000

Riverwatch Settlement Activity: In the beginning of 2020, CAWD agreed to a
settlement from the California Riverwatch. In the settlement CAWD agreed to perform
a complete Collection system condition assessment. The assessment includes the
evaluation of all the sewer lines, manholes, and pump stations in the District followed
by a condition assessment report due by the end of 2023. In November, CAWD hired a
limited term employee to help with the workload brought on by the lawsuit. The new
employee, Alex Quintero, splits his time between the Collection and Maintenance
departments.
See charts below for the system wide total to date of inspected sewer line footage and
manholes. Pump station assessments will take place in 2021.
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Total Required amount (Linear Feet)

Cumulative Complete (Linear Feet)

Remaining (Linear Feet)

408,672

203,243

205,429

Total Required Amount (Manholes)

Actual Complete (Manholes)

Remaining (Manholes)

1434

547

887
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Construction Activity: 2020 was a busy year for construction despite the Covid-19
pandemic. We completed both small and major projects during the year. In April,
contractors removed the cross-bore from the 24-inch trunk main on Rio Rd. The crossbore was discovered while inspecting the sewer line. The location of the cross-bore was
in the crown of the pipe, not impacting flow, but would impact the Rio Road pipeline
lining project. In addition, 40 cast iron manhole frames and lids were replaced with
composite locking frame and lids.
The first major project was the rehabilitation of the sewer main on Rio Road (Project ID
# 19-07). This project started at the District main office on Rio Road and ended at the
Larson field ballpark. This trunk main conveys the wastewater for everything east of
Highway 1. In total there was 4,055 feet of 24- & 27-inch ACP (Asbestos Cement Pipe)
pipe that was rehabilitated using the CIPP (Cure-In-Place Pipe) method. This project
was completed on time and on budget.
The second major project was the long-anticipated Hatton Canyon pipeline replacement
(Project ID # 18-17). Grant funding for this project was approved and construction
started in June and was completed December 14, 2020. The underground portion of the
project was completed in two months and the following two months were used for
vegetation restoration. This project replaced 5,571 feet of 8-inch VCP (Vitrified Clay
Pipe) pipe with 10” HDPE (High-density Polyethylene) pipe using the pipe bursting
method. This project was completed on time and on budget.
The Pump Station PLC/SCADA replacement project (Project ID # 18-18) was completed
in June. This project consisted of the replacement of over 20-year-old programmable
logic controller (PLC) components and using the Ignition operating platform which is
consistent with the Treatment Plant. This work was completed on time and on budget.
Additionally, surveying and environmental studies were completed at the Palo Corona
Monterey Regional Park, formerly known as the Rancho Canada Golf Courses. This
project will replace 4,000 linear feet of pipeline and is scheduled to begin in early 2021.
Planning for the proposed Carmel Meadows Pipeline continued in 2020. When
completed, it will eliminate most of the easement lines that run along and over the
Carmel River Lagoon. This project is slated to begin in budget year 2021-2022.
Other Notable Activity: The year 2020 began as normal, then took a turn into unprecedented times with the emergence of the Covid-19 pandemic. In March, Monterey
County issued a mandatory shelter in place order to stop the spread of Covid-19. We
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learned many new terms in 2020 and adapted to the ever-changing workplace during
the pandemic., However; it has been very challenging. Staff rose to the challenge and
completed the year strong. New policies were put in place to protect staff and training
was provided on items that have never been a topic before. Staff followed social
distancing guidelines and wore cloth masks. As the pandemic worsened, a policy was
adopted to always wear N-95 masks.
In 2019, a new ordinance was passed that required private sewer laterals (PSL) to be
inspected and repaired as needed at the sale of the property. Due to the pandemic the
local area experienced a hot real estate market and as a result (PSL) inspection
significantly increased.
There were 353 lateral permit inspections and 337 PSL certificate of compliance
certificates issued in 2020 compared to 205 lateral permit inspections and 102 PSL
certificate of compliance certificates issued in 2019.
The Collections Department attended all the required safety training in 2020. After
March, all training was held virtually. Staff attended both the California Water
Environment Association Annual conference and the California Sanitation Risk
Management Authority Sewer Summit online. An audit of the CAWD Sewer System
Management Plan (SSMP) was performed by a subject matter expert. The SSMP was
approved and certified in January 2020 by the Board. In 2020, Collections cleaned the
storm drain interceptors and catchment ponds for the City of Carmel By-the-Sea in both
the Spring and Fall. I would also like to congratulate the Collection Staff for finishing
the year 2020 with zero work time lost.
Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO) Summary:
During the calendar year 2020 the Collections System successfully conveyed over 330
million gallons of wastewater to the treatment plant. There were NO SSO’s in 2020.
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Sewer Main SSO History
20
18
16
14
12
10

SSO Occurences

8
6
4
2
0

Cause of Spills Since 2004
8%
8%
Roots
Grit/Grease
55%

29%
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Free Flowing Roots
Other

STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Mark Dias, Safety and
Regulatory Compliance Administrator

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Monthly Safety Reports (for December 2020)

RECOMMENDATION
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required

DISCUSSION
Safety & Training
•

Dec 10- Tailgate training. Mark Dias, Safety and Compliance Administrator, (S/C
Admin Dias), provided training on proper donning of N95 facepiece respirators and
how to conduct a proper seal check. N95 units are not “masks,” instead they are
considered respirators. Whenever respirators are issued, the employer must
provide training on proper use to ensure they are effective. Incorrect use of any
respirator may cause a false sense of security, and thinking they are protected,
employees might otherwise expose themselves to a hazard. Two training videos
were shown, one from OSHA and another from a major manufacturer, on proper
techniques for donning and conducting a seal check. Those unable to attend the
tailgate viewed the videos separately. Staff had the opportunity to ask questions and
the training was documented.

Ongoing Safety Improvements
During December, Maintenance Superintendent Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to
implement safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and the Safety
Committee. Activities during December included:
•

COVID Safety – New Cal/OSHA regulations. Federal, State and County agencies
have all issued multiple COVID “guidelines” over the last several months. On
December 2nd, many of the key guidelines became codified in new Cal/OSHA
regulations. These were added to Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations. The
regulations became effective immediately.
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Because the District has been proactive, only a few new protections and protocols
were necessary. S/C Admin Dias gave a PowerPoint presentation and provided
training on the new protocols and controls. Additional trainings are needed to
cover administrative topics such as the types of leave and benefits available to
employees who may contract COVID-19.
The new regulations will require updates to the District’s Exposure Control Plan.
This is a separate item on the January 28th agenda.
•

Gas-assisted lift gate for tertiary building. To enhance fall safety, a gas-assisted lift
gate was ordered for the receiving area along the south side of the tertiary building.
Multiple chemicals are stored in the building and deliveries occur regularly. The
chemicals are on pallets or 330-gallon totes and are lifted up with a forklift. In order
to place the totes and pallets up on the landing, staff must first manually remove an
8-foot section of protective railing. This exposes them to a potential 7-foot fall. The
new lift gate will allow one person to easily swing the guard-arm up from one end
while remaining behind the adjacent railing.

Tours and Outreach
•

Tours. All tours remain on hold per current health orders and school closures.

Injuries; First Aid Incidents; Workers Compensation Claims
There were no Workers Comp or first aid injuries in December. The final tracking
matrix for 2020 is below.
Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2020 Reporting Year

TYPE
OSHA
Injuries
OSHA
Illnesses
Other WC
Claims
First Aid
(non-OSHA)

New
Incidents
(Month)

Total
Incidents
(Year)

Total Days Away Total Days of Job Cumulative days
from Work
Restriction
lost
(Year)
(Year)
(Year)

0

1*

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

5

0

0

12

0

0

0

*As described in the May 28, 2020 Safety Report. In December Sedgwick retroactively accepted
this as a claim, and a settlement agreement was signed by the General Manager.

FUNDING
N/A- Informational item only
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Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report
HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

2020 YEAR-TO-DATE

Report for:
December 2020

Total
Monthly,
MG

Avg. Daily,
MGD

Min Daily,
MGD

Max Daily,
MGD

% of Total

MG

acre-feet

CAWD Flow

21.732

0.701

0.633

0.789

71.085

299.59

918.99

PBCSD Flow

8.840

0.285

0.245

0.389

28.915

155.43

476.78

Total Plant Flow

30.572

0.986

0.878

1.178

100.00

455.02

1395.76

Tertiary Flow

27.085

0.874

0.668

1.035

88.594

306.02

938.72

Ocean Discharge

3.502

0.113

0.081

0.143

11.455

162.95

499.85

Potable Water

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY
Total Annual Reclamation Production (2020)

306.02MG (938.72acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-20)

8.54 BG (26.21 K acre-ft.)

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production

306.02 MG (939.18 acre-ft.)

ELECTRICAL COSTS
Monthly Totals

Dec '20 kWh Price per kWh

Dec'20

Nov'20

Oct'20

Sep'20

Secondary

104,185.00

$

0.158

$ 16,496.43

$ 17,253.78

$

20,991.81

$

22,009.50

Blowers

50,624.96

$

0.147

$ 7,445.03

$ 7,671.12

$

8,664.63

$

9,766.61

CAWD Total

154,809.96

$ 23,941.46

$ 24,924.90

$

29,656.44

$

31,776.11

Tertiary

77,714.84

$

0.172

$ 13,365.15

$ 12,688.58

$

18,497.83

$

21,738.85

MF/RO

88,196.00

$

0.185

$ 16,305.46

$ 17,314.64

$

18,941.85

$

21,382.63

Reclaim Total

165,910.84

$ 29,670.61

$ 30,003.22

$

37,439.68

$

43,121.48

Adjusted Monthly
Totals (1)

CAWD Total

$

38,845.38

$

14,766.69

Reclamation Total

kW-h Per Acre Foot
2019

2020

1 QTR

2 QTR

3 QTR

4 QTR

1 QTR

2 QTR

3 QTR

4 QTR

CAWD

1174.96

1568.27

1725.97

1553.08

2064.85

1445.00

1434.66

1583.65

Reclamation

2344.93

2255.78

2283.22

1924.16

1920.96

1852.00

1878.67

1943.44

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY
Month

Dec '20 kW-h

Nov '20

Oct '20

Sep '20

Accumulated Totals

Production,kW-h

24,832

25,327

28,722

30,072

904,988.00

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for
Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.
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Total Golf Course Usage

Tertiary Flow, mg
Total Potable, mg
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70.000

Total Discharge, mg
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Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report
HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

2020 YEAR-TO-DATE

Report for:
November 2020

Total
Monthly,
MG

Avg. Daily,
MGD

Min Daily,
MGD

Max Daily,
MGD

% of Total

MG

acre-feet

CAWD Flow

23.089

0.770

0.693

0.859

72.965

277.86

852.33

PBCSD Flow

8.555

0.285

0.251

0.347

27.035

146.59

449.66

Total Plant Flow

31.644

1.055

0.944

1.206

100.00

424.45

1301.98

Tertiary Flow

28.472

0.949

0.732

1.165

89.976

278.94

855.63

Ocean Discharge

3.664

0.122

0.103

0.151

11.579

159.45

489.11

Potable Water

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY
Total Annual Reclamation Production (2020)

278.94MG (855.63acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-20)

8.51 BG (26.12 K acre-ft.)

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production

321.86 MG (987.79 acre-ft.)

ELECTRICAL COSTS
Monthly Totals

Nov '20 kWh Price per kWh

Nov'20

Oct'20

Sep'20

Aug'20

Secondary

110,667.00

$

0.156

$ 17,253.78

$ 20,991.81

$

22,009.50

$

23,224.33

Blowers

53,306.24

$

0.144

$ 7,671.12

$ 8,664.63

$

9,766.61

$

9,712.20

CAWD Total

163,973.24

$ 24,924.90

$ 29,656.44

$

31,776.11

$

32,936.53

Tertiary

69,502.76

$

0.183

$ 12,688.58

$ 18,497.83

$

21,738.85

$

19,032.00

MF/RO

96,899.00

$

0.179

$ 17,314.64

$ 18,941.85

$

21,382.63

$

21,019.94

Reclaim Total

166,401.76

$ 30,003.22

$ 37,439.68

$

43,121.48

$

40,051.94

Adjusted Monthly
Totals (1)

CAWD Total

$

39,449.83

$

15,478.29

Reclamation Total

kW-h Per Acre Foot
2019

2020

1 QTR

2 QTR

3 QTR

4 QTR

1 QTR

2 QTR

3 QTR

4 QTR

CAWD

1174.96

1568.27

1725.97

1553.08

2064.85

1445.00

1434.66

N/A

Reclamation

2344.93

2255.78

2283.22

1924.16

1920.96

1852.00

1878.67

N/A

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY
Month

Nov '20 kW-h

Oct '20

Sep '20

Aug '20

Accumulated Totals

Production,kW-h

25,327

28,722

30,072

24,648

880,156.00

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for
Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.
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Total Golf Course Usage

Tertiary Flow, mg
Total Potable, mg
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Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report
HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

2020 YEAR-TO-DATE

Report for:
October 2020

Total
Monthly,
MG

Avg. Daily,
MGD

Min Daily,
MGD

Max Daily,
MGD

% of Total

MG

acre-feet

CAWD Flow

23.689

0.764

0.724

0.854

72.775

230.07

705.74

PBCSD Flow

8.862

0.286

0.254

0.319

27.225

129.17

396.23

Total Plant Flow

32.551

1.050

0.978

1.173

100.00

359.24

1101.98

Tertiary Flow

28.503

0.919

0.737

1.077

87.564

250.47

768.30

Ocean Discharge

3.729

0.120

0.084

0.143

11.456

155.79

477.87

Potable Water

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY
Total Annual Reclamation Production (2020)

250.47MG (768.30acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-20)

8.48 BG (26.04 K acre-ft.)

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production

323.14 MG (991.72 acre-ft.)

ELECTRICAL COSTS
Monthly Totals

Oct '20 kWh Price per kWh

Oct'20

Sep'20

Aug'20

Jul'20

Secondary

95,408.00

$

0.220

$ 20,991.81

$ 22,009.50

$

23,224.33

$

24,838.84

Blowers

46,171.04

$

0.188

$ 8,664.63

$ 9,766.61

$

9,712.20

$

10,158.19

CAWD Total

141,579.04

$ 29,656.44

$ 31,776.11

$

32,936.53

$

34,997.03

Tertiary

86,351.48

$

0.214

$ 18,497.83

$ 21,738.85

$

19,032.00

$

16,797.52

MF/RO

82,459.00

$

0.230

$ 18,941.85

$ 21,382.63

$

21,019.94

$

23,010.84

Reclaim Total

168,810.48

$ 37,439.68

$ 43,121.48

$

40,051.94

$

39,808.36

Adjusted Monthly
Totals (1)

CAWD Total

$

48,785.53

$

18,310.59

Reclamation Total

kW-h Per Acre Foot
2019

2020

1 QTR

2 QTR

3 QTR

4 QTR

1 QTR

2 QTR

3 QTR

4 QTR

CAWD

1174.96

1568.27

1725.97

1553.08

2064.85

1445.00

1434.66

N/A

Reclamation

2344.93

2255.78

2283.22

1924.16

1920.96

1852.00

1878.67

N/A

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY
Month

Oct '20 kW-h

Sep '20

Aug '20

Jul '20

Accumulated Totals

Production,kW-h

28,722

30,072

24,648

13,056

854,829.00

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for
Tertiary's power costs due to the Lab's power usage.
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May 20
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STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Ray De Ocampo - Laboratory/Environmental
Compliance Supervisor

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Monthly Report – December 2020

RECOMMENDATION
Receive Report - Informational only; No action required.
DISCUSSION
LABORATORY REPORT
•

•

•
•
•

The laboratory staff has continued to send Carmel Area Wastewater District
(CAWD) Influent Pump Station 24-hour composite sample to Biobot Analytics for
COVID-19 analysis. The results for the normalized virus concentrations have
resulted in low counts and generally after a holiday event we see a spike or high
counts.
The Biobot team are interested in having CAWD Biobot results published in a
“Nationwide trends in COVID-19 cases and SARS-CoV-2 wastewater concentrations
in the United States” academic journal.
The renewal for Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP # 1804)
Certificate has been received. The certificate will be good until December 27, 2022.
The lab continues working on the new ELAP requirements to be National
Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program-TNI compliant.
On December 22, 2020, staff sampled the first quarter of the California Water Board
Order WQ 2020-0015-DWQ Per-and Polyfluoroalkyl Substance (PFAS). The
sampling was completed with the procedures outlined by Applied Marine Sciences
(AMS) who is contracted by all the Central Coast Long-term Assessment
Environmental Network (CCLEAN) member agencies to manage the sampling,
laboratory analysis, and reporting. This was the first sampling performed. The grab
samples collected were from the Influent, Final Effluent, RO Concentrate and
Tertiary Effluent and biosolids. The next sampling will be the second quarter
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January-March 2021 the date has not been set.
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT
•

Restaurant grease trap inspections and work are in process to complete the City of
Carmel Stormwater Business Inspections. A total of nine inspections have been
completed.

Restaurant
The Tuck Box
Casanova
La Bicycelette
The Cottage
Katy’s Place
Portabella
Dametra
The Mediterranean (The
Catch)
Seventh and Dolores
L’ Escargot

Restaurant Inspection Table
Reason for NonCompliant
Compliance
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspection Table
Grocery
Reason for NonStore/Delicatessen
Compliant
Compliance
No Inspections

% Compliance
October 2020
November 2020
December 2020

Comments

Restaurant Compliance Table
Maintenance
NA
NA
100

Comments

Mechanical
NA
NA
100

FUNDING
N/A - Informational item only
OTHER
The Biobot COVID19 sampling results are available upon request or posted on
www.cawd.org.

106

Project GL
Number

Task Name

Manager

Cumulative
Budget

2020

Status
H1

$0

$0

4/30/18

6/30/26

$0

$0

Treanor

4/30/18

6/30/22

$2,905,000

$10,616,000

Foley

10/8/18

6/30/21

$240,000

$364,715

Treanor/Foley

10/8/18

12/23/20

$450,000

$469,202

Waggoner

3/15/19

12/31/20

$0

$317,250

6/4/19

6/30/21

$100,000

$676,000

Waggoner

7/1/19

6/29/21

$65,000

$86,000

Treanor

7/1/19

6/30/26

$0

$213,000

Determining Tree Types /
Final Landscape Plan for
Interior

Carmel River FREE Mitigation

Treanor

6/1/20

11/30/22

$0

$0

Design/CEQA/
Developing Funding
Agreement

Cathodic Protection Testing

Treanor

7/1/20

6/29/21

$30,000

$30,000

Inactive

Cart Charging and Parking

Foley

7/1/20

6/1/22

$25,000

$50,000

Inactive

Waggoner

7/1/20

6/30/21

$40,000

$127,000

Materials Onsite Pending
Installation in Spring

Foley

7/1/20

3/29/22

$50,000

$50,000

Implementation

Treanor

5/1/20

5/2/22

$0

$255,000

WWTP Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan Update

Treanor

6/1/20

1/29/21

$35,000

$35,000

In Study Phase

5500.006

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan

Treanor

5/1/20

4/30/21

$150,000

$1,200,000

Draft In Development

5500.006

Long Term SLR Planning

Treanor

5/3/21

5/2/22

$150,000

$1,550,000

Inactive

7/2/18

6/1/22

$0

$580,000

18-05 5858.004
18-08 1629.000
18-07 1624.000

Mech/Elec Rehab and Sludge
Holding Tank Replacement
Project
PLC/SCADA Programming
Standby Power Reliability
Project
Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2
Purging and Cleaning

18-11 1611.000

Microturbine Integration Project Treanor/Foley

19-01 1630.000

Onsite Flood Mitigations
(PARTIAL RECLAMATION)
Perimeter Tree Plan and
Implementation

18-28 1626.000

19-21 1993.000

Pending
GL

20-03 6799.006

20-02 5500.006

Aeration Basin Improvements
Treatment COVID
Improvements
Treatment Plant Studies &
O&M Manuals

Reclamation Projects
14777

69200

2021
H2

H1

2022
H2

icroturbine Integration Project
Online - Further
Optimization
Minor Work Proceeding od Mitigations (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)
Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

Carmel River FREE Mitigation

Cathodic Protection Testing
Cart Charging and Parking
Aeration Basin Improvements

Treatment COVID Improvements
Treatment Plant Studies & O&M Manuals
WTP Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan Update
Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan
Long Term SLR Planning

RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and Containment

1/1/19

6/1/22

$290,000

$358,506

On Hold

Treanor

1/1/21

6/3/21

$0

$40,000

Inactive

Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection Testing

Treanor

7/1/21

12/1/21

$0

$75,000

Inactive

Painting Project

Reclamation Studies

Treanor

7/2/18

6/1/22

$0

$65,000

Trussell MF/RO Performance Review

Treanor

7/2/18

6/30/21

$30,000

$115,000

In Study Phase

Reclamation 15-Year Asset
Management Assessment

Treanor

7/1/21

6/1/22

$0

$35,000

Inactive

4/16/18

7/1/40

$0

$8,139,000

11/15/19

5/14/21

$0

$0

Lather
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H2

Ignition Migration In DA Programming
Progress
Startup Scheduled for ability Project
January
Temporarily Converting No. 2 Purging and Cleaning
to Stormwater Holding
Tanks

Treanor

Pretreatment Ordinance

H1

Coastal Commission / nd Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project
CEQA

RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks
and Containment
Reclamation Line Cathodic
Protection Testing
Painting Project

Collections Projects
19-02

Current FY
Budget

7/1/40

18-01 1620.000

18-26

Finish

4/16/18

Projects Implementation Plan
Schedule
Treatment Plant Projects

19-19

Start

Reclamation Studies
erformance Review

Pending review of Draft
by Board Committee and
Legal Counsel

Reclamation 15-Year Asset Management Assessment

Pretreatment Ordinance

Project GL
Task Name
Number
19-03 1586.000
Carmel

Manager

Start

Finish

Current FY
Budget

Cumulative
Budget

Meadows Sewer
Replacement

Lather

8/1/19

1/19/23

$185,445

$1,259,102

Amending Contracts to
Include Removal of
Existing Pipe

Upper Rancho Canada Pipe
Relocation
Collections COVID
Improvements
Carmel Valley Manor Pipeline
and Pump Station

Lather

7/1/19

10/29/21

$1,760,000

$1,822,991

Bid Phase

Foley

7/1/20

7/1/21

$50,000

$50,000

Implementation

Lather

7/3/18

12/10/21

$0

$0

Lather

12/31/20

7/7/23

$100,000

$600,000

Lather

7/7/22

7/7/23

$200,000

$1,400,000

20-05

Bay/Scenic Pump Station
Rehabilitation
Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting Ocean to Bay
River Watch Agreement

Lather

2/21/20

2/21/24

$0

$0

Soliciting Consultant
Proposals
Soliciting Consultant
Proposals
Work In Progress

20-06

Collections 20-Year CIP

Lather

7/1/20

7/1/40

$0

$29,489,616

Work In Progress

Assessment
Districts/Annexations

Lather

8/2/18

5/3/22

$0

$105,000

19-13 1625.000
20-04 6799.005
19-08 1632.000

20-07
20-08

19-09 5500.005

2020 Sphere of Influence Amendment
and Annexation Proposal

Lather

3/15/19

5/3/21

$0

$50,000

18-21 1631.000

Corona Road Assessment District

Lather

8/2/18

9/2/21

$0

$0

19-05

Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection

Lather

8/2/18

9/2/21

$0

$0

19-04

Carmel Highlands Sewer Collection
System Expansion – Yankee Point and
Otter Cove

Lather

5/13/20

5/3/22

$0

$55,000

6/9/20

12/22/20

$0

$50,000

6/9/20

12/22/20

$75,000

$75,000

Administration Projects
20-01 1633.000

Administration Building COVID
Control Improvements

Treanor/Foley
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2020

Status
H1

2021
H2
H1
H2
Carmel Meadows Sewer Replacement

2022
H1

H2

Upper Rancho Canada Pipe Relocation
Collections COVID Improvements

Design by Owner anor Pipeline and Pump Station
Construction Planned
Upon Completion of
19-09
Bay/Scenic Pump Station Rehabilitation
Scenic Rd Pipe Burs
River Watch Agreement
Collections 20-Year CIP
sessment Districts/Annexations

LAFCO Application e Amendment and Annexation Proposal
Submitted - Anticipated
Approval April 2021
78% Signed Petition / Assessment District
Pending Funding
Pending Annexation nnexation/Connection
Continued NegotiationsCarmel Highlands Sewer Collection System Expansion – Yankee Point and Otter Cove

HVAC Complete / Entry nistration Building COVID Control Improvements
Doors Installation in
March

Photo: DAFT SCADA Overview

Photo: Existing Headworks Motor Control Center to Be
Replaced in Project

Project Number:
Project Name:

18-05
Programmable Logic Controller
(PLC) and Supervisory Control
and Data Acquisition (SCADA)
Programming Project
Project Location:
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Project Manager:
Foley
Status:
Ignition Migration In Progress
Project
During the Phase 1 project a new
Description:
SCADA software package from
Inductive Automation was
installed to parallel the existing
system. This project includes the
migration of the remaining SCADA
screens from the legacy system to
the new system. The PLC code is
also being updated to the CAWD
standards that are being
developed during this project.
This project is necessary to
replace obsolete software and
hardware so that the automated
controls, alarms, and reporting
remain accurate and reliable.
Department:
Treatment
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$364,715
$169,856
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$240,000
$66,285
Reclamation Share: Partial Reclamation

Project Number:
Project Name:

18-01
WWTP - Elec/Mech Rehab &
Sludge Holding Tank Replacement
Project
Project Location:
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Project Manager: Treanor
Status:
Coastal Commission/CEQA
Project
The WWTP Rehabilitation Phase II
Description:
Project is a multi-area project at
the WWTP aimed at mitigating risk
of failure in the Influent Pump
Station, Headworks, 3W/Chlorine
Analyzer Building, Effluent Building
and Sludge Storage Tank. Most of
the work involves replacing aged
electrical and mechanical
equipment in existing buildings.
Department:
Treatment
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$10,616,000
$878,757
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$2,905,000
$8,886
Reclamation
Estimated at 4% of project cost.
Share:
Actual share TBD based on
Construction Costs.
Other Entities:
Pebble Beach Community Services
District, CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation
Project
Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification
Challenges:
Electrical Cutover Coordination
Schedule:
• Construction anticipated for
2020 through 2021
Consultants:
Contractor:

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants (Design
Engineer)
TBD
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Schedule:

•

Consultants:

Frisch Engineering

Existing SCADA to be migrated
in FY20/21.

Photo: Example Trailer Standby Generator

Photo: Old Digester No. 2
Project Number:
Project Name:

18-07
Digester No. 1 & Old Digester No. 2
Purging and Cleaning
Project Location:
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Project Manager: Waggoner
Status:
Temporarily Converting to
Stormwater Holding Tanks
Project
Digester No. 1 cleaning is
Description:
completed. Old Digester No. 2 is
planned to be demolished. Old
Digester No. 2 has been drained by
staff which minimized the cost of
the project.
Department:
Treatment
Financial: Cumulative Budget:
Cumulative Spent:
$317,250
$309,288
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$0
$0
Reclamation
N/A
Share:
Other Entities:
N/A
Permits Required:

N/A

Challenges:

Unknown quantity of debris in
Digester No. 1
• Digester 1 completed
• Digester 2 completed
Synagro WWT

Schedule:
Contractor:

Project Number:
Project Name:
Project Location:
Project
Manager:
Status:
Project
Description:

18-08
Standby Power Reliability Project
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Treanor/Foley

Contractor:

Quinn Power Systems

Startup Scheduled for January
This project involves purchasing a
trailer mounted 500kW generator to
serve as a full back up to the existing
standby system in case the existing
750kW generator were to fail. The
Main Switchgear would be
reprogrammed to run off one
generator with a standby (instead of
the current split bus system). This
would allow removal of the existing
450kW generator (which has
obsolete controls and only powers
half the main Switchgear).
Department:
Treatment
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$469,202
$66,166
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$450,000
$46,964
Reclamation
N/A
Share:
Other Entities:
N/A
Permits
Air Board Permit
Required:
Challenges:
N/A
Schedule:
• Design to be completed in 2019
• Construction anticipated for
2020
Consultants:
Beecher Engineering
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Photo: Existing Gas Conditioning System

Photo: Areas of Potential Annexation

Project Number:
Project Name:
Project Location:
Project Manager:
Status:
Project
Description:

18-11
Microturbine Integration Project
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Treanor/Foley
Online – Further Optimization
Overhaul of existing gas
conditioning system and controls
for the microturbines. The existing
gas conditioning system has been
having repeated mechanical
failures which reduces the amount
of time the Microturbines are in
service. Significant overhaul of
controls are needed to integrate
the new 65kW turbine. CAWD is
looking into a new gas conditioning
system in case the existing system
is not sufficient to treat the gas
after the larger 65kW turbine is
placed in service.
Department:
Treatment
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$676,000
$35,299
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$100,000
$14,518
Reclamation
N/A
Share:
Other Entities:
N/A
Permits Required: Air Board Permit
Challenges:
Complexity of System
Schedule:
• Pre-Design to be completed in
2019/2020
• Final Design to be completed in
2020/2021-Construction
anticipated for 2021
Consultants:
Frisch Engineering (programming)
Contractor:

Project Number:
Project Name:

18-21, 19-04, 19-05, 19-09
2020 CAWD Sphere of Influence
(SOI) Amendment & Annexation
Proposal
Project Location: Collection System
Project Manager: Lathér
Status:
LAFCO Application Submitted –
Anticipated Approval April 2021
Project
The project will provide access for
Description:
homes and businesses currently on
septic systems and add
approximately 350 connections to
the District at build-out. Interested
areas include Corona Road, Riley
Ranch, Carmel Valley Manor and
Yankee Point & Otter Cove.
Department:
Collections
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$0
$49,000
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$0
$0
** No Budget included for Annexations b/c costs will be
recouped through annexation fees.
Permits
Environmental Review, LAFCO
Required:
Annexation Approval
Challenges:
#18-21 Getting homeowner groups
to form a Corona Road Assessment
District to pay for infrastructure that
is needed to connect to our sewer
system.
Schedule:
Applied for LAFCO Annexation in
August 2020.
Consultant:
Denise Duffy & Associates

TBD
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Photo: Eucalyptus trees on South Side of Treatment Plant
Project Number:
Project Name:

18-28
Perimeter Tree Plan and
Implementation
Project Location:
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Project Manager: Treanor
Status:
Determining Tree Types / Final
Landscape Plan for Interior
Project
Planning and landscaping around
Description:
the treatment plant. This will
include looking into possibly
replacing the non-native eucalyptus
trees around the perimeter of the
treatment plant with native tree
species. The project will start with
a study and a plan to determine
costs, sequencing schedule, and
visual impacts. The eucalyptus trees
around the plant have ongoing
maintenance costs which may be
offset in the long term with
different type of tree screening.
Purpose is to improve security
around plant perimeter.
Department:
Treatment
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$213,000
$2,897
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$0
$0
Reclamation:
N/A
Other Entities:
N/A
Permits Required: Currently unknown (In Study Phase)

Photo: Existing totes used for Sulfuric Acid storage and
Feed
Project Number:
Project Name:

18-26
RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and
Containment
Project Location:
Reclamation – MF/RO
Project Manager:
Treanor
Status:
On Hold
Project
Code compliance upgrades for
Description:
existing acid chemical storage and
feed system used by Reclamation
for enhancing RO recovery. Project
includes code compliant secondary
containment and separation of
dissimilar chemicals.
Department:
Treatment
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$358,506
$68,506
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$290,000
$0
Reclamation
100%
Share:
Other Entities:
Reclamation Project
Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification
Challenges:
N/A
Schedule:
• Bid second half of 2020
• Construction 2021
Consultants:
Trussell Technologies, Inc
Contractor:
TBD

Challenges:
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Schedule:
Consultants:

Time it will take for new trees to
grow up that will fully screen
treatment plant from view
• Study to occur in 2020
Scott Hall Landscape Design

Contractor:

TBD

Photo: Old Flood Door in Headworks Basement
Project Number:

19-01

Project Number:
Project Name:
Project Location:
Project Manager:
Status:

Project Name:

Critical Process Onsite Flood
Adaptations
Project Location:
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Project Manager:
Waggoner
Status:
Minor Work Proceeding
Project
There are a few areas of the WWTP
Description:
that may be vulnerable to
inundation during a 100-year river
flooding event. Although the actual
impact to the process in the event
of inundation of these areas may
be minor, it would be prudent to
mitigate any possible impacts of
flooding on the treatment process.
The areas that could be further
adapted to avoid flooding
inundation are: Headworks
Basement Flood Door, Influent
Access Hatch, Secondary Effluent
Diversion Structure Hatches,
Chlorine Contact Channel Hatches,
Waste Gas Burner Operations.
Department:
Treatment
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$86,000
$21,788
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$65,000
$0
Reclamation
15% Reclamation
Share:
Other Entities:
Reclamation Project
Permits Required: Coastal Commission Notification
Challenges:
N/A
Schedule:
• Planning in 2019
• Modifications in 2021
Consultants:
N/A
Contractor:
TBD

Project
Description:

19-02
Update Pretreatment Ordinance
Pretreatment/Collections
Lathér/De Ocampo/Waggoner
Draft Ordinance is ready for
committee review.
Prepare a Pre-Treatment
Ordinance that is in compliance
with the current standard of
practice and the State Water
Resources requirements.

Department:
Treatment
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$0
$0
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$0
$0
Reclamation
N/A
Share:
Other Entities:
N/A
Permits Required: N/A
Challenges:
None
Schedule:
• Complete Draft Ordinance for
review in September 2020.
• Committee review of
Ordinance in March 2021
Consultants:
None
Contractor:
None
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Photo: View gravity pipe in Carmel easement
Project
Number:
Project Name:
Project
Location:
Project
Manager:
Status:

Photo: Entrance to Carmel Valley Manor

19-03

Project Number:
Project Name:

19-08
Carmel Valley Manor Pipeline
and Pump Station
Project Location:
Collection System
Project Manager:
Lathér
Status:
Design by Owner – Construction
Planned upon Completion of
Annexation
Project Description: Sewer extension project to be
completed by the owners of
Carmel Valley Manor to connect
to CAWD’s sewer system.
Department:
Collections
Financial:
Cumulative
Cumulative
Budget:
Spent:
$0
$180
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$0
$180
Reclamation Share:
0%
Other Entities:
Permits Required:
County Encroachment Permit
Challenges:
Schedule:
Consultants:
MNS and Rincon are working for
Carmel Valley Manor to permit
and design the project.
Contractor:
N/A

Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer
Improvements
Collection System
Lathér

Amending contracts to Include
removal of existing Pipe
Project
The project will replace 1300 feet of
Description:
Ductile Iron Pipe (DIP) on an aerial
span and eight manholes by
constructing a small pump station at
the end of Mariposa Drive. This
project is located on an easement
parallel to Ribera Road and was
originally installed in the early 1960's.
Department:
Collections
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$1,259,102
$298,698
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$185,445
$72,160
Permits
Coastal Permit and Environmental
Required:
Review
Challenges:
Redirecting the sewer to the pump
station without requiring booster
pumps for individual houses.
Schedule:
Design FY20/21. Construct FY21/22.
Consultants:
SRT Consultants
Contractor:
TBD
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Photo: Existing air diffuser system
Project Number:
Project Name:

Photo: View of proposed sewer line realignment
Project Number:
Project Name:

19-13
Upper Rancho Cañada Pipe
Realignment
Project Location:
Collection System
Project Manager:
Lathér
Status:
Bid Phase
Project Description:
This project relocates an
existing sewer trunk line that
serves the eastern most assets
of the District and is located
within the proposed County
Park at Rancho Cañada. The
trunk line varies in size from 12
inch to 8 inch diameter and is
made of Truss pipe material
that was installed in the early
1970's. The pipe is damaged in
many locations, has capacity
issues, and was identified as a
priority in the Asset
Management Plan.
Department:
Collection
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$1,822,991
$136,074
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$1,760,000
$73,084
Other Entities:
Monterey Regional Park District
Permits Required:
Environmental Review
Challenges:
Providing a design that allows
CAWD access to assets and is
acceptable to the Park District.
Schedule:
Design FY 19/20. Construct FY
20/21.
Consultants:
MNS Engineering
Rincon Environmental

Project Location:
Project Manager:

19-19
WWTP – Aeration Basin
Improvements
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Waggoner

Status:

Materials Onsite Pending
Installation in Spring
Project
The Aeration Basins 4A & 4B need
Description:
to have additional diffusers installed
to ensure the proper air (oxygen)
transfer into the wastewater to
support the aerobic microorganisms
in the basins. Another needed
improvement is to prevent short
circuiting of flows in the basins. The
installation of one curtain baffle in
each tank will eliminate the shortcircuiting issue.
Department:
Treatment
Budget Status:
Budget: $40,000.00
Actual to Date: $0.00
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$127,000
$87,000
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$40,000
$8,463.07
Reclamation
Estimated at 0% of project cost.
Share:
Other Entities:
CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project
Permits
Required:
Challenges:

No permits as project is
preventative maintenance project
Weather conditions and Scheduling

Schedule:

•
•
•

Consultants:
Contractor:
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Design is completed
Materials ordered and received
Construction anticipated for
Spring 2021
In house (Design Plant Engineer),
Environetics for Baffles
TBD

Photo: Carmel River Floodplain Restoration and
Environmental Enhancement (CRFREE)
Project Number:
Project Name:
Project Location:
Project Manager:
Status:

19-21
Carmel River FREE Mitigation
Carmel River Lagoon
Treanor
Design/CEQA/Developing Funding
Agreement
Project
The CRFREE Project intends to
Description:
create a new river channel in the
Carmel River lagoon floodplain
which will significantly impact
existing wastewater pipelines which
cross the lagoon. To fully mitigate
impacts from CRFREE the pipelines
which are currently crossing over a
portion of the lagoon are proposed
to be installed underground using
Horizontal Directional Drilling
construction methods.
Department:
Engineering
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$0
$21,033
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$0
$3,944
** No Budget included b/c project is being funded by
CRFREE initiated grants
Reclamation
0%
Share:
Other Entities:
Monterey County
Permits Required: Coastal Commission, CA Fish and
Wildlife, Army Corp of Engineers,
Reginal Water Quality Control
Board (RWQCB)
Challenges:
Construction near Environmentally
Sensitive Habitat and obtaining new
Easement from State Parks
Schedule:
• Design and CEQA anticipated
completion Summer 2021
• Construction anticipated in
Summer 2022
Consultants:
Design: Kennedy Jenks and Staheli
Trenchless
CEQA: Johnson Marigot
Contractor:
Pending

Photo: Admin Building Permit Desk
Project Number:
Project Name:

20-01
Administration Building COVID
Control Improvements
Project Location:
Administration Building
Project Manager:
Treanor/Foley
Status:
HVAC Complete / Entry Doors
Installation in March
Project
HVAC Improvements to control
Description:
airborne viruses, enclosure of
permit desk to eliminate contact
between staff and visitors.
Department:
Administration
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$75,000
$34,150
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$75,000
$34,150
Reclamation
0%
Share:
Other Entities:
None
Permits Required: Building Permits
Challenges:
Emerging science around COVID-19
Schedule:
• Design June and July 2020
• Construction anticipated in
February 2021
Consultants:
Design: Davner Engineering
Contractor:
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Coast Counties Glass

Photo: River Watch logo
Project Number:
Project Name:
Project Location:
Project Manager:
Status:
Project
Description:

20-05
River Watch Agreement
Collection System
Lathér
Work in Progress
Work with collections to provide
data that is needed to satisfy the
milestones in the agreement with
River Watch.
Department:
Collections
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
N/A
N/A
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
N/A
N/A
Reclamation
0%
Share:
Other Entities:
River Watch
Permits Required: none
Challenges:
CCTV Schedule. The Board agreed
to increase staffing by 1 FTE to
assist us in meeting the required
schedule. New employee started
11-20. Received 1 yr. extension due
to COVID-19.
Schedule:
Due date June 2023
Consultants:

Photo: WWTP Stormwater Pump Station
Project Number:
Project Name:

20-02
WWTP Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan Update
Project Location: Treatment Plant
Project Manager: Treanor/Dias
Status:
In Study Phase
Project
Update to the existing CAWD
Description:
WWTP Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan as required by the
National Pollution Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES)
General Stormwater Permit
Department:
Treatment
Financial: Cumulative Budget: Cumulative Spent:
$35,000
$0
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$35,000
$0
Reclamation
0%
Share:
Other Entities:
None
Permits Required: Part of General Stormwater Permit
Challenges:
None
Schedule:
• Plan Development in 2020
Consultants:
Kennedy Jenks Consultants
Contractor:

Contractor:

N/A
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N/A

Photo: LT Capital Schedule
Project Number:
Project Name:
Project Location:
Project Manager:
Status:
Project
Description:
Department:
Projection of
Total Capital
Costs
$60,000,000
Financial:

20-06
Collections 20-Year CIP
Collection System
Lathér
Work in Progress
Utilize updated sewer line
inspection information and flow
modeling to develop a 20-year
Construction Improvement Plan
Collections
Construction
Administration
Costs:
Costs: $10,000,000
$50,000,000
(20% engineering,
legal, admin)
Cumulative
Cumulative Spent:
Budget:
N/A
N/A
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
N/A
N/A
0%

Reclamation
Share:
Other Entities:
Permits Required:
Challenges:
Schedule:
Consultants:
Contractor:

Photo: Looking at Pump Station Exterior
Project Number:
Project Name:

20-07
Bay/Scenic Pump Station
Rehabilitation
Project Location:
Collection System
Project Manager:
Lathér
Status:
Soliciting Consultant Proposals
Project Description: Remodel the interior of the pump
station and update SCADA panel
to remove from areas prone to
flooding.
Department:
Collections
Financial:
Cumulative
Cumulative Spent:
Budget:
$0
$600,000
FY Budget:
FY Spent:
$100,000
$0
Reclamation Share: 0%
Other Entities:
Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal
Permits Required:
Exemptions from CEQA & Coastal
Challenges:
Traffic Control
Schedule:
Design 2021, Construct 2022
Consultants:
Pending

River Watch
none
2020 - 2040
West Yost
N/A

Contractor:
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Pending

Photo: Pipe Bursting Limits on Scenic
Project Number:
Project Name:

20-08
Scenic Rd Pipe Bursting Ocean to Bay
Project Location:
Collection System
Project Manager:
Lathér
Status:
Soliciting Consultant
Proposals
Project Description:
Replace approximately 4,000
feet of existing clay pipe with
PVC pipe and rehabilitate
manholes.
Department:
Collections
Financial:
Cumulativ Cumulative Spent:
e Budget: $0
$1,400,00
0
FY
FY Spent:
Budget:
$0
$200,000
Reclamation Share:
0%
Other Entities:
Carmel-by-the-Sea, Coastal
Permits Required:
Exemptions from CEQA &
Coastal
Challenges:
Traffic Control
Schedule:
Design 2021, Construct 2022
Consultants:
Pending
Contractor:

Pending
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STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Ed Waggoner
Operations Superintendent

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Monthly Operations Report – December 2020

RECOMMENDATION
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.
DISCUSSION
Plant Operation
Treatment Plant:
•

•

•

•

The Treatment Plant operations staff has continued finishing up projects and
concentrating on Preventative Maintenance Work Orders during the month of
December. Including the implementation of the Operations Flood Preparation
Standard Operating Procedures from the Plant Engineer.
(Project #18-07) Cleaning Old Digester #2 -Plant staff has completed the
removal of the final .75 feet of solids, grit, and other debris from the floor of old
digester #2. Staff has finished the installation of plumbing fixtures to allow for
storage of storm water runoff from the treatment plant site.
Staff completed removing the wooden toe guards around the Aeration Basins
4A and 4B. These wooden toe guards have been replaced with aluminum toe
guards on Aeration Basins 4A and 4B walkways and work areas.
During the month of December COVID-19 cases increased in Monterey County
and elsewhere. The Operations and Laboratory staff had multiple personnel
isolating at home due to potential exposures or related symptoms of COVID19. Fortunately, no Operations or Laboratory personnel have had a confirmed
case of COVID-19. The District’s COVID-19 Exposure Control and Disease
Preparedness Response plan was followed and updated as staff continues to
learn and adjust to new information on COVID-19, including new Cal/OSHA
rules and regulations.

120

•

•

A new Operations and Laboratory staffing schedule was developed in
December because of the current COVID-19 situation, starting January 1, 2021
thru June 30, 2021. This scheduling maintains three operators, one Laboratory
analyst and the Operations Superintendent working on swing shift. This will
keep key positions available if there is an outbreak of COVID-19 on either of
the two shifts.
December had low influent flows at the treatment facility with a daily average
of 0.986 Million Gallons per Day (MGD). Normal flows from the past would be
in the range of 1.1 MGD to 1.3 MGD. Staff determined the lower influent flows
were a result of the new Shelter-in-Place and lack of any substantial rainfall
during the month of December.

Reclamation:
•

•

•

•

Staff ordered 125 Scinor SMT600-S26 Modules to complete one Micro Filtration
cell replacement set if the current modules become inoperable. One hundred
Scinor SMT600-S26 modules arrived the week of September 20, 2020. The
remaining 25 Modules arrived at the plant site and were placed into storage on
December 15, 2020.
Staff has continued preventative maintenance work on pumps, motors, and
any equipment that needs maintenance for the Micro Filtration and Reverse
Osmosis Systems.
Staff completed Clean-in-Place (CIP) on Micro Filtration Cells one, two, and
three. All cells cleaned successfully with Trans Membrane Pressures (TMPs)
pressures ranging between 2 to 4.2 psi.
The Operations Supervisor, Operations Superintendent, and the Plant
Engineer received and reviewed the Quarterly Microfiltration and Reverse
Osmosis Report from Trussell Technology. A meeting was set in early January
with other Reclamation partners for review and discussion with the report’s
conclusions and recommendations.

Training:
•

•
•

Staff is continuing to complete online training at the treatment facility from
Target Solutions as Carmel Area Wastewater District implements its new
safety policies for the Exposure Control Plan Updates for the COVID19 virus
at the treatment facility.
Staff resumed weekly tailgate safety meetings with Collections leading the way
by holding the meetings in the truck bays so social distancing can be practiced.
Operations and Laboratory staff joined a COVID-19 update policy meeting and
training on December 12 at the Collections bay.
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Capital Improvement:
• Staff continues working with Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor (CAWD), on
Project #18-01, the Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding
Tank Replacement Project for the following areas: Influent Pump Station,
Headworks, Blower Building, Chlorination/Dechlorination Building, Effluent
Building, Digester No. 1, Digester No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering
Building.
Meetings Attended
•

•

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) meetings with CAWD
Staff and Frish Engineering Incorporated continue the implementation of
screen and alarm improvements.
On December 22, 2020, plant staff and main office held a COVID-19 Christmas
Luncheon and White Elephant Gift Exchange at the treatment facility and main
office. Plant staff wish to thank the CAWD Board for their support on the
Luncheon and President White’s gift cards for all staff to enjoy.

Discharge Permit Violations
•
•

•

There were no Reclamation Permit 93-72 discharge violations for the month of
November 2020.
There were no Violations of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (NPDES) Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 within the
month of November 2020.
Staff has received no feedback from Central Coast Regional Water Quality
Control Board on the submitted Toxicity Reduction Evaluation (TRE) Work
Plan for Order No. RCA0047996 as set forth in Section V.2.a. Toxic Reduction
Requirements on November 11, 2020. This plan is currently under review by
the Central Coast Executive Officer to be certified for future use if needed.

FUNDING
N/A-Informational item only
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STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Monthly Maintenance Report – December 2020

RECOMMENDATION
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.
DISCUSSION
Maintenance Projects in Progress/Completed
•

Pump 2 in the equalization basin was removed from service due to a seal leak
after the annual inspection was performed. New seals and bearings have been
installed and the impeller is being upgraded to match pump 1 for better
efficiency.

•

(Project 18-05) Work continues by staff and Frisch engineering on Supervisory
Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system. 50% of the SCADA screens for
the treatment plant have been completed and alarming migrated to the cellular
alarm auto dialer. Completed screens include influent, headworks, digester,
secondary system and dewatering. Upcoming screens include aeration, blowers,
effluent and chemical dosing.

•

The dewatering screwpress cyclo gear drive was replaced. The unit was
intermittently tripping the controller. The unit failed prematurely and will be
sent in for analysis since the oil was regularly analyzed and changed as per
manufacturer’s maintenance schedule. It will then be repaired and retained as a
spare.
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Upcoming Maintenance Projects
•

(Project 18-11) The exhaust components arrived for the 30-kilowatt microturbine.
The core drilling and installation are scheduled for January/February. The 30kilowatt microturbine will then be able to run independent from the 65-kilowatt
unit. Currently the 65-kilowatt unit is online and utilizing all the digester gas
production.

•

A replacement flow meter was ordered for the natural gas line to the digester boiler.
Once installed it will be integrated into the SCADA system and provide real time
flow values when the boiler is consuming natural gas. The existing flow meter is
only capable of locally displaying flow values.

•

Staff determined through preventive maintenance that the digester mixer pump
has higher than desired oil consumption in the seal chamber. A replacement seal
has been purchased and the work is scheduled for early February.

Staff Development
•

Maintenance staff has signed up for online electrical and instrumentation courses
through TPC Training (Training-Performance-Compliance).

•

Collections and Maintenance staff are being trained to load programs and
troubleshoot Programmable Logic Controller (PLC) faults. This will provide
multiple staff with the skills and knowledge to be able to resolve PLC faults with
remote support from our systems integrator during off hour emergencies.
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Work Order Metrics

Preventive Maintenance
Total Work Orders Generated
Total Work Orders Closed/Done
Total Work Orders Still Open
Percentage of Work Orders Completed

311
232
79
74.60%

Corrective Maintenance

Emergency
Critical
Urgent
Routine
Projects

1
9
15
14
8

FUNDING
N/A- Informational item only
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STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

General Engineering

RECOMMENDATION
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.
DISCUSSION
This report is provided to update the Board on current engineering activities during the
months of December 2020 & January 2021.
General Engineering
The Principal Engineer continues to work on projects related to the 2020 Annexation,
including Carmel Valley Manor and Corona Road. Carmel Valley Manor (CVM) is
continuing to work on their project to connect to the District and plan to construct in 2021.
Corona Road representatives and the Principal Engineer have decided to select Monterey
Bay Engineers, Inc. to be the Assessment Engineer and Denise Duffy & Associates to
provide the environmental update needed for the project specific to Corona Road. The
representatives are working to get initial funding for the project reports and will come to
the Board in the near future to request that CAWD manage the contracts in anticipation of
forming an Assessment District.
The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) has determined our application for the
Annexation. The County of Monterey was not able to schedule the approval of a Zero
Property Tax Transfer by the Board of Supervisors in December 2020. We are anticipating
that this will be done in January 2021. This is one of the last items that need to be
completed prior to taking the annexation proposal to the LAFCO Board for approval.
We plan to include a community workshop on the February Board meeting to discuss the
annexation and notify affected homeowners of the public meeting.
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The Yankee Point/Spindrift agreement for CAWD to perform contract management for a
feasibility study to be performed by MNS Engineers is once again in Mr. Dan Keig’s court.
The General Manager and Mr. Keig’s attorney have accepted a new agreement and we are
hopeful that we may kick off the project soon.
The Principal Engineer and Collections Superintendent have obtained a cost estimate from
a contractor for the additional labor needed to remove the cast iron pipe and supports as
part of the Carmel Meadows Pipe Replacement Project. It is estimated that the removal of
the pipe will be on the order of $400,000-$500,000. The Principal Engineer will be returning
to the Board in February with a contract amendment for the additional environmental and
engineering to add removal of the pipeline to the project.
The Pretreatment Ordinance has been provided to the Ordinance Committee for review
and the Principal Engineer will be working with the members of the committee to select a
date for meeting to discuss the ordinance.

FUNDING
N/A- Informational item only
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Resolutions
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Staff Report
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Barbara Buikema, General Manager

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Health Insurance Benefits 2021

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended the Board pass a resolution to ratify actions of the Salary and Benefits
Committee in approving a 50% split in the rate increase between the District and
Employees and to obtain health insurance proposals from different providers for 2022.

DISCUSSION
Health Insurance renews on a calendar year basis; therefore, the District has negotiated
with employees on an annual basis for this one item.
The District offers both the HSA 3000 plan or high deductible health savings plan and a
classic PPO or preferred provider plan. The premium increase on both plans is 8.75% for
2021. The District funding formula offers 100% employee only premium and 90% of
dependent coverage based upon the HSA plan premium. In addition, the District offers a
lump sum amount to allow employees to fund their health savings account or to offset the
higher cost of the PPO plan.
This year the employee negotiating teams agreed to accept 50% of the premium increase
but in return they asked for the District to obtain health insurance proposals from other
vendors in time for 2022.
Base Plan – Anthem HSA 3000
2020
EE Only
$634.10
EE + 1 Dep
$1,268.19
EE + 2 or more
$1,648.64

2021
$689.59
$1,379.16
%1,792.90
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$ Increase
$55.49
$110.97
$144.26

% Increase
8.75%
8.75%
8.75%

50% Increase
$27.75
$55.49
$72.13

The health insurance premium was effective January 1, 2021. The Salary & Benefits
Committee met on December 15,, 2020 for the final time on this issue and agreed to
authorize the 50/50 split in premium cost and to obtain additional health insurance
proposals for 2022 with the understanding that it would come before the full Board at the
January 2021 meeting.
FISCAL IMPACT
The premium increase amounts to an additional $1,230/mo. The 20-21 budget allowed for a
9% premium increase.
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-01
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE SALARY AND
BENEFITS COMMITTEE TO SPLIT THE HEALTH INSURANCE RATE INCREASE
50%/50% WITH EMPLOYEES, EFFECTVE JANUARY 1, 2021
-oOo-

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors wishes to split the health insurance premium
increase with employees 50/50); and
WHEREAS, the Employee negotiators accepted a 50/50 split but also requested
the District submit for health insurance proposals in time for 2022 calendar year; and
WHEREAS, the Salary and Benefits Committee agreed to said changes and
authorized implementation of new rates on January 1, 2021.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Carmel
Area Wastewater District, does determine, find and order as follows, that the Salary and
Benefits Committee’s decision to approve the health insurance rate increase was
appropriate and ratifies their decision along with employee request of obtaining
additional insurance proposals in time for 2022.
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on January 28, 2021 by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
_____________________________
President of the Board

ATTEST:

____________________________
Secretary to the Board
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Staff Report
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Barbara Buikema, General Manager

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Section 115 Trust Request for Proposals (RFP) Result

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended the Board pass a resolution to ratify the recommendation of the Pension
Committee and accept the results of the Section 115 RFP in favor of CalPERS.

DISCUSSION
At the regular October 2020 Board meeting there was a request to send out a formal
RFP for a Section 115 Trust.
The RFP was circulated to five firms known to offer Section 115 Trust services for a
four-week period. Three firms responded as follows:
CalPERS
Keenan Financial Services
PARS (Public Agency Retirement Services)
PFM (Public Financial Management)
Sage View Advisory Group

Response rec’d
Response rec’d
Response rec’d
No response
No response

The RFPs were reviewed in four categories: Firm Qualifications, Fee/Charges, Firm
Reputation, and Timeliness. All firms were judged to be adequate in Qualifications,
Reputation and Timeliness. However, of the three firms that submitted proposals there
was variety in their fee structure, with PARS building their fee structure upon size
amount kept on deposit. Because CAWD will likely remain a smaller depositor than
larger entities, the fee becomes increasingly important.
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The Pension Committee met on January 7, 2021 and reviewed the options and were
unanimous is supporting CalPERS as the lowest cost and equally qualified firm. The
Committee recommended taking their recommendation to the full Board on January 28,
2021.

FISCAL IMPACT
None, at this time. Staff will ask for funding for the Section 115 trust separately.
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-02
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND RATIFYING THE RECOMMENDATION OF
THE PENSION COMMITTEE TO ACCEPT THE RESULTS OF THE SECTION 115
TRUST REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS IN FAVOR OF CALPERS
-oOo-

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to prefund its CalPERS pension
benefits with an IRS Code §115 California Employers Pension Prefunding Trust
(CEPPT); and
WHEREAS, the District submitted a Request for Proposals (RFP) to five different
firms known to provide Section 115 Trust services and received three responses; and
WHEREAS, the Pension Committee met on January 7, 2021 and recommended
that the District accept the RFP from CalPERS.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Carmel
Area Wastewater District, does hereby determine, find and order as follows: the District
accept CalPERS as its provider of Section 115 Trust services based on the results of the
RFP and the Pension Committee recommendation.
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on January 28, 2021 by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
_____________________________
President of the Board

ATTEST:

____________________________
Secretary to the Board
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Staff Report
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Barbara Buikema, General Manager

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Budget Amendment to Fund a Section 115 Trust in the Amount of $500K

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended the Board pass a resolution to ratify the recommendation of the Pension
Committee and authorize a budget amendment of $500K to fund a Section 115 Trust.

DISCUSSION
At the Pension Committee meeting of January 7, 2021 there was a recommendation to
initiate funding of a Section 115 Trust with $500K from the Capital Reserve Account.
The Committee’s reasons for funding a Section 115 Trust follow:
• The investment trust will allow the District to achieve better investment returns
than currently earned at the Monterey County Treasury and Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF). Investments can be tailored to short- or long-term
needs.
• The Section 115 assets can be used as an emergency source of funds for pension
related costs under adverse economic conditions. It may be considered as a tool
to smooth budget expenditures in that it functions like a rate stabilization fund.
• Funds in a Section 115 Trust are protected from diversion for other uses and
pressure to use funds in other ways is curtailed.
• When contribution rate rise, assets can be transferred to the retirement system to
pay of offset contribution rate increases.
The rationale for selecting $500K as the initial funding threshold follows:
• CalPERS investment returns in 19-20 were 4.7% or 2.3% short of the discount
rate. The early CalPERS analysis shows the District’s UAL will be $160K for the
Classic plan and $13,091 for PEPRA that year.
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•
•

The District’s UAL for 20-21 is $38,196 for the Classic Plan and $352 for the
PEPRA Plan. (Total $38,548)
The recommendation is a split 70/30 with the Moderate/Moderately Conservative
portfolio option receiving 70% and the Moderately Conservative/Conservative
portfolio receiving 30%. Paying off the UAL over the next two years is $211K or
40% of the initial suggested $500K deposit.

Finally, the Committee recommends that it be responsible for suggested annual funding
to the Section 115 Trust when it reviews the 4th quarter portfolio performance of the
SAM plan. This will allow for sufficient time to forward its recommendation to the
Budget Committee.
FISCAL IMPACT
The amount will come from the Capital Reserve which had a balance of $15.7M at the
end of November.
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-03
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND RATIFYING THE RECOMMENDATION OF
THE PENSION COMMITTEE TO AUTHORIZE A BUDGET AMENDMENT IN
THE AMOUNT OF $500K TO FUND A SECTION 115 TRUST
-oOo-

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to prefund its CalPERS pension
benefits with an IRS Code §115 California Employers Pension Prefunding Trust
(CEPPT); and
WHEREAS, the Pension Committee met on January 7, 2021 and made a
recommendation of $500K; and
WHEREAS, the Pension Committee convinced the Board that the Trust will
allow the District to achieve better investment returns than it currently earns with
Monterey County.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Carmel
Area Wastewater District, does hereby determine, find and order as follows the District
make a budget amendment in the amount of $500K from its Capital Reserves account to
fund the Section 115 Trust.
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on January 28, 2021 by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
_____________________________
President of the Board

ATTEST:
____________________________
Secretary to the Board
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STAFF REPORT

To:

Board of Directors

From:

Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Plan for the “WWTP Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank
Replacement Project” (Project #18-01) Pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA)

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board of Directors:
1. Review and consider the attached Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND)
and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the Waste Water Treatment
Plant (WWTP) Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project;
2. Find that based on the IS/MND and the public review that there is no substantial evidence
that the project will have a significant effect on the environment and that the mitigated
negative declaration reflects the District’s independent judgment and analysis;
3. Adopt the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) pursuant to the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines;
4. Adopt the accompanying Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan
DISCUSSION
The Draft CEQA IS/MND for Project #18-01 was submitted to the State Clearinghouse for public
comment on April 9th, 2020. No comments were received from the general public or from any
public or regulatory agencies. In accordance with State Assembly Bill 52 (Native Americans:
California Environmental Quality Act), CAWD staff contacted 11 potentially interested Native
American Tribes to inform them of the project and to initiate direct consultations if desired. One
tribe, the Ohlone/Costanoan-Esselen Nation (OCEN), requested consultation. During
consultation with OCEN several mitigation measures for potential impacts to buried cultural
resources were added to the project, including cultural sensitivity training, and incorporation of
onsite monitoring by an OCEN representative. An archaeological study for the WWTP was
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conducted prior to concluding the consultation with OCEN to inform all parties of the likelihood
of finding cultural resource buried within the project area. The archaeological study concluded
that, although the likelihood is low, there is a potential that archaeological resources exist within
the project area and therefore mitigation measures are necessary to avoid potential impacts.
Mitigation measures that were recommended in the archaeological study and consultation with
OCEN were included in the project and the revised Draft IS/MND was recirculated on November
23rd for public comment. No comments were received on the recirculated Draft IS/MND. The
inclusion of mitigations for buried cultural resources are included in Section 4.5 – Cultural
Resources and in the MMRP of the attached FINAL IS/MND.
BRIEF PROJECT OVERVIEW
Project #18-01 is a capital improvement project at the WWTP which intends to maintain the
facilities in good operating condition by replacing certain key pieces of electrical and mechanical
equipment. The project involves replacement of select electrical and mechanical equipment with
in-kind or substantially similar equipment. The new equipment will be installed to serve the
existing Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Chlorination Building, and Effluent Pump Station.
Not all equipment in these areas is being replaced, and no structural changes are being made to
the existing buildings. The project also includes a new electrical feed to the existing Laboratory
Building to connect it to the WWTP Standby Power grid (so that the laboratory can function
without interruption during a power outage).
Furthermore, the project includes demolition of three existing concrete sludge tanks and a small
storage building, and the installation of one new sludge tank in the location of one demolished
tank. The new tank storage capacity will be about 75,000 gallons. The three sludge tanks being
demolished are about 70,000 gallons, 188,000 gallons, and 70,000 gallons respectively.
CLOSING
The Final IS/MND is attached for the Board review to facilitate adopting a Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the project in accordance with § 15074 of CEQA Guidelines. A Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) is included with the IS/MND and is also attached. The
MMRP summarizes the mitigation measures that must be adopted by the Board in accordance
with § 15074 of CEQA Guidelines.
FUNDING
Costs for recording the Mitigated Negative Declaration at the County Clerk office will be applied
to the Long-Term Capital Improvements Project #18-01 FY20/21 budget.

Attachments (attached under separate cover):
•
•

FINAL Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-04
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A MITIGATED NEGATIVE
DECLARATION AND MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING
PLAN FOR THE “WWTP ELEC/MECH REHAB AND SLUDGE
HOLDING TANK REPLACEMENT PROJECT” (PROJECT #18-01)
PURSUANT TO THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT
-o0oWHEREAS, pursuant to Article 6 (Sections 15070-15075) of the California
Environmental Quality Act guidelines, the Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD),
as Lead Agency, has followed the process set forth in these sections and as such has
considered the Mitigated Negative Declaration, and
WHEREAS, a Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration was
filed with the County Clerk on November 17th, 2020, and noticed for public review, and
WHEREAS, the Revised Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration was submitted to
the State Clearinghouse and was posted on November 23rd, 2020, and
WHEREAS, the District published a Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated
Negative Declaration in the local newspaper and posted the Revised Draft Mitigated
Negative Declaration on the District’s website,
WHEREAS, the public review period occurred over 30 days where all documents
and project reports were available to the public for review, and
WHEREAS, no comments were received during the 30day review period, and
WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative
Declaration and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan and,
WHERAS, finds that there is no substantial evidence, based on the record as a
whole that would support a fair argument that the project, as designed and mitigated,
may have a significant environmental impact.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel
Area Wastewater District that it does hereby adopt the final Mitigated Negative
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Declaration and the accompanying Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the
“WWTP Elec/Mech Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project.”
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel
Area Wastewater District duly held on January 28, 2021, by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
________________________
President of the Board

ATTEST:
_______________________
Secretary of the Board
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STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Upper Rancho Cañada Sewer Relocation
Project #19-13

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve two resolutions as follows:
• Authorize the General Manager to enter into a contract with Rincon Consultants
for environmental services during construction for a not-to-exceed amount of
$281,846; and
• Authorize the General Manager to enter into a contract with MNS Engineering,
Inc. to provide engineering services during construction for $18,830.
DISCUSSION
The upper Rancho Cañada sewer is located within the Palo Corona Regional Park and has
been included in the CAWD Collections Department five-year Capital Improvement Plan
for sewer line replacement. This sewer line portion that is proposed to be replaced
includes pipe that varies in size from 8 to 12 inches and was constructed in the late 1960’s
to early 1970’s. In addition, a subdivision is proposed downstream of the project site that
will require relocating the sewer trunk line through the subdivision and the Monterey
Peninsula Regional Park District (MPRPD) has plans to develop the existing golf course
into a park.
The design and environmental permitting of the project is complete and CAWD has
advertised bidding. During construction there will be a need for engineering services by
MNS Engineers for review of submittals by the contractor and if changes or questions
arise. In addition, to comply with the environmental Mitigation Monitoring Plan, CAWD
will need guidance, surveys, monitoring, and inspections conducted in the field by Rincon
Consultants. Both MNS Engineers and Rincon Consultants have provided proposals for
their portion of the construction support services (attached).
Throughout the design process, staff have actively been meeting with the MPRPD General
Manager Rafael Payan and his staff, in order to discuss their preferred timing for
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construction, how to mitigate for their needs at the park and developing a revised
easement agreement to encompass the areas of pipeline that will be placed outside of the
existing easement. The agreement will be brought to the Board as a separate item.
FUNDING
The two proposals sum up to $300,676 and will be funded by the Collections Capital
Improvement budget. The 2020/2021 budget for this project is $1,760,000.

Attachment 1: Rincon Proposal
Attachment 2: MNS Proposal
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January 5, 2021
Project No: 20-10767
Rachel Lather, PE
Carmel Area Water District
P.O. Box 221428
Carmel, California 93922
Via email: lather@cawd.org
Subject:

Proposal to Provide Biological, Cultural, and Paleontological Services for the Palo
Corona Regional Park Sewer Replacement Project in Carmel Valley, Monterey County,
California

Dear Ms. Lather:
Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon) is pleased to provide this proposal to provide biological, cultural, and
paleontological services to the Carmel Area Water District (CAWD) for the Palo Corona Regional Park
Sewer Replacement Project (project) in Carmel Valley, Monterey County, California. We understand the
project includes the replacement of an existing sewer main with installation of a total of 4,240 linear (LF)
of new gravity sewer mains and 790 LF of 8-inch polyvinyl chloride (PVC) sewer main, at the former
Rancho Cañada Golf Course within Palo Corona Regional Park. Based on the information provided by
MNS, construction will require approximately 80 working days or 16 weeks. The scope of work outlined
below is limited to those mitigation measures applicable to biological, cultural, and paleontological
resources. At this time, Rincon understands that there will be no impacts to the concrete drainage
located at the far east end of the project site; therefore, mitigation measure BIO-10, a Jurisdictional
Delineation, will not be required and is not included in this scope. Rincon is proposing to provide
support on the following measures in the project Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program
(MMRP):
Biological Measures
▪ BIO-1
Worker Environmental Awareness Program
▪ BIO-2
Western Bumble Bee Preconstruction Survey
▪ BIO-3
California Red-legged Frog Preconstruction Survey
▪ BIO-3
California Red-legged Frog Monitoring
▪ BIO-6
Nesting Bird Survey
▪ BIO-7
Monterey Shrew Clearance Survey
▪ BIO-8
Western Pond Turtle Clearance Survey
Cultural and Paleontological Measures
▪ CULT-1
Archaeological and Native American Monitoring
▪ GEO-1
Paleontological Resources Monitoring
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Scope of Work
Pursuant to applicable regulations and the MMRP, this scope of work includes the following tasks:

Task 1

Worker Environmental Awareness Program

In accordance with Mitigation Measure (MM) BIO-1, all project personnel are required to attend a
Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP). Rincon will prepare training materials including a
presentation and handout to address all biological resources and relevant laws and regulations
pertaining to those resources that could occur on the project site. This program will include the biology
and general behavior of special-status species, their habitats, how they may be encountered within the
work area, measures being implemented to avoid and minimize impacts as they relate to the project,
and procedures to follow when they are encountered.
Rincon assumes that a single training can be provided at the start of construction. We assume that after
the initial training session, subsequent trainings for new construction personnel would be conducted in
tandem with biological monitoring to the extent feasible, or by trained construction staff. We have
budgeted ten (10) hours for the preparation of the training material and two (2) hours for an in-person
training. Rincon will maintain a list of signatures of all personnel who completed the initial WEAP
training for the CAWD’s records.

Task 2

Preconstruction Surveys and Resource Management

Subtask 2.1 Combined Nesting Bird and Bee Surveys
In accordance with MMs BIO-2 and BIO-6, a preconstruction survey for bees, nesting birds, including
tricolored blackbird, and raptors is required no more than 14 days prior to the onset of work. Rincon will
conduct up to two separate nesting bird preconstruction surveys, one at the Palo Corona Regional Park
and one within the neighborhoods at the east end. The survey will also include a search for western
bumble bee (note, the Sacramento Superior Court upheld a challenge to the decision by the California
Fish and Game Commission to designate four subspecies of bumble bees as candidates for protection
under the California Endangered Species Act [CESA], and this species is no longer considered a candidate
under the CESA). Each survey area shall include the entire disturbance area plus the applicable buffers
as applicable and accessible. The surveys will consist of a qualified Rincon biologist conducting a visual
inspection of the project site and vicinity, as is feasible depending on possible access and/or line-of-sight
constraints, to detect any suitable nesting locations and determine if any nests occur. The survey will
involve walking transects on the project site and buffers to maximize the area surveyed and potential for
observing a nest.

Subtask 2.2 Active Nest Management
If active nests are located, Rincon will notify the construction contractor and establish an avoidance
buffer zone from the nest based on the species, location, and microhabitat features (e.g., line of site to
the project area, but typically 50 feet for non-raptor bird species and at least 200 feet for raptor
species). If active nests are present, nest inspections and monitoring would be conducted a total of four
times over the nesting period to assess the status of the nest and determine at what point the nest has
become inactive, at which point work would be authorized to commence within the avoidance buffer.
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For the purposes of costing, Rincon has assumed up to four (4) active nests could be identified during
preconstruction surveys of the project.

Subtask 2.3 Reporting
Rincon will provide e-mail notifications of survey results following each survey. Upon completion of the
surveys, Rincon will prepare a single preconstruction survey report documenting the results of all
preconstruction surveys.

Task 3

Biological Monitoring

In accordance with MMs BIO-3, -7, and -8, Rincon will provide a qualified Biological Monitor for work
within the Palo Corona Regional Park. As part of daily monitoring activities, the biological monitor will
conduct pre-activity clearance surveys for California red-legged frog (BIO-3), Monterey shrew (in
suitable habitat [BIO-7]) and western pond turtle (BIO-8), inspection of open trenches and excavations,
relocation of non-special-status species and documentation of special-status species occurrences and
monitoring of any active nests (during nesting season). Rincon assumes construction activity will be
limited to eight (8) hours per day, and that construction monitoring will be 10 hours per day inclusive of
pre-activity clearance sweeps, travel and reporting.
The Biological Monitor will conduct a combined preconstruction survey for California red-legged frog
and western pond turtle in compliance with MMs BIO-6 and BIO-8 within 48 hours prior to construction.
Rincon assumes this survey may be completed the morning of the first day of work onsite.
Based on information provided by MNS, Rincon assumes full-time biological monitoring will be required
for up to 60 days (75% of the total 80-day construction period).
Daily monitoring logs summarizing construction activities, wildlife observations, communications with
CAWD or contractor personnel and photo-documentation of construction progress will be prepared and
submitted to CAWD upon request.

Task 4

Archaeological/Paleontological Monitoring

In accordance with MMs CR-1 and GEO-1, Rincon will provide up to 80, 8-hour days of archaeological
and paleontological monitoring for the project. One (1) cross-trained archaeological/paleontological
monitor will be present during all ground-disturbing activities. The monitor will inspect excavated areas,
including excavation, graded surfaces, and spoils piles. Field work will be conducted in accordance with
project safety requirements. All monitoring will be overseen by Rincon Senior Archaeologist Hannah
Haas, MA, Registered Professional Archaeologist (RPA), and Senior Paleontologist David Daitch, PhD.
The monitor will prepare daily monitoring logs that include a description of construction activities, hours
billed, and soil description (color, grain size, sediments, etc.). In the event cultural materials are
identified they will be noted in the logs and Rincon will immediately contact CAWD.
For the purposes of this scope of work and cost estimate, Rincon assumes that no archaeological,
paleontological, or Native American resources will be encountered that require collection, analysis,
and/or curation. A cost amendment will be required to evaluate the significance of any resource
discoveries and to prepare the necessary documentation. Should any additional monitoring days be
required beyond the 120 days scoped here, Rincon will complete the additional monitoring at a fully
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loaded day rate of $1,120 and/or weekly rate of $5,600. A half-day rate of $560 will be charged any time
the monitor is onsite for less than four hours or work is cancelled with less than 24 hours’ notice.

Task 5

Native American Monitoring

Rincon will retain a Native American monitor to provide up to 80, 8-hour days of Native American
monitoring for the project. One (1) Native American monitor will be present during all ground-disturbing
activities. The Native American monitor will inspect excavated areas, including excavation, graded
surfaces, and spoils piles. All field work will be conducted in accordance with project safety
requirements. For the purposes of this scope and cost estimate, Rincon assumes that we will
subcontract a local tribe to complete the Native American monitoring and that their fee will not exceed
$66,800, or roughly $835 per day. With Rincon’s standard 15% mark up, Native American monitoring
costs would be approximately $960 per day.
The Native American monitor will prepare daily monitoring logs that include a description of
construction activities, hours billed, and cultural materials identified, if any. The monitoring logs will be
reviewed as necessary by a Rincon senior archaeologist and filed within Rincon’s Monterey office.

Task 6

Archaeological Monitoring Technical Memorandum

Upon completion of the project, Rincon will prepare an Archaeological Monitoring Technical
Memorandum. The Archaeological Monitoring Technical Memorandum will describe the results,
analysis, and conclusions of the monitoring effort. The memorandum will be submitted to CAWD for
review and approval within 30 days following the completion of monitoring. Rincon will respond to one
round of consolidated comments on the draft Archaeological Monitoring Technical Memorandum from
CAWD. A copy of the final version of the memorandum will be submitted to CAWD and to the Northwest
Information Center within 30 days of approval of the draft memorandum.

Project Management and Coordination
Rincon’s Project Manager will be available for the duration of the project and will be available to answer
questions and provide clarifications on an as-needed basis to ensure expediency towards fulfilling
project requirements. Project management will include regular telephone and e-mail communications
with CAWD, oversight, management and scheduling of preconstruction surveys and compliance
monitors, coordination with Native American subconsultants and QA/QC of all technical work and
reporting. Rincon will also provide consistent control of program costs, schedule, staffing, and
deliverables under this task. The cost for project management are included in the task cost and
monitoring day rates.

Assumptions
▪

▪

Ground-disturbing activities associated with the project will occur for a duration of 80 working days,
and an archaeological monitor and Native American monitor will be needed for up to 8 hours per
working day.
No archaeological or tribal cultural resources will be discovered during monitoring and the current
scope of work and cost estimate does not include laboratory preparation, analysis, identification,
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▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

cataloging, and curation of any archaeological or Native American resources discovered during
monitoring.
Four hours will be charged per monitor for any day a monitor is on site for less than 4 hours or if
work is cancelled without 24 hours’ notice
One round of consolidated comments from CAWD will be addressed on the draft Archaeological
Monitoring Technical Memorandum.
All deliverables will be presented electronically, and no hard copy will be necessary (except the
WEAP handout).
Archaeological monitoring memorandum costs are based on negative findings.
The daily rate for the Native American monitor will not exceed $960, including Rincon’s standard
mark up.
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COST AND SCHEDULE
Rincon’s proposed budget for the above work program is outlined below in Table 1. Rincon proposes
this budget on a time and materials basis. A half day fee would be charged per monitor for any day a
monitor is on site for less than 4 hours or if work is cancelled without 24 hours’ notice. Rincon requests
a 72-hour notice (but not less than 48-hour notice) from CAWD for work requiring archaeological and
Native American monitoring.
We estimate that completion of the proposed scope of work identified above will require a not-toexceed budget of $281,846. The total cost for this work program will be dependent on the actual
construction schedule, and the total number of days during which ground disturbing activity would
require cultural, paleontological and Native American monitoring. We understand the total duration of
the project is anticipated to be 120 working days, and as such have accounted for cross-trained
cultural/paleontological monitor and native American monitor for the full duration; however, it is likely
that ground disturbing activity would occur over a shorter duration of time, and, if so the full budget
would not be expended. The WEAP training and preconstruction surveys would be performed on a time
and materials basis. Cultural monitoring will be performed at a daily rate as outlined under Task 3.
Native American monitoring would be billed as a direct expense (subconsultant fee), at the estimated
rates outlined in Task 4. We are prepared to begin this assignment immediately upon written
authorization through a mutually acceptable contract. Upon receiving written Notice to Proceed (NTP),
Rincon would initiate work on the WEAP training materials.
Thank you for your consideration of Rincon for this project. We look forward to the opportunity to work
with you and would welcome an opportunity to discuss the details of this proposal at your convenience.
Sincerely,
Rincon Consultants, Inc.

Christopher A. Duran, MA, RPA
Principal/Senior Archaeologist

Colby J. Boggs, M.S
Principal/Senior Ecologist

Hannah Haas, MA, RPA
Cultural Resources Program Manager/Senior
Archaeologist
Attachments: Cost Sheet
Standard Rate Sheet
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Principal I

Supervisor I

Professional IV

Professional III

Professional II

Professional I

Archaeological
Monitoring Day Rate

Technical Editor

GIS/CADD Specialist I

Clerical

RINCON CONSULTANTS, INC.
Palo Corona Regional Park Sewer Replacement
Cost Estimate

$227

$201

$149

$134

$118

$108

$1,120

$115

$115

$77

Rincon Labor Classification →

Tasks

Labor Cost

Biological Resources
Task 1. Worker Environmental Awareness Program
Task 2. Preconstruction Surveys and Resource Management
Subtask 2.1 Combined Nest and Bee Surveys (up to 2 surveys)
Subtask 2.2 Nest Management (up to 4 nests, up to 16 inspections)
Subtask 2.3 Reporting
Task 3 Biological monitoring
Task Subtotal

Archaeological Resources
Task 3. Archaeological/Paleontological Monitoring
Task 4. Native American Monitoring
Task 5. Archaeological Monitoring Report

Direct
Expense

Hours

$1,984

$85

14

1

$2,598

$170

18

2

16

34

2

32

$1,529

11

1

8

1

600

4

1

68

1

1

$81,202

$5,100

606

1

$10,853

$255

77

6

20
30

2

4

24

$76,820

130

6

20

24

61

15

20

$10,042
199,671

$

77,075

$

1

80

$76,820

$3,850
$97,574

SUBTOTAL COST $

1

80

$4,124

Project Management

12

$4,742

$89,600

Task Subtotal

1

4

268

$

6,129

16

$

8,040

80

15
$

149

$

9,112

$

1,770

11
$

2,592

$

89,600

$

115

$

115

$

847

Direct Cost Detail
Vehicle Costs
Native American Monitor

$

5,355

$
Subtotal Additional Costs: $

76,820
82,175
Professional Services - are based on Rincon's standard fee schedule
and labor classifications. The above is provided as an estimate of
Rincon's effort per task. Rincon may reallocate budget between staff
and tasks, as long as the total contract price is not exceeded.
Annual Escalation – Sta nda rd ra tes s ubject to 3% es ca l a ti on a nnua l l y

Summary
Professional Fees Subtotal

$199,671

Direct Costs Subtotal
TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET $

$82,175
281,846

Updated:
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1-Jul-2019

Rincon Consultants, Inc.

2021 Standard Fee Schedule for Environmental Sciences and Planning Services
Professional, Technical & Support Personnel*

Hourly Rate

Principal II

$247

Director II

$247

Principal I

$227

Director I

$227

Senior Supervisor II

$211

Supervisor I

$201

Senior Professional II

$180

Senior Professional I

$165

Professional IV

$149

Professional III

$134

Professional II

$118

Professional I

$108

Associate III

$98

Associate II

$93

Associate I

$84

Project Assistant

$77

Senior GIS Specialist

$144

GIS/CADD Specialist II

$129

GIS/CADD Specialist I

$115

Technical Editor

$115

Production Specialist

$91

Clerical

$77

*Professional classifications include: environmental scientists, urban planners, biologists, geologists, marine scientists, GHG verifiers,
sustainability experts, cultural resources experts and other professionals. Expert witness services consisting of depositions or in‐court
testimony are charged at the hourly rate of $350.

Direct Costs

Rate

Photocopies – Black and White

$0.20 (single sided) & $0.40 (double sided)

Photocopies – Color

$1.50 (single sided) & $3.00 (double sided)

Photocopies – 11 x 17

$0.50 (B & W) & $3.30 (color)

Oversized Maps

$8.00/square foot

Reproduction: CDs and USB Flash Drive

$15 / disc and $20/flash drive

Light duty /Passenger Vehicles**

$85/day

4‐WD/Off‐Road Vehicles**

$135/day

** $0.65/mile for mileage over 50 and for all miles incurred in employee‐owned vehicles.

Other direct costs associated with the execution of a project, that are not included in the hourly rates above, are billed at cost
plus 15%. These may include, but are not limited to, laboratory and drilling services, subcontractor services, authorized travel
expenses, permit charges and filing fees, mailings and postage, performance bonds, sample handling and shipment, rental
equipment and vehicles other than covered by the above charges.
Payment Terms – All fees will be billed to Client monthly and shall be due and payable upon receipt or as indicated in the
contract provisions for the assignment. Invoices are delinquent if not paid within ten (10) days from receipt or per the
contractually required payment terms.
Page 1
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Rincon Consultants, Inc.

Equipment

Day Rate

Environmental Site Assessment
Soil Vapor Extraction Monitoring Equipment
Four Gas Monitor
Flame Ionization Detector
Photo Ionization Detector
Hand Auger Sampler
Water Level Indicator, DC Purge Pump

$144
$124
$100
$75
$57
$41

Natural Resources Field Equipment
UAS Drone
Spotting or Fiberoptic Scope
Pettersson Bat Ultrasound Detector/Recording Equipment
Sound Level Metering Field Package: anemometer, tripod and digital camera.
GPS (sub‐meter accuracy)
Infrared Sensor Digital Camera or Computer Field Equipment
Scent Station
Laser Rangefinder/Altitude
Pit‐fall Traps, Spotlights, Anemometer, GPS Units, Sterilized Sample Jar
Mammal Trap, Large/Small
Water & Marine Resources Equipment
Boat (26 ft. Radon or Similar)
Boat (20 ft. Boston Whaler or Similar)
Multi Parameter Sonde (Temp, Cond, Turbidity, DO, pH) with GPS
Water Quality Equipment (DO, pH, Turbidity, refractometer, temperature)
Refractometer (salinity) or Turbidity Meter
Large Block Nets
Minnow trap
Net, Hand/Large Seine
Field Equipment Packages
Standard Field Package (digital camera, GPS, thermometer, binoculars, tablet, safety equipment, and
botanic collecting equipment)
Remote Field Package, (digital camera, GPS, thermometer, binoculars, tablet and mifi, Delorme Satellite
Beacon, 24‐Hour Safety Phone)
Amphibian/Vernal Pool Field Package: (digital camera, GPS, thermometer, decon chlorine, waders, float
tube, hand net, field microscope)
Fisheries Equipment Package: (waders, wetsuits, dip nets, seine nets, bubblers, buckets)
Underwater & Marine Sampling Gear includes: U/W Photo/Video Camera, SCUBA Equipment (Tanks,
BCD, Regulators, Wetsuits, etc.)
Marine Field Package: (Personal Flotation Devices (PFDs),100 ft. Reel Tapes w/ Stainless Carabiners,
Pelican Floats, Underwater Slates, Thermometer, Refractometer, Anemometer, various Field Guides)
Insurance, Hazard & Safety Fees
L & H Dive Insurance
Level C Health and Safety

$250
$155
$155
$103
$60
$52
$21
$10
$8
$1.50/$.50
$565
$310
$155
$57
$35
$103
$88
$10/$50

$100
$130
$155
$52
$50/diver
$50

$50/diver
$60 person
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RESOLUTION 2021-05
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A
CONTRACT WITH RINCON CONSULTANTS TO PROVIDE ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION OF THE UPPER RANCHO CAÑADA SEWER
REPLACEMENT PROJECT-#19-13
WHEREAS, the District approved the 2020/2021 budget that included funding
for the Upper Rancho Cañada Sewer Replacement Project consulting work;
WHEREAS, the District received a proposal from the environmental consultant,
Rincon Consultants, who completed the environmental review documents for the project and
provided a proposal dated January 5, 2021 to complete environmental monitoring and
reporting for the project for a not to exceed amount of $281,846;
WHEREAS, in order to proceed with construction of the project, the District
must execute a contract with Rincon Consultants to provide environmental services during
construction.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Carmel
Area Wastewater District, hereby authorizes the General Manager to enter into a contract
with Rincon Consultants to provide environmental construction services during replacement
and relocation of a sewer pipeline in Palo Corona Regional Park.
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on January 28, 2021.
AYES:

BOARD MEMBERS:

NOES:

BOARD MEMBERS:

ABSENT:

BOARD MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN:

BOARD MEMBERS:
_________________________________________
President of the Board

ATTEST:
_______________________________________
Secretary to the Board

153

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTATION AND/OR OTHER SERVICES
THIS AGREEMENT dated ________________, 2021, is by and between the Carmel Area Wastewater
District (hereinafter referred to as the "District") and MNS ENGINEERS, INC. (hereinafter referred to as
"Consultant"), for a project generally described as Rancho Cañada Sewer Relocation.
1.

GENERAL
The District engages the Consultant to furnish the services as defined in this agreement, at the
compensation and upon the terms set forth herein and the Consultant accepts the engagement
based upon the stated terms.

2.

3.

DUTIES OF THE CONSULTANT; SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY THE CONSULTANT
A.

The Consultant shall perform such duties and services as are listed on Exhibit "A". The
services shall be completed according to the time schedule contained in Exhibit "A".

B.

Standard of Care: The standard of care applicable to the Consultant's services will be
the degree of skill and diligence normally employed by professional engineers or
consultants performing the same or similar services. The Consultant will re-perform any
services not meeting this standard without additional compensation.

C.

Consultant Professional Team:
The Consultant shall provide and maintain the
professional team to perform the services and furnish the materials in connection with
this Agreement whose names and capacities are set forth on Exhibit "B". In the event
that any member of that team shall leave the employ of the Consultant or be transferred
to another office of the Consultant, the Consultant shall so advise the District and replace
him or her with a new member who is competent to perform the required work and who
shall be satisfactory to the District. Such other agents or employee contractors or
subcontractors not listed on Exhibit "B" as may be required to perform any portion of this
Agreement shall be competent and shall be suitably experienced in the function which
they perform.

SERVICES OR MATERIALS TO BE PERFORMED OR FURNISHED BY District
A.

The District shall perform such services or furnish such materials to Consultant in
connection with this Agreement as are set forth on Exhibit "C". If there are no entries on
Exhibit "C", the District shall not be required to provide any services or furnish any
materials to the Consultant. Unless otherwise provided on Exhibit "C", all services and
material to be furnished by the District will be without cost to Consultant.

B.

The District will authorize the Consultant in writing to proceed prior to the Consultant
starting work on any of the services listed in Exhibit "A".

C.

The District will make its facilities accessible to Consultant as required for Consultant's
performance of its services. The District will be responsible for all acts of District's
personnel performed within the scope of their employment.

D.

Unless otherwise agreed to in the Scope of Services, the District will obtain, arrange, and
pay for all advertisements for bids, permits, and licenses required by local, state or
federal authorities; and land, easements, rights-of-way, and access necessary for the
Consultant's services or project construction.
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4.

PAYMENT BY THE DISTRICT: TIME AND MANNER OF PAYMENT
The District shall pay the Consultant, for all required services and materials furnished to fulfill this
Agreement, the amount or amounts on a time and materials basis billed monthly, not to exceed
$103,918 (Exhibit “B”) . Consultant agrees to accept the stated sums as full compensation for all
required services due under this Agreement.

5.

ADDITIONAL WORK
The Consultant shall be entitled to extra compensation for services or materials not otherwise
required under this Agreement, provided that the District shall first have identified the service or
materials as extra, and specifically requested extra services or materials in writing, and in no
event shall the District be liable for payment unless the amount of extra compensation shall first
have been agreed to in writing by the District.

6.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
The Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because
of age, race, religious creed, color, national origin, physical handicap, medical condition, marital
status or sex.

7.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, and
regulations affecting the performance of its services under this Agreement.

8.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
The Consultant is acting as an independent contractor in furnishing the services or materials and
performing the work required by this Agreement and is not an agent, servant, or employee of the
District.

9.

PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES; NOTICES

The District and the Consultant each designate the following persons to act as authorized representatives
of the District and the Consultant in matters and decisions pertinent to the timely performance of this
Agreement, and each authorized representative will have full powers to bind the District or the Consultant,
including, but not limited to, transmitting instructions, receiving information, making project-related
decisions not requiring official District approval, processing Consultant payment requests and other
matters. All notices or other official correspondence relating to work under this Agreement may be given
by being personally delivered, by being placed in the United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, or by
being sent by overnight prepaid air freight, addressed to the party to whom notice is to be given. Each
notice shall be deemed to be effective upon receipt, if personally delivered or sent by air freight, or five
days after being so mailed. Any notice may also be given by facsimile. Notices shall be provided to the
following names and addresses:
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For the Carmel Area Wastewater District:
Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer
P. O. Box 221428
Carmel, CA 93922
For the Consultant:
Nick Panofsky, Supervising Engineer
811 El Capitan Way, Suite 130
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401

10.

INSURANCE:
Prior to the commencement of services hereunder, the Consultant shall certify and provide
evidence of coverage from responsible insurance carriers of the following insurance. Such
insurance policy or policies shall be stated to be primary and noncontributing with any insurance
which may be carried by the District. Consultant shall deliver to District certificates of insurance
which shall provide that thirty days' notice will be given to District in the event of a reduction,
modification or cancellation.
a)

Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance. Workers' Compensation in
compliance with the applicable state and federal laws. Employer's Liability limit
$1,000,000.

b)

Commercial General Liability Insurance, including Blanket Contractual, Broad Form
Property Damage, Completed Operations and Independent Contractor's Liability, all
applicable to Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage to limit of $1,000,000
per each occurrence/claim, subject to $2,000,000 annual aggregate for Completed
Operations and Personal Injury other than Bodily Injury.

c)

Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance including owned, hired and non-owned
automobiles, Bodily Injury and Property Damage to a combined single limit of
$1,000,000.

d)

Professional Liability Insurance affording professional liability coverage to a combined
single limit of $1,000,000 per each occurrence/claim subject to a $2,000,000 annual
aggregate.

e)

Excess Liability Insurance following employers' liability afforded by item a) and other
coverages afforded by items b), c) and d) set forth above, subject to a limit of liability of
$2,000,000 for each occurrence/ claim/aggregate.

f)

Additional Insured. District shall be included as an additional insured (but not as a
named insured) on the Commercial General Liability, Comprehensive Automobile Liability
and Excess Liability insurance policies described in parts b), c) and e) above; and as
evidenced by filing with District the ISO (Insurance Service Office) CG 2010 endorsement
form or equivalent.

g)

No Exclusion. No insurance coverages described herein shall exclude coverage for
claims against the Consultant by the District because the District is named as an
additional insured.
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11.

INDEMNITY

(a) Other than in the performance of design professional services by a design professional, which
shall be as addressed by subsection (b) below, and to the full extent permitted by law, Consultant shall
indemnify, immediately defend (with independent counsel reasonably acceptable to the District) and hold
harmless the District, its board of directors, employees, officials and agents (collectively "Indemnified
Parties" or in the singular "Indemnified Party") from and against any claims, losses, damages, penalties,
fines and judgments, associated investigation and administrative expenses, and defense costs including
but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, court costs, expert witness fees and costs of alternate
dispute resolution (collectively "Liabilities“), where same arise out of the performance of this Agreement
by Consultant, its officers, employees, agents and sub-contractors. The duty to defend is a separate and
distinct obligation from the Consultant’s duty to indemnify and Consultant shall be obligated to defend in
all legal, equitable, administrative or special proceedings upon tender to the Consultant of any claim in
any form or at any stage of an action or proceeding, whether or not liability is established and the
obligation extends through final judgment including exhaustion of any appeals.. The Consultant’s
obligation to indemnify applies unless it is finally determined that the liability was caused by the sole
active negligence or sole willful misconduct of an indemnified party. If it is finally determined that liability
is caused by the comparative active negligence or willful misconduct of an Indemnified Party, the
Consultant’s indemnification obligation shall be reduced in proportion to the established comparative
liability of the indemnified party.
(b) To the fullest extent permitted by law (including without limitation California Civil Code
Sections 2782.8), when the services to be provided under this Agreement are design professional
services to be performed by a design professional, as that term is identified by said section 2782.8(c)(1-4)
(“Design Professional”) Design Professional shall indemnify, protect and hold harmless any Indemnified
Party for all Liabilities regardless of nature or type that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence,
recklessness, or willful misconduct of Design Professional, or such acts or omissions of an officer,
employee, agent or subcontractor of the Design Professional. Design Professional shall not have an
immediate duty to defend an Indemnified Party, however, Design Professional’s obligation to indemnify
(including reimbursing the cost to defend) and hold the Indemnified Parties harmless applies unless it is
finally determined that the liability was caused by the sole active negligence or sole willful misconduct of
an Indemnified Party. If it is finally determined that liability was caused by the comparative active
negligence or willful misconduct of an Indemnified Party the Design Professional’s indemnification
obligation shall be reduced in proportion to the established comparative liability. Within 30 days following
Design Professional’s receipt of a properly presented written invoice Design Profession shall reimburse
the Indemnified Party for the cost of reasonable attorney’s fees and defense costs incurred by the
Indemnified Party to the same extent of Design Professional’s indemnity obligation herein. In no event
shall the cost to defend charged to the Design Professional exceed the Design Professional’s
proportionate percentage of fault.
(c) The provisions of this Section are not limited by the provisions of sections relating to
insurance including provisions of any worker's compensation act or similar act. Consultant expressly
waives its statutory immunity under such statues or laws as to District, its employees and officials. An
allegation or determination of comparative active negligence or willful misconduct by an Indemnified Party
unrelated to design professional services does not relieve Consultant from its separate and distinct
obligation to defend District. Consultant agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions
identical to those set forth here in this section from each and every subcontractor, sub tier contractor or
any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of Consultant in the performance or subject
matter of this Agreement. In the event Consultant fails to obtain such indemnity obligations from others
as required here, Consultant agrees to be fully responsible according to the terms of this section. Failure
of District to monitor compliance with these requirements imposes no additional obligations on District
and will in no way act as a waiver of any rights hereunder.
(d) If any action or proceeding is brought against any Indemnified Party by reason of any of the
matters against which the Consultant has agreed to provide an immediate defense to any Indemnified
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Party, as provided above, Consultant, upon notice from the District, shall defend the Indemnified Party at
Consultant's expense by independent counsel reasonably acceptable to the District. Unless otherwise
provided above, an Indemnified Party need not have first paid for any of the matters to which it is entitled
to indemnification in order to be so defended. Consultant may submit a claim to the District for
reasonable defense costs (including attorney’s and expert fees) incurred in providing a defense of any
Indemnified Party to the extent such defense costs arise under principals of comparative fault from the
Indemnified Party’s active negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct.
(e) This obligation to indemnify and defend, as set forth herein, is binding on the successors,
assigns, or heirs of Consultant and shall survive the termination of this Agreement or this Section.

12.

FORCE MAJEURE
The Consultant is not responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God,
strikes, lockouts, accidents, or other events beyond the control of the Consultant.

13.

TITLE TO DOCUMENTS
All original calculations, photographs, maps, drawings, plans, design notes and other material or
documents developed or used in connection with the performance of this Agreement shall be the
property of the District, provided, however, that the Consultant may provide the District with
legible photostatic copies in lieu of the originals. Any plans and specifications shall bear the
name of the Consultant together with the Consultant's certification number, if any. If the
Consultant's working papers or product includes computer generated statistical material, the
Consultant shall provide the material to the District in a mutually agreed upon computer machinereadable format and media.

14.

ASSIGNMENT
The Consultant shall not assign or sublet any portion of this Agreement without the express prior
written consent of the District, which may be withheld by the District in its discretion.

15.

TERMINATION
Without limitation to such rights or remedies as the District shall otherwise have by law, the
District shall also have the right to terminate this Agreement for any reason upon seven (7) days'
written notice to the consultant. This Agreement may also be terminated by either party upon
seven (7) days' written notice should the other party fail substantially to perform in accordance
with this Agreement through no fault of the other or if the project is stopped for a period of 60
days by conditions beyond the control of the District.

16.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS, EXHIBITS
Additional provisions of this Agreement are set forth on Exhibits "A" - "C". All Exhibits shall be
attached to this Agreement and are incorporated and made a part by reference.

17.

AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION
This Agreement may be amended, altered or modified only by written agreement executed by
both parties.
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18.

FURTHER ASSURANCES
Each of the parties agree to execute and deliver to the other such documents and instruments,
and to take such actions, as may reasonably be required to effectuate the terms and conditions of
this Agreement; provided, however, such covenant shall not have the effect of increasing the
obligations of any party pursuant to this Agreement or require any representations and warranties
by any party.

19.

SEVERABILITY
Should any provision of this Agreement be declared invalid and unenforceable in any jurisdiction
by a court of competent jurisdiction, then such portion or provision shall be deemed to be
severable, to the extent valid or unenforceable, from this Agreement as to such jurisdiction (but,
to the extent permitted by law, not elsewhere) and shall not affect the remainder hereof.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a) such provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted by the
parties and by any such court, to the extent possible, in such a manner that such provision shall
be deemed to be valid and enforceable, and b) such court shall have the right to make such
modifications to any provision of this Agreement as do not materially affect the rights or
obligations under this Agreement of the parties hereto and as may be necessary in order for such
provision to be valid and enforceable.

20.

WAIVER
No waiver of any right or obligation of any of the parties shall be effective unless in a writing,
specifying such waiver, executed by the party against whom such waiver is sought to be
enforced. A waiver by any of the parties of any of their rights under this Agreement on any
occasion shall not be a bar to the exercise of the same right on any subsequent occasion or of
any other right at any time.

21.

ATTORNEYS FEES
Should either party to this Agreement bring legal action against the other, (formal judicial
proceeding, mediation or arbitration), the case shall be handled in Monterey County, California,
and the party prevailing in such action shall be entitled to a reasonable attorney's fee which shall
be fixed by the judge, mediator or arbitrator hearing the case and such fee shall be included in
the judgment, together with all costs.

22.

COUNTERPARTS
This Agreement may be executed in two counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original,
but both of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.

23.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding the subject
matter hereof, and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous negotiations, understandings or
agreements of the parties, whether written or oral, with respect to such subject matter.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed in duplicate by the duly authorized officers
of each of the parties effective the date first shown above.

FOR THE DISTRICT

FOR THE CONSULTANT

By ____________________________

By ______________________________

General Manager

Printed Name: James A. Salvito
Title: President & CEO

____________________________
Approved as to Form:
By ______________________________
_______________________________

Printed Name: Shawn Kowalewski

District Legal Counsel

Title: Assistant Secretary/Vice President

Exhibit "A":
Exhibit "B":

Consultant Scope of Services and Schedule
Consultant Team/Rate Sheet
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RESOLUTION 2021-06
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A
CONTRACT WITH MNS ENGINEERS TO PROVIDE DESIGN SERVICES
FOR THE UPPER RANCHO CAÑADA SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT-#19-13
WHEREAS, the District approved the 2020/2021 budget that included
funding for the Upper Rancho Cañada Sewer Replacement Project consulting work;
WHEREAS, the District received a proposal from MNS Engineers for
professional engineering services to provide construction engineering services for the
Rancho Canada Sewer Replacement Project;
WHEREAS, in order to proceed with construction engineering services,
the District must execute a contract with MNS Engineers for the project as summarized
in their proposal dated November 25, 2021 in the amount of $18,820.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of
Carmel Area Wastewater District, hereby authorizes the General Manager to enter into
a contract with MNS Engineers to provide construction engineering services for
replacement and relocation of a sewer pipeline in Palo Corona Regional Park.
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors
of the Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on January 28, 2021.
AYES:

BOARD MEMBERS:

NOES:

BOARD MEMBERS:

ABSENT:

BOARD MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN:

BOARD MEMBERS:
____________________________________
President of the Board

ATTEST:
_______________________________________
Secretary to the Board
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STAFF REPORT

To:

Board of Directors

From:

Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Acceptance of Final Completion of Work by D’Arcy & Harty
Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement
Project #18-17

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 2021-07 accepting the
completed project and directing the General Manager to file a Notice of Completion for
the subject project.
DISCUSSION
The project consisted of the replacement of approximately 5,600 linear feet of 8-inch
vitrified clay pipe in Hatton Canyon State Park and across Carmel Valley Road with 10
inch high-density polyethylene pipe using a combination of pipe-bursting and open
trench methods. In addition, manholes were sealed to reduce infiltration and raised, as
needed. D’Arcy and Harty Construction Inc. was awarded the contract on April 30, 2020
for $907,500, including Contingencies. All work was completed on December 14, 2020.
All work by the contractor, D’Arcy and Harty Construction, was inspected by PSOMAS
construction management staff. The CAWD Principal Engineer and PSOMAS have
determined that the work was completed in conformance with the project plans and
specifications.
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors accept the project and directs the General
Manager to file a Notice of Completion with the Monterey County Recorder’s Office.
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FUNDING
The project was awarded to D’Arcy & Harty Construction for $907,500, including
Contingencies. The final project cost for this contract was $824,831.84. The FY20/21
CAWD Collections Capital Budget includes $1.4 million for this project.
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-07
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE COMPLETED PROJECT AND
DIRECTING THE GENERAL MANAGER
TO FILE A NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR
THE HATTON CANYON PIPELINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT #18-17
-oOoBE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area Wastewater District,
Monterey County, California, that:
WHEREAS, the Principal Engineer has provided the Board an accounting of the cost of
changes to the Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project (the “Project”) with a credit in the
amount of $82,668.16, making the total cost of the project $824,831.84; and
WHEREAS, the Principal Engineer of said District has filed with the Secretary of said
District an Engineer’s Certificate regarding completion of the construction of the Project done
under and pursuant to the contract between said District and D’Arcy & Harty Construction,
Inc. dated January 11, 2021; and
WHEREAS, it appears to the satisfaction of this Board that said project provided for
under said contract has been completed as provided in said contract and the plans and
specifications therein referred to and that the work was completed on December 14, 2020.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED as follows:
1. That acceptance of said Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project be accepted,
and it is hereby made and ordered in accordance with California Civil Code §9200(a).
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2. That in accordance with California Civil Code Section §9204 the General Manager is
directed to file for record with the County Recorder of the County of Monterey a notice of
completion as of the date of acceptance by the District of Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement
Project as required by law.
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on January 28, 2021 by the following vote:
AYES:

BOARD MEMBERS:

NOES:

BOARD MEMBERS:

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS:

_____________________________
President of the Board
ATTEST:
__________________________
Secretary of the Board
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STAFF REPORT

To:

Board of Directors

From:

Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Acceptance of Final Completion of Work by Graniterock
Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement Wetland Creation
Project #18-17

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 2021-08 accepting the
completed project and directing the General Manager to file a Notice of Completion for
the subject project.
DISCUSSION
This portion of the project consisted of creating a wetland area in Hatton Canyon State
Park that was required by the Army Corps of Engineers as a mitigation as part of their
permit requirements for the pipeline project. Graniterock was awarded the contract on
September 15, 2020 for $29,880 and change orders to the project were required due to
unforeseen circumstances during grading of the wetland area. The completed contract
amount was approved by the Board on December 10, 2020 for a total contract amount of
$53,019.82. All work was completed on October 6, 2020.
All work by the contractor, Graniterock, was inspected by PSOMAS’ construction
management staff. The CAWD Principal Engineer and PSOMAS have determined that
the work was completed in conformance with the project plans and specifications.
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors accept the project and direct the General
Manager to file a Notice of Completion with the Monterey County Recorder’s Office.
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FUNDING
The FY20/21 CAWD Collections Capital Budget includes $1.45 million for this project.
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-08
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING COMPLETED PROJECT AND
DIRECTING THE GENERAL MANAGER
TO FILE A NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR
THE HATTON CANYON PIPELINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT #18-17
WETLAND CREATION
-oOoBE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area Wastewater District,
Monterey County, California, that:
WHEREAS, the Principal Engineer has provided the Board an accounting of the cost of
changes to the Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project Wetland Creation (the “Project”)
with a change order in the amount of $23,139.82, making the total cost of the project $53,019.82;
and
WHEREAS, on January 13, 2021 the Principal Engineer of said District has filed with the
Secretary of said District an Engineer’s Certificate regarding completion of the construction of
the Project done under and pursuant to the contract between said District and Graniterock;
and
WHEREAS, it appears to the satisfaction of this Board that said project provided for
under said contract has been completed as provided in said contract and the plans and
specifications therein referred to and that the work was completed on October 6, 2020.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED as follows:
1. That acceptance of said Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project Wetland
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Creation be accepted, and it is hereby made and ordered in accordance with California Civil
Code §9200(a).
2. That in accordance with California Civil Code Section §9204 the General Manager is
directed to file for record with the County Recorder of the County of Monterey a notice of
completion as of the date of acceptance by the District of Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement
Project Wetland Creation as required by law.
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on January 28, 2021 by the following vote:
AYES:

BOARD MEMBERS:

NOES:

BOARD MEMBERS:

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS:

_____________________________
President of the Board
ATTEST:
__________________________
Secretary of the Board
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Item #27 on the Agenda - Staff report, Resolution 2021-09, bidding
results for project #19-13 Upper Rancho Canada will be handed out at
the meeting and posted on the website on 1-26-21. This material was
not available at the time of the board packet build.

172

Other Items & Information/Discussion
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STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Barbara Buikema, General Manager

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

General Manager Salary Adjustment

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends the Board pass a motion approving the action of the Salary & Benefits
Committee to increase the General Manager’s compensation package by 3.0% retroactive to
July 1, 2019.

DISCUSSION
On December 15, 2020, the Salary & Benefits Committee agreed to a 3.0% Cost of Living
Adjustment (COLA) to the General Manager’s salary, retroactive to July 1, 2020, based
on the published COLA for October 2019.
The Bureau of Labor Statistics published October 2019 Consumer Price Index is the
same index used for staff.

FUNDING
There are sufficient funds available in the Administration O&M budget to cover this
COLA increase pay.
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STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Barbara Buikema, General Manager

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Financial Audit for Fiscal Year Ending 06-30-20

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board of Directors accept the Carmel Area Wastewater
District Annual Financial Statements and Independent Audit Report for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020 prepared by the firm Marcello & Company as meeting the
requirements for an annual independent financial audit.

DISCUSSION
The attached audit report gives the District a “clean” or unqualified opinion on the
06-30-20 statements.
There were no significant recommendations from this year’s audit – the accounting
“books” and internal controls are appropriate.
To best review the District’s audited financial statement; staff would direct readers first
to the Management Discussion & Analysis in the front of the report which is the
District’s summary and analysis of where we were during the prior year and factors
that could potentially affect us going forward.
Attached: CAWD Audit for year ended 06-30-20
FUNDING
Preparation of the annual audit was a budgeted expense for 2019-20 in the amount of
$31,200.
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
California

____________________________________________

Annual Financial Report
Year Ended
June 30, 2020
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MARCELLO & COMPANY
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
__________________________________________________________________________________
Post Office Box 60127 / Sacramento, California 95860-0127

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors
Carmel Area Wastewater District
Carmel, California
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Carmel
Area Wastewater District, Carmel, California (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. The prior year comparative information has
been derived from the District’s 2019 financial statements and, in our report dated September 28,
2019, we expressed an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the business-type activities.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based upon our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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To the Board of Directors
Carmel Area Wastewater District
Carmel, California

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Carmel Area Wastewater District, as
of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, pension schedules and schedules of funding progress, as
listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historic context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The budgetary comparison information
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.
The budgetary comparison information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on it.

Marcello & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
December 9, 2020
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
As Prepared by Management
(unaudited)
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The following discussion and analysis are supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and is intended to provide an easily readable explanation of the
information provided in the attached basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with our financial statements,
which follow this narrative.
Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2019-20 are as follows:
•

The District’s net position increased by 6.1% or $5.0M to $87.2M. Total Operating revenues
increased 5.3% or $0.5M over the prior year and is 10.5% over budget. Sewer user fees, the
District’s primary source of operating revenue, increased 6.8% or $548K over the prior year. The
rate model projected a 7.5% increase in residential rates – overwhelmingly the District’s largest
user category. The increases are reflective of the District’s continued efforts to fund its capital
improvement and rehabilitation efforts. Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD)
treatment fees increased by 3.7% or $55K over prior year. Flow from Del Monte Forest increased
to 35.25% compared with 33.8% in 2018-19. Reimbursement from the Reclamation Project for
O&M expenses increased 2.3% or $13K.

•

Total non-operating revenues decreased $881 over the prior year, it was remarkably level.
Property tax revenue increased 4.3%% or $89K over the prior year. Investment income increased
18.8% or $113K over the prior year because projects were deferred. Reimbursement of capital
costs from PBCSD decreased 48.7% or $243K and from Reclamation it decreased 0.8% or $172K
again as projects were deferred.

•

Total operating expenses (excluding depreciation) increased 11.7% or $999K over the prior year
reflecting continued focus on rehabilitation as well as the effects of inflation and tariffs.

•

Non-operating expenses decreased 22.9% or $16K from the prior year due to lower interest and
fiscal expenses.

•

Total Current Assets increased 15.6% or $5.2M over the prior year. This was primarily due to an
increase in cash and investments of $5.6M.

•

Total Current Liabilities decreased 14.9% over the prior year primarily due to an decrease in
Accounts Payable-trade. Trade payables are up primarily due to timing issues. The Deposit
account represents CCLEAN program revenue collected in advance from participants – the
District became lead agency effective July 1, 2017.
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Overview of the Financial Statements
This annual report consists of three parts – management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and other supplementary information. The Financial Statements include Notes
which explain in detail some of the information included in the basic financial statements. They are
followed by a section of Supplementary Information that further explains and supports information in the
financial statements.
Required Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial
statements. The District’s basic financial statements consist of three components:
•

The Statements of Net Position present information on all the District’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position.

•

The Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present information
showing how the District’s net position changed during the two most recent fiscal years.

•

The Statements of Cash Flows present information showing how the District’s cash
position changed during the two most recent fiscal years. It shows the sources and uses of
cash.

The District’s financial statements utilize the full accrual basis of accounting whereby revenue is
recognized when it is earned, and expenses are recognized as they are incurred. The District’s accounting
methods follow accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and as applied to
governmental enterprise funds.
Financial Analysis of the District
The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
provide an indication of the District’s financial condition. The District’s net position reflects the
difference between assets and liabilities. An increase in net position over time typically indicates an
improvement in financial condition.
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A summary of net position is presented below:
2020
Assets
Current Assets

2019

39,019,453

Capital Assets net of depreciation
Total Assets $

49,271,695
88,291,148

Deferred Outflow of Resources
Total Assets & deferred outflow of
resources $
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Long-term vac/sick pay
Net pension liability
Long-term debt
Total Liabilities $

628,060

907,793
184,108
(414,355)
760,000
1,437,546

33,751,396
$

Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflow $
Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position
$
$

1,651,059

49,756,407
83,507,803

$

$

84,123,511
1,067,713
156,912
(617,997)
930,000
1,536,628

$

1,900,796

48,341,695
38,926,454
87,268,149
88,919,208

50,337,616
78,141,853
950,959

$

$

79,092,812
625,186
133,271
(207,127)
1,090,000
1,641,330
707,184

364,168
$
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27,804,237

615,708

213,513

Deferred Inflow of Resources

Total Liabilities & Net Position

88,919,208

2018

$

2,348,514

$

48,666,407
33,556,308
82,222,715

$

49,097,616
27,646,682
76,744,298

$

84,123,511

$

79,092,812

CAWD Net Position Comparison June 30, 2018 to 2020
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Capital Assets

Unrestricted
2020

Total Liabilitities

2019

Total

2018

The District’s cash balances are segregated by purpose, as approved by the Board, as follows:
Designation of Cash Balances
Capital Reserves
Current Year O&M (2018-19)
Current Year Capital (2018-19)
LAIF Investment Fund
Defend or Managed Retreat Reserve
Compensated Accruals Fund
Total

Amount
14,213,615
14,799,293
5,561,862
1,184,856
2,000,000
245,477
$ 38,005,103

$

After formally accepting the asset management plan prepared for the Treatment plant in April 2013, the
District moved forward with implementation of the first phase. The original plan estimated the District
will need to spend $30M over the next fifteen years on plant rehabilitation – this is exclusive of
engineering costs and construction management. The District has subsequently carried the long term plan
out each year to maintain the fifteen-year time horizon. The long-range total required for the treatment
plant remains $40M. We have already initiated planning for the next phase of our plant rehabilitation.
The District maintains a long-term capital plan for both the treatment facility and the collection system.
West Yost Associates was engaged to complete an Asset Management Study for the collection system
like the work that was done for the Treatment Plant in 2012. West Yost also completed a hydraulic model
of the collection system to assist in planning for growth and maintenance of the existing system. The
State General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems (Order No. 2006-0003)
requires that we establish a proactive approach to ensure that a system-wide operation, maintenance, and
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management plan is in place to reduce the number and frequency of sanitary sewer overflows. We are
working to build long-term resiliency into our system.
A summary of Changes in Net Position is presented below:
2020
Changes in Net Position:
Operating revenues
Nonoperating revenues
total revenues

2019

$10,956,640
3,675,149
14,631,789

$

10,405,550
3,676,030
14,081,580

2018
$

9,233,334
4,252,477
13,485,811

Operating expenses
Nonoperating expenses
Depreciation expense
total expenses

7,136,802
55,226
2,394,327
9,586,355

6,284,700
71,636
2,246,827
8,603,163

5,945,298
67,003
2,414,401
8,426,702

Income before Cap Contributions
Capital Contribution
Change in net position

5,045,434
5,045,434

5,478,417
5,478,417

5,059,109
5,059,109

Net position, beginning
Restatements
Net position, ending

$

82,222,715

$

$

87,268,149

$

76,744,298
82,222,715

$
$

71,685,189
76,744,298

The District’s strategy for rate-setting has consistently been to cover all operating expenses with operating
revenue and to utilize non-operating revenue (i.e., property taxes and interest revenues) to cover capital
and other non-operating expenses. The District does not factor depreciation into its rate structure.
However, since 2012-13 we have entered an amount for Capital Replacement gradually building to $1.6M
per year in 2019-20. This funding combined with our property tax revenue means that the District has
roughly $3M coming in each year for capital replacement and rehabilitation. We have a long-term capital
plan for the treatment plant of roughly $40M over the next 15 years and for the collection system of
roughly $40M over the next 20 years. And there is one more piece to our long-term plan: sea level rise.
We have established a dedicated reserve to fund sea level rise mitigation that may range from relatively
simple water proofing efforts to moving facilities. We believe we have roughly another 30 years at our
current location. We believe our future depends very much on the planning we are doing now.
The District’s net position increased by $5.0M or 6.1% but there was a decrease in Income before Capital
Contributions of 7.9% or $433K.
Operating revenues increased 5.3%% or $551K but nonoperating
revenues decreased $881 or remained essentially the same. Operating Expenses increased 13.6% or
$852K and Nonoperating expenses decreased 22.9% or $14K. The District’s assets exceeded liabilities by
$87.2M as of June 30, 2020. Net position, over time, may serve as a useful indicator of an entity’s
financial position.
The District’s operations continue to be strong enough to support our plan to “pay-as-you-go” for our
Treatment Plant Rehabilitation.
We intend to utilize “pay-as-you-go” for the $8-9M
Electrical/Mechanical Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank project at the Treatment Plant. We were awarded
a $1M hazard mitigation grant for our Hatton Canyon line. The District has committed to spending
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roughly an additional $2M per year to upgrade the collection system. We believe we are positioned to
pay cash for the first five years of our Collection System long term plan at roughly $2M per year for
replacement line projects. We may have to increase that to meet external pressures to upgrade the system
more quickly. However, for the short term, we see paying cash as offering greater freedom. While it
offers greater freedom to plan and build what we want and need, it does require considerable planning.
We recognize that we may not be able to continue to pay cash indefinitely; but our Board of Directors has
taken the position for now of not taking on debt.
Capital Assets Activity
This year, while the District waited for the California Coastal Commission to complete our Coastal
Development permit, we pivoted from large projects at the treatment facility to working in the Collection
system and doing smaller projects at the plant.
The VacCon truck represents replacement of an asset from 2008 that is used daily in the Collection
system. It serves as the District’s primary hydro cleaning and overflow response vehicle. Digester No. 1
& 2 Cleaning included not only cleaning but an assessment of both digesters in preparation for Phase II at
the facility that will include demolition of No. 2 and rehab of No. 1. The Outfall Crossing rehab project
was an emergency project of the pipeline on the trestle in the south finger of the lagoon. We had been
waiting to see what the County would do with CRFree but decided to move forward because the risk
factor of a pipeline failure was simply unacceptable. The pipeline was repaired to withstand current
conditions in the lagoon; however, with changes in flow and velocity due to CRFREE we believe the
pipeline will no longer be safe and could be subject to failure.
The District received grant funds for two separate projects in Hatton Canyon. First, the Hatton Canyon
Trail was a rehabilitation of the roadway in the canyon that was damaged on a yearly basis due to rainfall
and the stream jumping its bed onto the roadway. This project was successfully completed and positioned
us to move forward with the pipeline replacement in 2020-21.
2019-20 significant asset additions include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

VacCon Truck
Digester No. 1 & 2 Cleaning
Outfall Crossing Rehab
Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab
Hatton Canyon Trail
Calle la Cruz Force Main
SCADA Programming

$433,909
$309,288
$291,418
$281,511
$270,853
$198,094
$124,715

Debt Service Activity
In 2004, the District entered into an agreement with the Highlands Inn, the Tickle Pink Inn and the
Highlands Sanitary Association to manage and obtain the necessary financing for them to construct a
pipeline and connect to the District’s treatment and collection facilities. The District received $3,000,000
in the form of a 20-year bond issue as part of a pooled financing arrangement with the California
Statewide Communities Development Authority Water & Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A. In
2019 the District made a principal payment on the bond of $160,000 and $53,025 in interest. Prior year
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2018 principal payment was $150,000 with $61,162 in interest. The Highlands Project bond is the
District’s only outstanding bond obligation; the District had no debt service obligations prior to 2004.
All debt service interest and principal payments are being repaid by the parties that benefit directly from
the obligation. The Highlands Project Bond obligation is fully reimbursed by the Highlands Inn, the
Tickle Pink Inn, and the Highlands Sanitary Association.
Budget Highlights/Variances
An annual budget is adopted by the CAWD Board of Directors each spring for the subsequent fiscal year.
Budget information is reported to the Board, and adjustments to the budget may only be made by
resolution of the Board.
2019-20 major variances can be described as follows:
•

Sewer service fees were 4.2% or $350K over budget – the rate model provided for an additional
$1.6M to be allocated for future capital expenses. At this time, it is unknown how much, if
anything, will be rebated to constituents because of COVID-19.

•

PBCSD treatment fees were 28.4% or $341K over budget because of the increase in Treatment
Plant expenses for continued rehabilitation of the plant. Flow from PBCSD increased to 35.25%
of total plant inflows compared to 33.80% of total inflows to the plant last year.

•

Total Operating revenues were 10.6% over budget in total – attributable primarily to user fees and
PBCSD treatment fees.

•

Maintenance was 38.6% or $724K under budget. Salaries & benefits were 20.6% under budget or
$142K, operating supplies were 37.8% under budget or $24K, contract services were 48.2% under
budget or $274K, and repairs and maintenance 55.1% under budget or $219K. The District
continued its efforts at plant rehabilitation in-house, but projects were delayed because COVID19. Our efforts focused on simply keeping the facility running with limited staff rather than
improvements.

•

Collections department was 21.5% or $439K under budget. Salary and benefits were 4.2% over
budget or $29K, Engineering expenses were 71.9$% under budget or $140K, Contract services
were 35.7% under budget or $71K, and Repairs and Maintenance were under budget 45.3% or
$147K. Again, what we see in Maintenance repeated itself in Collections that COVID-19 forced a
retreat if you will, since the focus was to keep the collection system operational without any sewer
overflows. Much in the way of intended improvements were postponed.

•

The Treatment Plant was 1.9% under budget or $101K. The treatment facility managed to keep on
track with their planned budget but to also manage the Reclamation facility with little budgetary
impact from COVID-19.

•

General & Administrative Expenses were 35.2% under budget or $607K. The SAM pension plan
budgeted $16K in contributions but the actuarial report came received after budget prep was
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complete indicated the plan was fully funded. Both engineering and legal fees were significantly
under budget by 97.7% and 86.9% respectively. Legal fees were lower than anticipated for the
Coastal Commission permitting issue.
•

Property tax revenue was 18.0% over budget or $327K. The budget employed a conservative
factor of 2.0% to estimate revenue, although 2.5% to 3.0% is common.

•

Investment revenue was 186.2% over budget or $465K. While interest rates have remained very
low, the District also did not spend funds on Phase II thereby maintaining higher balances in its
deposit accounts.

•

PBCSD capital reimbursements were 174.1% under budget or $731K less than anticipated because
as with CAWD expenditures capital projects were behind schedule, particularly the second phase
of plant rehabilitation.

Other Significant Matters
•

This was the second year of a two-year employee contract. The District agreed to award a 3.0%
COLA for 2019-20. Negotiations for the next two-year contract began in the fall of 2020.

•

The Carmel River Free Project (CRFree) is progressing due to a Coastal Conservancy grant that
allowed us to continue with engineering, environmental and permitting work. We are negotiating
with the Monterey County for a Memorandum of Understanding on conditions for funding and
reporting on our part of the CRFree project.

•

The District was awarded a hazard mitigation grant from Federal Emergency Management
Agency/Office of Emergency Services (FEMA/OES) in the amount of $1M for the Hatton Canyon
project. We pushed that grant forward to 2020-21 in order to allow us to complete all permitting,
engineering, and construction during the allowable construction window.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates
Like just about everyone, the District has been affected by COVID-19. The Monterey County Health
Department issued a Shelter-in-Place Order on March 17, 2020 that extended through May 31, 2020.
Individuals were required to stay home except when engaging in tasks required for the health and safety
of their family. Businesses that were not considered essential had to shut down, and even after May 31st
restaurants primarily were serving outside. Wastewater is considered an essential service which meant
that the District continued to operate. On an operational level we have implemented protocols in all
departments that ensure employees maintain social distancing, wear a mask, and disinfect. Both the
treatment plant and the Collection crew are working on split shifts. We go through a cleaning routine
daily and we have made it a requirement that employees wear masks. The administration office has been
closed to customers since March 2020 when the state imposed its initial Shelter-in-Place directive.
Despite COVID-19 we continue to treat wastewater and make reclaimed water every day.
From a revenue perspective, there was no provision made in the 2019-20 budget for COVID-19.
However, we have had commercial customers contact us and ask if there will be any rate relief. As of this
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writing, there has not been a decision made, but the Board has directed that it be moved to the Budget
committee for consideration. While we consider a March – June 2020 relief program, the pandemic
continues to rage onward, and Monterey County was returned to Shelter-in-Place status on December 13,
2020. The District did cut nearly $600K from its 2020-21 budget but the question of additional relief
remains unanswered.
The District was notified this last year by the California Coastal Commission that it should commence
plans to move the treatment plant out of the Carmel Lagoon because of concerns over sea level rise.
CAWD commissioned a Sea Level Rise Study with ESA Associates and their conclusions were that sea
level rise projections do not identify new hazards to the treatment plant of greater concern than the 100year flood risk that CAWD has previously planned for. Nonetheless, increased storm intensities, as well
as higher sea levels, may increase the base flood elevations. According to the ESA study increased storm
intensity as well as sea level rise will not detrimentally affect the CAWD facility before the year 2062
under the “Extreme Risk Aversion” scenario. This allows for over 40-years of continued operation in the
existing location. While this seems like it should be plenty of time, we are not standing still and have
begun the process of providing a formal flood mitigation policy and searching for alternative sites for
when we relocate the facility.
This past year we were also approached by California River Watch with a list of demands. We were able
to reach a successful settlement agreement with a minimal dollar amount and goals that we should be able
to meet within the first five years. We did go back to River Watch in August 2020 and asked for an
extension due to COVID-19 which was granted. The River Watch claim primarily resulted because of the
repetitive losses in Hatton Canyon. We received a Federal Emergency Management Agency grant to
replace the pipeline and anticipate the problem will be solved.
Considering the impacts of the pandemic, fires in California, River Watch, and sea level rise we feel the
District is in relatively good financial shape. The challenges we face are significant no doubt, but the
District has a long history of planning for the future to make sure the community is well served. Over
61% of the District’s user fee revenue is derived from residential fees which provides for a solid base,
generally subject to minimal economic volatility. Another 14% of District operating revenues are
received from Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD) for the treatment of its sewage.
Finally, property tax revenues comprise 13% of our income and have proven to be stable and increase
roughly 2% annually. During COVID-19 we saw only a 3% decrease in total inflows to the plant – a
minimal change, which bolsters our argument for a solid economic base. Given the economic uncertainty
of the coming year we think that may be a good position because so much depends on the rapid and
effective deployment of coronavirus vaccines and further stimulus to maintain the nation through winter
and possibly spring.
Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide an overview of the District’s finances for those with an
interest in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for
additional information should be directed to James Grover, Principal Accountant, P.O. Box 221428,
Carmel, CA 93922 or grover@cawd.org.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2020 and 2019
Page 1 of 2

for comparative
purposes only

Assets

2020

2019

$ 38,005,103

$ 32,398,290

Accounts receivable - trade

148,528

144,013

Accounts receivable - affiliates

816,571

1,209,093

Current Assets
Cash and investments

Prepaid expenses

49,251

Total current assets

-

39,019,453

33,751,396

2,389,044

2,223,211

46,882,651

47,533,196

Total noncurrent assets

49,271,695

49,756,407

Total assets

88,291,148

83,507,803

628,060

615,708

$ 88,919,208

$ 84,123,511

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of depreciation

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred pension plan inflows
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2020 and 2019
Page 2 of 2

for comparative
purposes only

Liabilities and Net Position

2020

2019

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable - trade

$

Accrued bond interest
Deferred revenue

413,424

$

681,916

12,206

14,306

4,210

159,187

Deposit

246,584

Revenue bonds - current

170,000

160,000

61,369

52,304

907,793

1,067,713

Revenue bonds

760,000

930,000

Compensated absences

184,108

156,912

(414,355)

(617,997)

529,753

468,915

1,437,546

1,536,628

213,513

364,168

1,651,059

1,900,796

Net investment in capital assets

48,341,695

48,666,407

Unrestricted

38,926,454

33,556,308

87,268,149

82,222,715

$ 88,919,208

$ 84,123,511

Compensated absences - current
Total current liabilities

-

Noncurrent Liabilities
Amounts due in more than one year:

Net pension liability (overfunded)
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred pension plan inflows
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
Net Position

Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net Position
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
for comparative
purposes only

2020

2019

Operating Revenue
Sewer service fees
Treatment fees, PBCSD
Reclamation Project operating reimbursements
Liquid Food Waste fees
Brine Disposal fees
Other operating revenue
Total operating revenue

$

Operating Expenses
Maintenance

8,557,816
1,541,642
642,238
9,884
104,714
100,346
10,956,640

$

8,024,240
1,486,410
647,245
3,750
121,642
122,263
10,405,550

1,151,754

1,184,825

Collection
Treatment and disposal
Administration
Reclamation Project expenses
Waste to Energy costs
Brine Disposal costs
Total operating expenses

1,601,805
5,054,282
1,117,264
573,988
25,114
6,922
9,531,129

1,313,466
4,454,898
1,012,399
560,640
675
4,624
8,531,527

Operating income (loss)

1,425,511

1,874,023

2,140,553
715,611
218,013
254,606
22,744
323,622
(54,006)
(1,220)
3,619,923

2,050,675
602,347
215,898
497,084
195,562
114,464
(62,310)
(9,326)
3,604,394

5,045,434

5,478,417

82,222,715
$ 87,268,149

76,744,298
$ 82,222,715

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)
Property tax revenue
Investment earnings (loss)
Highlands Sewer Project assessment
PBSCD capital cost reimbursements
Reclamation Project capital cost reimbursements
Other nonoperating revenue
Interest and fiscal expenses
Other nonoperating expenses
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses)
Change in Net Position
Net Position - beginning
Net Position - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Page 1 of 2
for comparative

Cash Flows Provided By (Used For):

purposes only

2020

2019

Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments for operating supplies
Cash payments for personnel costs
Net cash provided (used)

$ 11,436,254
(2,729,730)
(4,647,919)
4,058,605

$

9,898,945
(2,351,936)
(4,004,648)
3,542,361

Noncapital Financing Activities
Property tax revenue
Highlands Sewer Project revenue
Net cash provided (used)

2,140,553
218,013
2,358,566

2,050,675
215,898
2,266,573

Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment

(1,909,615)

(1,665,618)

Reimbursements for capital projects
Principal paid on revenue bonds
Interest and fiscal expenses
Other nonoperating revenue
Other nonoperating expenses
Net cash provided (used)

277,350
(160,000)
(56,106)
323,622
(1,220)
(1,525,969)

692,646
(150,000)
(64,279)
114,464
(9,326)
(1,082,113)

Investing Activities
Investment earnings (loss)
Net cash provided (used)
Increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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715,611
715,611

602,347
602,347

5,606,813
32,398,290
$ 38,005,103

5,329,168
27,069,122
$ 32,398,290

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
Page 2 of 2
for comparative
purposes only

2020

2019

Operating Activities Analysis
Operating Income (Loss)

$

1,425,511

$

1,874,023

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Add depreciation, a noncash expense

2,394,327

2,246,827

Changes in current assets and liabilities:
(increase) decrease in trade receivables
(increase) decrease in affiliate receivables
(increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
increase (decrease) in trade payables
increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
increase (decrease) in deposits
increase (decrease) in compensated absences
increase (decrease) in pension obligations
increase (decrease) in net deferrals
Net cash provided (used)

(4,515)
392,522
(49,251)
(268,492)
(154,977)
246,584
36,261
203,642
(163,007)
4,058,605

(10,904)
(607,087)
315,230
111,386
31,521
(418,635)
3,542,361

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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$

$

The notes to the financial statements include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
notes considered essential to fully disclose and fairly present the transactions and financial position of
the District as follows:
Note 1 - Defining the Reporting Entity
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Note 3 - CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project
Note 4 - Cash and Investments
Note 5 - Capital Assets
Note 6 - Receivables
Note 7 - Payables
Note 8 - Deferred Compensation Plan
Note 9 - Long-term Obligations
Note 10 - Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions
Note 11 - Single Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Note 12 - Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Note 13 - Risk Management
Note 14 - Subsequent Events
Note 15 - New Pronouncements
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Note 1 - Defining the Reporting Entity
Reporting Entity
The Carmel Area Wastewater District (the District), organized July 8, 1908, is governed under the
provisions of the Sanitary District Act of 1923, Health and Safety Code, Section 6400 et seq., as
amended. The function of the District is to provide, operate and maintain sewage collection, treatment,
and disposal facilities for the properties included within its boundaries and for certain contracted adjacent
properties, and supply reclaimed water to the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District.
The District’s reporting entity includes all significant operation and revenue sources as determined under
the criteria established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Oversight responsibility is
determined on the basis of selection of the governing board, designation of management, ability to
significantly influence operations, accountability for fiscal matters, and the scope of public service. The
District is exempt from federal income and state franchise taxes.
In March 1969, the District entered into an agreement with the Pebble Beach Community Services
District (PBCSD) for treatment and disposal of sewage service delivered by PBCSD. It was anticipated
that the contract would account for approximately one third of the capacity of the District’s treatment
plant. PBCSD began delivering sewage to the District in fiscal year 1970-71, and reimburses the District
for one third of its operating treatment and disposal expenses plus a portion of general and
administrative expenses at an agreed upon annual fee for this service. The agreement has been
modified several times over the years, and currently operates under the 1994 amended agreement.
Under the same agreement, PBCSD additionally reimburses the District for one-third the cost of capital
assets purchased or constructed for sewage treatment and disposal. Carmel Area Wastewater District
maintains sole ownership of the wastewater treatment plant and related capital assets. PBCSD has only
a contractual “right to use” one-third of the sewage treatment plant’s capacity under the terms of the most
recent modified 1994 agreement and has no rights to ownership of the District’s capital assets.
Accordingly, capital assets are recorded by the District at 100 percent of their historic cost or contributed
value, and any expense reimbursements received from PBCSD or other affiliates are recorded as
revenue to the District.
Intact sewage systems constructed by real estate developers are completed at no cost to the District.
These systems, when formally accepted by District engineers and the Board of Directors, are recorded
as revenue to the District.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
The Carmel Area Wastewater District’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
financial transactions of the District are recorded in a Proprietary Fund type.
Proprietary Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises where the expenses, including depreciation, of providing goods or
services to the general public are recovered through user charges.
197

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (1) that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that costs (expenses,
including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (2) where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. The District is such
an enterprise fund.
The basic financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly all
assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included in the statement of net position. The
statement of revenue, expenses, and change in net position presents increases (revenue) and
decreases (expenses) in total net position. Capital contributions of property and equipment are reported
as a separate line item in the statement of revenue, expenses, and change in net position.
Other Agencies
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America require that the reporting entity
include (1) the primary government, (2) organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable, and (3) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with
the primary government are such that exclusion would cause that reporting entity’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria provided in GASB Statement No. 14 have been considered
and there are no agencies or entities, which should be presented with the District.
Accounts and Records
Records of the District are maintained at its office in Carmel, California. These records include cash
receipts and disbursements journals, a general ledger, complete minutes of the Board of Directors
meetings, Resolutions, Ordinances and files of supporting documents. Investment funds of the District
are on deposit with the Monterey County Treasurer’s investment pool.
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
A budget of projected cash receipts and disbursements is prepared to meet the requirements of the
Monterey County Auditor and for internal use by the Board of Directors. The budget is used to provide
financial guidance to the District and to determine the amount of funds required from user fees and other
sources. The primary difference between the budgetary basis method, and the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) method, is depreciation expense and the
principal portion of debt service payments.
OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ARE:
Basis of Accounting
The accounting methods and procedures adopted by the District conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental enterprises funds. These
financial statements are presented in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments. This
Statement provides for; recognition of contributions in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Change
in Net Position; inclusion of a Management Discussion and Analysis as required supplementary
information; and other disclosure requirements.
Cash and Investments
The District maintains an account with the Monterey County Investment Pool, which essentially operates
as a demand deposit account. Available cash balances are managed and controlled by the Monterey
County Treasurer in pooled investment funds in order to provide safety, liquidity, and high investment
returns for all funds. Earnings from these funds are credited to the District’s account on a quarterly
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basis. Assessments in excess of estimated current bond requirements of the District are deposited in the
Monterey County account which earns interest based on the fund’s prorata share of the cash in the
investment fund. The District also maintains financial institution bank accounts for operations and payroll
that are FDIC insured up to $250,000 per individual financial institution.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The District considers all highly liquid assets purchased with an original term to maturity of ninety days or
less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are reported as “cash and investments” on the
financial statement.
Restricted Assets
Certain cash and investments of the District are classified as restricted because their uses are limited by
commitments made by the District with participants for the design and construction of Wastewater
Treatment Plan facilities or as restricted by bond covenants. When an expense is incurred for purposes
for which there are both restricted and unrestricted cash assets available, restricted cash is used first,
then unrestricted cash as it is needed.
Investment Policy
The District has not adopted an investment policy but generally follows the Monterey County Treasurer’s
investment policy guidelines which allow investments in any security authorized by Section 53635 of the
Government Code of the State of California, and any other Government Code that permits investments in
various securities, or participation in investment trading techniques or strategies.
Accounts Receivable
Account receivables considered uncollectible are accounted for using the allowance method. The
allowance for doubtful accounts was $-0- at June 30, 2020. All annual user fee customer invoices are
added to the County assessed property tax invoices, mailed to property owners annually, collected by
the County Assessor where the proceeds are deposited into the District’s investment account with the
County Treasurer.
Property, Plant & Equipment
Capital assets are accounted for at historical cost or estimated cost. In accordance with the District’s
capital assets policy, minor expenditures under $10,000 for renewals and betterments are charged to
expense as incurred. Major expenditures for renewals and betterments are capitalized. In cases where
assets are donated to the District, construction costs or estimated market values are recorded on the
date received. Costs of assets sold, retired or otherwise disposed of have been eliminated from the
accounts, and gains or losses on disposition are included in the applicable year’s financial statement.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs, that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend lives, are also expensed in the current period.
The cost of property and equipment is depreciated from the date of acquisition, using the straight-line
method of depreciation over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
Asset Category
Treatment Plant - structures
Treatment Plant - equipment
Collections - office
Collections - pump stations
Disposal Facilities
Sewer and Appurtenances
Other Assets

Useful Lives
30-40 years
12-15 years
40 years
40 years
20-50 years
25-75 years
25-75 years
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Vacation, Sick Leave, and Other Compensated Absences
The District has recorded an accrual for compensated absences in accordance with the District’s policy
of paying for unused vacation and sick leave of employees. The District’s method of calculating the
liability is in accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, except that the additional accruals for salaryrelated payments associated with the payment of compensation absences, for example the employer’s
share of pension contributions, social security and medicare taxes, have not been accrued as that
amount is not considered significant or material to the financial statements taken as a whole.
Compensated vacation and sick leave absences are recorded as expenditures when they are paid.
Unpaid vacation and sick leave at year-end is recorded as an expense and a liability when earned by
employees. These unpaid amounts will be paid from available resources provided for in future year
budgets and are classified as current or noncurrent, based upon expected payment dates.
Long-term Obligations
Long-term debt and obligations are reported as liabilities on the statement of net position either as
current if payments are to be made within 12 months of the fiscal year-end, otherwise as noncurrent.
Pension Funding Obligations
Defined benefit pension plan (overfunded) or underfunded net liabilities are recognized and disclosed
using the accrual basis of accounting.
In general, the District recognizes a net pension liability, which represents the District’s proportionate
share of the excess of the total pension liability over the fiduciary net position of the pension reflected in
the actuarial report provided by the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS). The net
pension liability is measured as of the District’s prior fiscal year‐end. Changes in the net pension liability
are recorded, in the period incurred, as pension expense or as deferred inflows of resources or deferred
outflows of resources depending on the nature of the change. The changes in net pension liability that
are recorded as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources (that arise from changes
in actuarial assumptions or other inputs and differences between expected or actual experience) are
amortized over the weighted average remaining service life of all participants in the respective pension
plan and are recorded as a component of pension expense beginning with the period in which they are
incurred.
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows or resources relating to
pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s pension plan
with CalPERS and additions to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefits terms. Investments are reported at fair value. Projected earnings on pension investments are
recognized as a component of pension expense. Differences between projected and actual investment
earnings are reported as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources and amortized
as a component of pension expense on a closed basis over a five‐year period beginning with the period
in which the difference occurred. Each subsequent year will incorporate an additional closed basis five‐
year period of recognition.
Net Position
The business-type activities financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position
represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflow of resources, as compared to liabilities
plus deferred inflow of resources, and is displayed in the following three components:
•

Net Investment in Capital Assets - this component groups all capital assets, reduced by
accumulated depreciation, and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the
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acquisition, construction or improvement of the assets.
•

Restricted Net Position - this component represents net position that is subject to constraints
either (1) externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or (2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation.

•

Unrestricted Net Position - this component represents net position of the District, not restricted for
any construction project or other purpose.

When both restricted and unrestricted net position is available, restricted resources are used first, then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.
Operating and Nonoperating Revenue
Operating revenue and expenses consist of revenue that results from the ongoing principal operations of
the District. Operating revenue consists primarily of charges for services. Nonoperating revenue results
from non-exchange transactions, ancillary activities or subsidies, and investment earnings.
Property Taxes
Property taxes in the State of California are administered for all local agencies at the County level and
consist of secured, unsecured and utility tax rolls. The following is a summary of major policies and
practices relating to property taxes:
 Property Valuations - are established by the Assessor of Monterey County for the secured and
unsecured property tax rolls; the utility property tax roll is valued by the California State Board of
Equalization. Under the provisions of Article XIIIA of the State Constitution (Proposition 13),
properties are assessed at 100% of full value. From this base of assessment, subsequent annual
increases in valuation are limited to a maximum of 2%. However, increase to full value is allowed
for property improvements or upon change in ownership. Personal property is excluded from
these limitations and is subject to annual reappraisal.
 Tax Levies - are limited to 1% of full assessed value which results in a tax rate of $1.00 per $100
assessed valuation under the provisions of Proposition 13. Tax rates for voter-approved
indebtedness are excluded from this limitation.
 Tax Levy Dates - are attached annually on January 1, preceding the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. The fiscal year begins July 1 and ends June 30 of the following year. Taxes are
levied on both real and unsecured personal property. Liens against real estate, as well as the tax
on personal property, are not relieved by subsequent renewal or change in ownership.
 Tax Collections - are the responsibility of the Monterey County's tax collector. Taxes and
assessments on secured and utility rolls, which constitute a lien against the property, may be paid
in two installments: The first is due on November 1 of the fiscal year and is delinquent if not paid
by December 10; and the second is due on March 1 of the fiscal year and is delinquent if not paid
by April 10. Unsecured personal property taxes do not constitute a lien against property unless
the taxes become delinquent. Payment must be made in one installment, which is delinquent if
not paid by August 31 of the fiscal year. Significant penalties are imposed by the County for late
payments.
 Tax Levy Apportionments - due to the nature of the County-wide maximum levy, it is not possible
to identify general-purpose tax rates for specific entities such as the District. Under State
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legislation adopted subsequent to the passage of Proposition 13, apportionments to local
agencies are made by each County auditor-controller based primarily on the ratio that each
agency represented of the total County-wide levy for the three fiscal years prior to fiscal year
1979.
 Property Tax Administration Fees - the State of California fiscal year 1990-91 Budget Act
authorized Counties to collect an administrative fee for its collection and distribution of property
taxes.
 Monterey County bills and collects property taxes and user fees for the District in addition to its
own property taxes.
Use of Estimates
Preparing the District’s financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at
the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note 3 - CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project
The CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project (the Project) is a “cooperative effort” involving the Carmel Area
Wastewater District (CAWD), the Pebble Beach Community Service District (PBCSD), the Monterey
Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD), the Pebble Beach Company (PBCo), and the
Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group (IRWUG). This cooperative effort did not create a new or
separate legal entity. The Project is accounted for as a Proprietary (Enterprise) Fund in the books of the
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, the issuer of the 1992 Variable Rate Demand
Certificates of Participation, which originally financed the Project. The activities of the Project are
overseen by a six member management committee containing two representatives from the CAWD
board, two from the PBCSD board, one from the PBCo board, and one from the Independent Reclaimed
Water Users Group (IRWUG).
The Project provides treated or reclaimed wastewater to irrigate golf courses and open space areas
within the community of Pebble Beach, which frees up potable water previously used for irrigation. The
Project operates on the site of CAWD’s existing wastewater treatment plant. The Project includes: a
tertiary treatment plant, laboratory facilities, a wastewater distribution system, a storage tank used to
distribute the treated wastewater to the receptor sites in Pebble Beach, and irrigation system
improvements. Recent improvements include a Microfiltration/Reverse Osmosis facility at the CAWD
plant, and a reservoir increase capacity project to hold additional reclaimed water at the PBCSD
reservoir. The tertiary treatment plant produces water which meets Title 22 standards specified by the
California Department of Health Services, which is a quality acceptable for irrigation.
Phase 1
The Project was initially financed in December 1992 by the aforementioned Certificates of Participation
(COP) in the amount of $33,900,000 which were executed and delivered at the direction of the MPWMD.
Per the COP issuance agreement, the MPWMD agreed to provide the funds necessary to construct and
operate the Project with contractual provisions to own the reclaimed water for the express purpose of
resale of this water primarily to golf courses located within the Pebble Beach Community to reduce their
reliance upon potable water. The PBCo guaranteed payment of construction costs of the Project, plus
any operating deficiencies.
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Any debt obligations incurred by the MPWMD to finance the Project constitutes limited obligations of
MPWMD. These limited obligations are payable solely from the net operating revenue generated by the
sale of reclaimed water produced by the Project and, if such reclaimed water revenue is insufficient, from
payments on a Bond Letter of Credit, provided by Bank of America (the credit bank), through a
reimbursement agreement between PBCo and the credit bank.
Phase 1 Construction of the Project began in January 1993, and was completed in October 1994. The
Project assets are owned principally by CAWD and PBCSD, and consist primarily of the following:
Assets owned by CAWD include the following:
• new tertiary treatment plant
• secondary process improvements
• new laboratory facilities
• reclaimed water pump station
• related computer equipment
• small portion of the reclaimed water pipeline
Assets owned by PBCSD include the following:
• approximately seven miles of reclaimed water distribution system pipelines
• 2.5 million gallon storage tank
• portable water pump station
• reclaimed water booster pump station
Phase 2
In 2004, the Carmel Area Wastewater District, the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, the
Pebble Beach Community Services District, and the Pebble Beach Company approved agreements that
enabled a significant expansion of the Project’s operations known as Phase 2. The goal of the
expansion was to enable the Pebble Beach golf courses to be fully dependent on recycled water, thus
saving a significant amount of potable water. The expansion was partially funded from the sales of
Pebble Beach Company’s legal water entitlement agreements to Del Monte Forest residential property
owners, currently available at $250,000 per acre foot. Approximately $29 million has been raised
through these sales and investment earnings, with the proceeds deposited in a restricted construction
escrow account.
The agreements commit the Pebble Beach Company and the Independent Reclaimed Water Users (the
unincorporated association of the owners of Cypress Point Golf Club, Poppy Hills Golf Course, and the
Monterey Peninsula Country Club) to use and pay for recycled water for irrigation, and make provisions
for the beneficial use of any surplus recycled water.
The Project began construction on the Forest Lake Reservoir in 2004 with completion in 2006. Total cost
of the reservoir component of the expanded project was approximately $13 million. Upon completion of
the reservoir, PBCSD began the application process with the California Division of Safety of Dams to
increase the permitted capacity from 320 acre feet to 370 acre feet. Design began in 2006 for the microfiltration/reverse osmosis (MF/RO) treatment component, along with implementation of a pilot project at
Carmel Area Wastewater District’s treatment facility. Construction commenced in October 2006 on the
MF/RO plant. At June 30, 2009 the entire construction project was complete. Total cost of the MF/RO
portion was approximately $21.5 million. The combined improvements are expected to solve water
quality issues experienced by the golf courses and should eliminate their use of potable water except in
case of emergency. Year-round production is now possible with the Forest Lake Reservoir providing
peak demand requirements.
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Note 4 - Cash and Investments
Cash and investments at fiscal year-end are classified in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:
Statement of Net Position
Cash and investments

$ 38,005,103

Cash and investments are comprised of the following:
Deposits with financial institutions:
Checking accounts
State investment pool
Monterey County investment pool

$

623,998
1,184,855
36,196,250
$ 38,005,103

Participation in an external County Investment Pool
The District is a voluntary participant in the Monterey County Investment Pool. Funds in the Pool
essentially operate as demand deposit accounts. Available cash balances are controlled and invested
by the County Treasurer in pooled investment funds in order to provide safety, liquidity and investment
returns for all funds. Interest earnings from these funds are credited to the District’s account on a
quarterly basis. As of June 30, 2020, the Pool had approximately $1.8 billion in investments. The
Monterey County Treasurer’s Investment policy is in compliance with Section 53635 of the Government
Code of the State of California, which permits investments in certain securities and participation in certain
investment trading techniques or strategies. Annual reports of the investment pool may be obtained from
the Monterey County Treasurer, Post Office Box 390, Salinas, California 93902.
Participation in an external State Investment Pool
The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). LAIF, established in
1977, is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 and under the day to day
administration of the California State Treasurer. There is a five member Local Investment Advisory
Board that is chaired by the State Treasurer. LAIF determines fair value of its investment portfolio based
on market quotations for those securities where market quotations are readily available, and on
amortized cost or best estimate for those securities where market value is not readily available. LAIF is
part of the Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA) and under the control of the State Treasurer’s
Office, which is audited by the Bureau of State Audits on an annual basis. As of June 30, 2020, PMIA
had approximately $103 billion in investments. The fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is
reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of
the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that
portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF,
which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Audited financial statements of PMIA may be obtained
from the California State Treasurer’s web site at www.treasurer.ca.gov.
Investments Authorized by the District’s Investment Policy
The District does not have a specific investment policy but generally follows the guidelines of Monterey
County’s Investment Policy. All funds invested are managed to meet the guidelines stated in both
California Code Section 53600, et. seq. and the County’s investment policy. The following County
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Investment Pool guidelines and directives are generally followed by District management:
•

The legal, final maturity of any single security within the investment portfolio will not exceed five
years at purchase.

•

The weighted average life of the portfolio will not exceed two years.

•

The maximum maturity of investments in a money market pool shall not exceed 397 days, and
the weighted maturity average maturity of the pool shall not exceed 90 days. A money market
pool shall not exceed 10% of the portfolio’s book value on the date investments are made;
maximum investment in all money market pools shall not exceed 20% of the portfolio’s book
value on the date that investments are made.

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s
investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the maturity
date and yield of each investment:
Maturity Date and Yield
Monterey County investment pool

$ 36,196,250

due on demand, 1.89% yield

1,184,855

due on demand, 1.74% yield

Union Bank checking

506,816

due on demand, 0.15% yield

Union Bank payroll

117,182

due on demand, 0.01% yield

State investment pool (LAIF)

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. The County Pool and LAIF do not have a rating provided by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization.
Concentration of Credit Risk
The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any
one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. At year end, 95% of the District’s
cash was invested with the Monterey County Investment Pool.
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code does not
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits,
other than the following provision for deposits: the California Government Code requires that a financial
institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the
governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least
110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150%
of the secured public deposits. At year end the District had $387,679 in bank financial institutions that
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was not covered by the FDIC, but was covered by collateralized securities of the bank financial
institutions where the deposits were maintained.
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment
or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and
the County’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure
to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally
applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local
government’s indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment
pools.

Note 5 - Capital Assets
Capital assets activity for the year consists of the following:
Beginning
Balance

Additions/
Completions

Retirements/
Adjustments

$

$

Ending
Balance

Non-depreciable Assets
Land and land rights
Construction-in-progress
totals

$

308,060
1,915,151
2,223,211

2,075,448
2,075,448

(1,909,615)
(1,909,615)

$

308,060
2,080,984
2,389,044

Depreciable Assets
Treatment structures
Treatment equipment
Collection pump stations
Collection pump equipment
Sewers and appurtenances
Disposal facilities
Other assets
totals
Accumulated Depreciation
Net Capital Assets

70,224,270
7,706,139
1,040,749
929,723
11,018,761
1,352,473
3,825,884
96,097,999

134,182
609,436
198,095
19,530
100,659
291,418
512,094
1,865,414

(48,564,803)

(2,799,809)

$ 49,756,407

$ 1,141,053

283,850
$ (1,625,765)

70,358,452
8,315,575
1,238,844
949,253
11,119,420
1,643,891
4,337,978
97,963,413
(51,080,762)
$ 49,271,695

In the statement of revenue, expenses, and change in net position, total depreciation expense for the
year was charged to the following departments:
Collection
Treatment and disposal
Administration
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$

322,705
2,446,841
30,263

$

2,799,809

Note 6 - Receivables
Receivables at year end consist of the following:
User fees - customers
Trade receivables
Total accounts receivable

$

Reclamation Project
Pebble Beach CSD
Total receivables from affiliates

$

$

$

85,849
62,679
148,528
87,421
729,150
816,571

Note 7 - Payables
Payables at year end consist of the following:
Construction, engineering and consultants

$

266,884

Legal, accounting and professionals

84,849

Repairs and maintenance

50,059

Other vendors
$

11,632
413,424

Note 8 - Deferred Compensation Plan
The District maintains a deferred compensation plan for its eligible employees wherein amounts earned
by the employees are paid at a future date. All full-time, regular, salaried employees are permitted to
participate in the plan beginning on the first day of the month following their hire date. An employee may
elect to make contributions up to the limits established by the Internal Revenue Service for this type of
plan, and becomes 100% vested from the first date of participation. Nationwide Retirement Solutions,
Inc., and the Variable Annuity Life Insurance Company, both administer the plan, which is in conformity
with Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code.
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Note 9 - Long-term Obligations
Long-term debt and obligation activity for the year was as follows:

Revenue bonds
Compensated absences
Single employer net pension
liability (overfunded)
CalPERS net pension
liability (overfunded)

Beginning
Balance
$ 1,090,000
209,216
(1,013,654)

$

395,657
681,219

Additions
$
36,261
50,371
153,271
$ 239,903

Reductions
$ (160,000)
-

Ending
Balance
$ 930,000
245,477

$ (160,000)

Due Within
One Year
$ 170,000
61,369

(963,283)

$

548,928
761,122

Compensated Absences
The accrued compensated absences amounts will be paid from available resources and are classified as
current or noncurrent, based upon expected payment dates.

Revenue Bonds
In 2004, the District issued $3,000,000 in California Statewide Communities Development Authority
Water and Wastewater Revenue Series 2004-A Bonds through a pooled financing program for the
design, planning, and construction of sewer facilities for certain properties located within the Carmel
Highlands area. The District has signed agreements with (1) the Highlands Inn, (2) the Highlands
Sanitary Association (which is comprised of eleven individual owners as members) and (3) the Tickle
Pink Inn, to be reimbursed through sewer user fees for all the annual costs associated with the bonds
including, but not necessarily limited to, installment payments of principal and interest on the bonds, debt
service or administrative fees, and costs or obligations for which the District is obligated to make under
the terms of the bond agreement. The sewer user fees and reimbursable costs generated from the
customers in the Carmel Highlands area are assessed and included on the Monterey County secured
property tax rolls, and submitted by the District annually, as is the same payment program with all District
wastewater customers. Principal on the bonds is payable annually beginning October 1, 2004. Interest
is payable semi-annually on October 1 and April 1, beginning October 1, 2004.
The interest rates on the bonds range from 1.5% to 5.25%; the bonds mature on October 1, 2024. The
bond agreement contains a covenant requiring the District to yield “system net revenues” during each
fiscal year equal to at least 120% of the annual debt service in the fiscal year. The covenant has been
met.
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Future annual principal and interest requirements are as follows:

Year Ending June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
totals

Revenue Bonds, Series 2004-A
Principal
Interest
Total
$
170,000
$
44,363
$
214,363
175,000
35,306
210,306
185,000
25,856
210,856
195,000
15,881
210,881
205,000
5,381
210,381
$
930,000
$
126,787
$ 1,056,787

Note 10 - Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions
Plan Description
In September 2002, the District established a postemployment health plan (PEHP) to meet its
employees’ postemployment health care needs and expenses. Under the PEHP plan, Nationwide
Retirement Solutions Company (NRS) provides administrative services in exchange for a fee as agreed
upon by the District and NRS. The plan does not establish a long-term liability of the District. All
employees are permitted to participate in the plan beginning on the first day of the month following their
hire date. The District contributes 1% of an employee’s salary to the plan on a periodic basis, on behalf
of each eligible employee who is a plan participant. Amounts contributed are segregated to either one or
both of the following sub-accounts for: (1) reimbursements of qualifying medical care expenses not paid
by insurance or (2) reimbursement of health care insurance premiums. Contributions may not vary
among eligible employees to fund the qualifying medical care expense sub-account and will be made as
an equal dollar amount for each employee. Contributions to fund health care insurance premium subaccounts may be made as an equal dollar amount or as a percentage of salary, but such percent or
dollar amount must apply to all eligible employees. For the year ended June 30, 2020 the District
contributed $35,700 to the plan.

Note 11 - Single Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
A. General Information about the Plan
Plan Description
The Plan was established on July 1, 1969 by the District and has been amended several times since that
date. The benefit formula is 2.5% of the participant’s highest calendar year pay times years of benefit
service. The Plan was amended effective October 29, 2005 to provide that the Normal retirement age,
be age 62 with 5 years participation. Previously it was age 65. Also benefit service was frozen as of
October 29, 2005 plus an additional 3.333 years for participants employed on that date. Vesting service
was amended to add 3 years for participants employed on the amendment date. Employees hired after
October 29, 2005 cannot participate in this plan but are eligible to participate in the District’s retirement
plan with the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multipleemployer defined benefit pension plan.
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The Plan documents contain a more detailed description of the Plan provisions and should be referred to
for a more complete understanding of the terms of the Plan. The District is the Plan Administrator.
Additional information concerning this Single Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan can be obtained
from the District’s principal accountant.
Contributions
The District’s funding policy is to provide for employer contributions on a monthly basis. Employer
contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2020 were $-0- since the plan is overfunded.
Contributions are actuarially determined under the aggregate actuarial cost method and are designed to
accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Although service credit to the plan has stopped,
employees will only be able to draw their pension account upon separation from District employment.
Plan Membership
As of June 30, 2020, pension plan membership consisted of the following:
Retired members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Vested terminated members entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits
Active members
total

4
3
6
13

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions
As of June 30, 2020, the District reported a Net Pension Liability as follows:
Total pension liability
Fiduciary net position (plan assets)
Net pension liability (overfunded)

$

4,418,447
5,432,101
(1,013,654)

At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to this pension plan from the following sources:
Deferred Outflows
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Differences between expected and actual experience
Totals

of Resources
$
-

$

26,437
85,343
111,780

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$
77,964

$

36,185
114,149

Amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension
expense in the years ending June 30, 2020 and thereafter as follows:
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Year Ended
June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
thereafter

$

$

(40,696)
(3,998)
19,556
21,747
1,022
(2,369)

C. Actuarial Assumptions
The Total pension liability was determined as part of actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020 using the
following actuarial methods and assumptions in accordance with GASB No. 68:
Valuation date
Measurement date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization method
Long-term inflation rate
Salary increases
Investment Rate of Return, net
Retirement age, with 5 years participation
Mortality

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2020
Entry Age Normal
5 years
3-5 years
2.00%
3.50%
6.00%
62
RP-2014 tables

D. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.0% which is the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments net of pension plan administrative expense, including inflation.
E. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.0%, as well as what
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point
lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

Net Pension Liability (overfunded)

5.00%
(1% Decrease)
$
(435,509)
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Discount Rate
6.00%
(Current Rate)
(963,283)
$

7.00%
(1% Increase)
$
(1,402,918)

Note 12 - Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
A. General Information about the Plan
Plan Description
Starting October 29, 2005, the District provides pension benefits to eligible employees through a costsharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees
Retirement System (CalPERS). CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating public entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements
are established by State statute and District ordinance. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that
include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions, and
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.
Benefits Provided
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years
of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service
are eligible to retire at age 50-55 with statutorily reduced benefits. Death benefits are the pre-retirement
Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit, and the post-retirement death benefit lump sum. The cost of
living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees Retirement Law.
The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2020, are summarized as follows:

Hire date
Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates (1)
Required employer contribution rates (1)

CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan
Prior to
On or after
January 1, 2013
January 1, 2013
(Classic)
(PEPRA)
2% @ 60
2% @ 62
5 years svc
5 year svc
monthly for life
monthly for life
60
62
2.0%
2.0%
7.000%
6.750%
8.081%
6.985%

(1) Subject to annual changes after January 1, 2013

Contributions
The District makes partial contributions required of District employees on their behalf and for their account
depending upon date of hire. Employee members are required to make contributions of their annual
covered salary in an amount depending upon date of hire. The contribution requirements of plan are
established and may be amended by CalPERS. Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’
Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on
an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the
rate. Funding contributions for the Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30
each year, by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
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unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially
determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. For the year ended June 30, 2020, employer
pension plan contributions were $227,991.
B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions
As of June 30, 2020, the District reported a net pension liability for its Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability of the CalPERS Public Agency Cost-Sharing Plan as follows:
Total pension liability
Fiduciary net position (plan assets)
Net pension liability

$

6,841,185
6,292,257
548,928

The District’s net pension liability for its Plan with CalPERS is measured as the proportionate share of
the net pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2019
(measurement date), and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 rolled forward to June 30, 2019 using
standard update procedures.
The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
employers, actuarially determined.
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized $398,446 as pension expense. The District
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to this pension plan
from the following sources:
Deferred
Deferred
Outflows of
Inflows of
Resources
Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience
$
38,125
$
(2,954)
Changes of assumptions
26,175
(9,279)
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
(9,597)
Change in employer's proportion
223,989
Differences between employer's contributions and the
proportionate share of contributions
(77,534)
Pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date
227,991
Totals
$
516,280
$
(99,364)
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Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources in Future Pension Expense, as follows:
Year Ending June 30:
2021
2022

$

122,190
50,076

2023

14,721

2024

1,938

2025

188,925

$

C. Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability for this plan’ s actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions:
Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return

June 30, 2018
June 30, 2019
Entry-Age Normal Cost
7.15%
2.50%
Varies by Entry Age and Service
7.0% net of investment expenses

D. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. To determine whether
the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate, CalPERS stress tested
plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially
assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore,
the current 7.0 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation
is not necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 7.0 percent will be applied to all plans in the
Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report
that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.
According to Paragraph 30 of GASB Statement No. 68, the long-term discount rate should be
determined without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.0 percent investment return
assumption used in this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative
expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses
would have been 7.15 percent. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher Total
Pension Liability and Net Pension Liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the difference
in calculation and did not find it to be a material difference.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a buildingblock method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
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of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. In
determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and longterm market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach.
Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was
calculated for each asset class. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set
equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of
one percent.
CalPERS adheres to an Asset Allocation Strategy which establishes asset class allocation policy targets
and ranges, and manages those asset class allocations within their policy ranges. The table below
reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated using
the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates
of return are net of administrative expenses. The asset allocation has an expected long-term blended
rate of return of 7.0 percent.
Asset Class
Global Equity
Fixed Income
Private Equity
Real Assets
Liquid Assets

Allocation
50.00%
28.00%
8.00%
13.00%
1.00%
100.00%

E. Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.15%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher
than the current rate:

Net Pension Liability

6.15%
(1% Decrease)
$
1,469,089

Discount Rate
7.15%
(Current Rate)
$
548,928

8.15%
(1% Increase)
$
(210,599)

Note 13 - Risk Management
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. This policy covers solely the
District’s property and equipment located on State Route 1 in Carmel, California, and not property and
equipment owned by other government agencies that may be physically located on CAWD property.
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The District is a member of the California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA), an
established public entity risk pool that operates as a common risk management and insurance program for
60 government members. The District pays an annual premium to the risk pool for its workers’
compensation, excess workers compensation, property, and general coverage. Risk of loss is retained for
general liability claims. The agreement with the risk pool provides that it will be self-sustaining through
member premiums and additional policies purchased from commercial insurance companies for general
liability claims, and for excess workers’ compensation claims. The District’s share of CSRMA year-end
assets, liabilities, and retained earnings has not been calculated by the CSRMA. Financial statements
may be obtained from CSRMA, 100 Pine Street, 11th Floor, San Francisco, California 94111.
Health Life and Vision Insurance - the District participates in a group health insurance plan, which
provides benefits for all qualified employees.
Dental Insurance - the District has elected to self-insure for dental insurance under a reimbursement
plan. The amount of the contingent liability, if any, at fiscal year end is not material, however, the District
is not aware of any significant claims currently pending.

Note 14 - Subsequent Events
The management of the District has reviewed the results of operations for the period from its year end
June 30, 2020 through December 9, 2020, the date the draft financial statements were available to be
issued, and have determined that no adjustments are necessary to the amounts reported in the
accompanying financial statements nor have any subsequent events occurred, the nature of which would
require disclosure.

Note 15 - New Pronouncements
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has released
pronouncements, which can be read in their entirety at http://www.gasb.org

the

following

new

In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement establishes
criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria
generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the
beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary
component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The objective of
this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The requirements in this
Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2020.
In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet
the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for
leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a
lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and a right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to
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recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 30, 2020.
In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89 Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability
of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify
accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. This Statement established
accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. Such interest
cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in accordance with the requirements of
paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62 Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which are superseded by this
Statement.
This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized
as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type
activity or enterprise fund. This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the
current financial resources measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction
period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting
principles. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2020.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(unaudited)
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information
Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (unaudited)
As of June 30, 2020

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
The proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability represents the District’s share of the
cost-sharing plan assets offset against the actuarial determined collective pension liability.
The proportionate share (dollar amount) of the collective net pension liability represents the District’s
share of the cost-sharing plan assets offset against the actuarial determined collective pension liability.
The employer’s covered-employee payroll represents the payroll of employees that are provided with
pensions through the plan.

Schedule of Contributions
The employer’s contributions to the plan is actuarially determined or based on statutory or contractual
requirements which comprise the following: (1) the agent employer’s actuarially determined contribution
to the pension plan (its statutorily/contractually required contribution), (2) the employer’s actual
contributions, the difference between the actual and actuarially determined contributions (its
statutorily/contractually required contributions), and (3) a ratio of the actual contributions divided by
covered-employee payroll.
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (unaudited)
Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Last 6 Fiscal Years *

Measurement Date - Fiscal Year Ending June 30

Schedule of the District's Proportionate
Share of the Plan's Net Pension Liability

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

0.0054%

0.0041%

0.0045%

0.0033%

0.0005%

0.0101%

(33,002) $

629,116

District's proportion of the net
pension liability
District's proportionate share of the
net pension liability

$

548,928

District's covered-employee payroll **

$ 2,531,591

$

395,657

$ 2,252,020

$

448,040

$ 2,177,857

$

285,127

$ 2,030,331

$

$ 2,053,405

$ 1,868,031

District's proportionate share of the
net pension liability as a percentage
of its covered-employee payroll

21.68%

17.57%

20.57%

14.04%

-1.61%

33.68%

75.27%

75.26%

73.31%

74.06%

78.40%

79.82%

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability

Fiscal Year Ending June 30
2020

Schedule of the District's Contributions

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

Contractually required
employer contribution

$

227,991

$

199,800

$

165,214

$

152,534

$

134,094

$

157,952

Contributions in relation to
the contractually required
employer contribution

227,991

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

-

District's covered-employee payroll ***

$ 2,758,226

199,800
$

-

$ 2,531,591

165,214
$

-

$ 2,252,020

152,534
$

-

$ 2,177,857

134,094
$

-

$ 2,030,331

718,672
$ (560,720)
$ 2,053,405

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

8.27%

7.89%

7.34%

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown
** for the measurement date fiscal year
*** for the fiscal year ending on the date shown
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7.00%

6.60%

35.00%

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (unaudited)
Single Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
As of June 30, 2020

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability
The beginning and ending balances of the total pension liability, the plan assets available for pension
benefits, and the net pension liability, as well as the change in those amounts during the year are
presented by cause.
Total pension liability, plan net position, net pension liability, a ratio of plan net position divided by the
total pension liability, payroll amount for current employees in the plan (covered-employee payroll), and a
ratio of the net pension liability divided by covered-employee payroll.

Schedule of Contributions
The employer’s contributions to the plan is actuarially determined or based on statutory or contractual
requirements which comprise the following: (1) the agent employer’s actuarially determined contribution
to the pension plan (its statutorily/contractually required contribution), (2) the employer’s actual
contributions, the difference between the actual and actuarially determined contributions (its
statutorily/contractually required contributions), and (3) a ratio of the actual contributions divided by
covered-employee payroll.

221

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (unaudited)
Single Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Last 6 Fiscal Years *
Schedule of Changes in the District's Net Pension Liability
Fiscal Year Ending June 30
Total Pension Liability:
Service Cost

2020
$

Interest on total pension liability

2019
-

$

2018
-

$

2017
-

$

2016
-

$

2015
-

$

-

259,881

253,702

267,900

271,856

267,034

234,721

84,663

6,974

(80,294)

16,907

29,560

103,803

(17,336)

(5,452)

(62,738)

-

-

(907,311)

Benefit payments, includes refunds

(176,786)

(128,424)

(596,447)

(112,946)

(319,499)

(73,846)

Net change in total pension liability

150,422

126,800

(471,579)

175,817

(22,905)

(642,633)

Differences between expected and actual
Changes of assumptions

Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending

4,418,447

4,291,647

4,763,226

4,587,409

4,610,314

5,252,947

$ 4,568,869

$ 4,418,447

$ 4,291,647

$ 4,763,226

$ 4,587,409

$ 4,610,314

$

$

$

$

$

$

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee

-

34,600

-

Net investment income
Benefit payments, includes refunds
Administrative expense

-

88,680
-

130,672
-

264,302

364,427

374,628

(92,216)

(176,786)

(128,424)

(596,447)

(112,946)

(319,499)

(1,842)

100,051

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

-

278,846

(2,009)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

78,936

(1,844)

168,636

(1,763)

(154,928)

348,599

216,420
227,644
-

(16,821)

(73,846)

(297,864)

370,218

5,432,101

5,263,465

5,418,393

5,069,794

5,367,658

4,987,466

Plan fiduciary net position - ending

$ 5,532,152

$ 5,432,101

$ 5,263,465

$ 5,418,393

$ 5,069,794

$ 5,357,684

Net Pension Liability / (Overfunded)

$

$ (1,013,654)

$ (971,818)

$ (655,167)

$ (482,385)

$ (747,370)

$

$

$

(963,283)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability:
Covered employee payroll

$

747,631

$

711,527

$

680,149

683,592

759,350

785,681

NPL as percentage of covered
employee payroll

128.8%

122.9%

122.6%

-95.8%

-64.0%

-97.0%

Schedule of District's Contributions:
Actuarially determined contribution

$

Actual contributions

-

$

-

Contribution deficiency / (excess)

$

Covered employee payroll

$

-

747,631

-

$

(34,600)

103,838

$

(78,936)

78,940

$

(88,680)

$

(34,600)

$

24,902

$

$

711,527

$

680,149

$

(9,740)

683,592

88,667

$

(130,672)

130,567
(216,420)

$

(42,005)

$

(85,853)

$

759,350

$

779,176

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

0.00%

-4.86%

-11.61%

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.
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-12.97%

-17.21%

-27.78%

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Information
Revenue and Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2020

Final Budget
(unaudited)
Operating Revenue
Sewer service fees
PBCSD treatment fees
Reclamation Project O&M reimbursements
Liquid Food Waste fees
Brine Disposal fees
Other operating revenue
Total operating revenue

$

Operating Expenses
Maintenance
Collection
Treatment and disposal
General and administrative
Reclamation Project O&M expenses
Waste to Energy costs
Brine Disposal costs
Other operating expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses)
Property tax revenue
Investment earnings
Highlands Sewer Project revenue
PBCSD capital reimbursements
Reclamation Project capital reimbursements
Debt Service - Interest and fiscal expenses
Other nonoperating revenue
Other nonoperating (expenses)
Total non-operating revenue and (expenses)
Net income (loss)

GAAP Reconciling Adjustment
Depreciation expense
Net income - budgetary basis

8,207,479
1,200,000
471,937
27,000
9,906,416

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Actual
$

8,557,816
1,541,642
642,238
9,884
104,714
100,346
10,956,640

$

350,337
341,642
170,301
9,884
104,714
73,346
1,050,224

1,876,166
2,040,959
5,155,757
1,724,824
471,937
9,108
7,910
11,286,661

1,151,754
1,601,805
5,054,282
1,117,264
573,988
25,114
6,922
9,531,129

724,412
439,154
101,475
607,560
(102,051)
(16,006)
988
1,755,532

(1,380,245)

1,425,511

2,805,756

1,812,897
250,000
215,625
985,739
58,021
(53,025)
(2,600)
3,266,657

2,140,553
715,611
218,013
254,606
22,744
(54,006)
323,622
(1,220)
3,619,923

$

1,886,412

$

2,669,000
4,555,412
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$

5,045,434

$

2,799,809
7,845,243

327,656
465,611
2,388
(731,133)
(35,277)
(981)
323,622
1,380
353,266
$

3,159,022

$

130,809
3,289,831

End of Report
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STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Barbara Buikema, General Manager

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

CAWD Pension Plan – Actuarial Review July 1, 2020

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board of Directors accept the Carmel Area Wastewater
District 2020 Actuary Report prepared by Nicolay Consulting.

DISCUSSION
Nicolay Consulting, the District’s actuary, has completed the July 1, 2020 report for the Strategic
Asset Management Plan (SAM). The plan was reviewed by the Pension Committee on January
7, 2020.
Actuarial Report Highlights:
Employer Contribution for plan year ending June 30, 2020:
Annual Contribution to fully amortize the Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability in five years (adjusted for monthly contributions)
Market Value of Asset on July 1, 2020
Actuarial Asset Value on July 1, 2020
Present Value of all Accrued Plan Benefits on July 1, 2020
Number of Participants on July 1, 2020
Retired participants receiving benefits
Terminated vested participants entitled to future benefits
Active participants
Total participants

$-0$5,532,152
$5,496,670
$5,400,812
4
3
6
13

The plan’s funded status on an All Expected Future Benefits basis (represents the present value
of all expected future benefits under the plan including benefits expected to be earned for future
service based on future salary increases) as follows:
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97%
96%
100%

June 30, 2016
June 30, 2017
June 30, 2018

103% June 30, 2019
102% June 30, 2020

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAL) as of July 1, 2020 is ($95,858). Note: The
negative value represents the UAL as an asset.
FUNDING
The 2020 Actuary Report recommended minimum required contribution for the 2020-21
Plan Year is $-0-.
The charge from Nicolay Consulting Services to prepare actuarial report and employee
was $7,217.00. This included preparation of Government Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) 68 work for financial statements. The budget was $10,000.
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Carmel Area
Wastewater District
Pension plan
2020 Actuary’s Report
Actuarially Determined Contribution for Plan Year 2020/21

Valuation Date:
Plan Year Ending:
Tax Year Ending:
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July 1, 2020
June 30, 2021
June 30, 2021

Nicolay Consulting Group
PENSION CONSULTANTS AND ACTUARIES
530 BUSH STREET, SUITE 500
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94108-3633
TEL: 415-512-5300
FAX: 415-512-5314

December 07, 2020
Ms. Barbara Buikema
Carmel Area Wastewater District
P0 Box 221428
Carmel, CA 93922
Dear Ms. Buikema:

Re: Carmel Area Wastewater District Pension Plan - July 1, 2020 Actuary's Report
We have performed an actuarial valuation of the Carmel Area Wastewater District Pension Plan (the “Plan”) for the
purpose of determining the plan’s funding status as of July 1, 2020 and Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) for
the 2020/21 Plan Year. This report is provided solely for this purpose and should not be used or relied upon for other
purposes. It also should not be disclosed or distributed to a third party, unless we provide written permission.
This report is based on actual experience through June 30, 2020 and plan provisions in effect on July 1, 2020. The
valuation and cost calculations for the 2020/21 Plan Year, as summarized in this report, are based on participant data
and un-audited Plan financial information provided by Carmel Area Wastewater District (the “District”) as of July 1,
2020.
All costs, liabilities, and other factors under the plan were determined in accordance with generally accepted actuarial
principles and procedures. In our opinion, the actuarial assumptions used are individually reasonable taking into account
the experience of the plan and consistent expectations as to future experience. In combination, the actuarial assumptions
represent our best estimate of the anticipated experience under the plan. The costs and actuarial exhibits presented in this
report, in our opinion, fully and fairly disclose the actuarial position of the plan.
Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this report due to
such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or demographic
assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; increases or decreases expected as part of the natural
operation of the methodology used for these measurements (such as the end of an amortization period); and changes
in plan provisions or applicable law. Due to the limited scope of this assignment, we did not perform an analysis of
the potential range of possible future measurements.
The actuarial calculations were completed under the supervision of Earlene L. Young, and Gary E. Cline, . We are
members of the American Academy of Actuaries and meet the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of
Actuaries to render the actuarial opinion herein.. There is no relationship between the plan sponsor and our employer
that would impair our objectivity in preparing this report.
We would be pleased to answer any questions on the material contained in this report or to provide explanation or
further detail as may be appropriate.
Respectfully submitted,
Nicolay Consulting Group

Earlene L. Young, MAAA, FCA, EA
Senior Actuary

Gary E. Cline, ASA, MAAA, FCA, EA
Vice President & Chief Operating Officer
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SECTION I
Summary
A. Highlights
Actuarially Determined Contribution for plan year ending June 30, 2021:
Annual Contribution to fully amortize the Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability in five years (adjusted for monthly contributions)

$

0

Market Value of Asset on July 1, 2020

$

5,532,152

Actuarial Asset Value on July 1, 2020

$

5,496,670

Present Value of all Accrued Plan Benefits on July 1, 2020

$

5,400,812

Number of Participants at July 1, 2020:
Retired participants receiving benefits

4

Terminated vested participants entitled to future benefits

3

Active participants

6

Total participants

13
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Summary
B.

Valuation Summary

The Carmel Area Wastewater District Pension Plan was established effective July 1, 1969 and has been
amended from time to time since that date. The October 29, 2005 Plan amendment froze benefit service as
of October 29, 2005, credited an additional 3 years of service for active employees and reduced normal
retirement age from 65 to 62.
This section presents a summary of the valuation results and the funding status of the Plan at July 1, 2020:
1.

Annual Cost

Based on funding the initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability over a period of five years from July 1,
2014 and each Gain/Loss over a 5 year period, the Actuarially Determined Contribution for the 2019/2020
Plan Year is $0.
2.

Change in Annual Cost

The Actuarially Determined Contribution remained at $0 for the 2020/21 Plan Year.

(1) Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)
(2) Covered Compensation (less than age 65)
(3) ADC as a Percentage of Covered Compensation
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2019/2020

2018/2019

2017/2018

$0

$0

$0

$747,631

$711,527

$680,149

0%

0%

0%

Summary
B.
3.

Valuation Summary, continued
Funded Status

A plan's "funded status" is measured by comparing the Plan's assets with the Plan's actuarial liability. A
ratio in excess of 100% means that the Plan's assets exceed the actuarial liability.
The Plan's actuarial liability may be measured in a variety of ways. Some of the alternatives are described
below:


Hard Frozen/Terminated Plan Basis:
This actuarial liability represents the actuarial present value of all benefits accrued as of the valuation
date, based on service and salary at that date.



On-going Plan Basis:
This actuarial liability represents the actuarial present value of all benefits allocated to plan years prior
to the valuation date based on a particular actuarial cost method (i.e., Projected Unit Credit cost
method). These calculations would include a projection of salary to the anticipated date of
retirement/termination, based on the salary scale used for determining Plan cost.



All Expected Future Plan Benefits:
This actuarial liability represents the actuarial present value of all expected future benefits under the
Plan as of the valuation date including benefits expected to be earned for future service based on future
salary increases. Since service was frozen on October 29, 2005 this is equal to the On-going plan basis.

The Plan's funded status is described below, based on each of these measures of actuarial liability for the
current year and the past two years.
June 30,
2020

June 30,
2019

June 30,
2018

Actuarial Value of Assets

$5,496,670

$5,368,290

$5,126,285

Actuarial Liabilities:
Frozen Plan Basis
On-Going Plan/All Expected Future Plan Benefits

$4,871,182
$5,400,812

$4,669,888
$5,211,326

$4,572,558
$5,112,788

Funded Status:
Frozen Plan Basis
All Expected Future Plan Benefits
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115%
103%

112%
100%

Summary
C.

Historical Summary
2019/2021

Annual Costs
Actuarially Determined
Contribution
Employer Contribution Made

2019/2020

$0

$0

2018/2019
$0

2017/2018

2016/2017

$103,838

$ 78,940

$78,936

$ 88,680

Not
Available

$0

$34,600

$5,532,152
$5,496,670

$5,432,101
$5,368,290

$5,263,465
$5,126,285

$5,418,843
$5,430,513

$5,069,794
$5,285,090

$5,400,812

$5,211,326

$5,112,788

$5,639,170

$ 5,455,005

($13,497)

$ 208,657

$ 169,915

ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF
PLAN YEAR
Market Value of Assets
Actuarial Value of Assets
ACTUARIAL LIABILITIES
AT BEZGINNING OF PLAN
YEAR
Actuarial Accrued Liability
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued
Liability (Asset)

($95,858)

($156,964)

NUMBER OF
PARTICIPANTS
Retired
Disabled
Vested Termination
Active
Total
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4
0
3
6

3
0
4
6

3
0
4
6

3
0
5
6

2
0
5
7

13

13

13

14

14
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SECTION II
Valuation Funding Information
A.

Development of the 2020/2021 Employer Contribution

Contribution required to amortize the July 1, 2020 unfunded actuarial accrued liability over a closed
5-year period plus gains and losses over 5 years.
(a) Normal cost at July 1, 2020

$

0

(b) Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued liability since July 1, 2020 over 5 years, payable
as of beginning of year [see Section II(C)]

0

(c) Interest adjustment for monthly payments at 4.50%

0

(d) Actuarially Determined Contribution for 2020/2021 plan year,
payable monthly

Carmel Area Wastewater District Pension Plan
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$

0

Valuation Funding Information
B.

Development of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability
1. Projected Unit Credit actuarial accrued liability as of
July 1, 2020
(a) Active participants
(b) Retired participants
(c) Disabled participants
(d) Terminated vested participants

$ 2,402,005
2,633,458
0
365,349
$ 5,400,812

2. Actuarial Value of Assets as of July 1, 2020
3. Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (asset) as of
July 1, 2020 (1) - (2)
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5,496,670
($ 95,858)

Valuation Funding Information
C.

Summary of Amortization Bases Used in Development of 2020/2021
Employer Contribution Range
Amortization bases for the District have been fully amortized as of June 30, 2020. Future actuarial
gains and losses on/after July 1, 2020 will be amortized over a 5-year period beginning on the date
established. Since the Plan is fully funded, the amortization payment is zero.

Item

Initial
Amount

Date
Established

Total
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Initial
Period
(Years)

Remaining
Balance
on
7/1/2020
N/A
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Annual
Amortization
Payment
(Payable
Monthly)
0

SECTION III
Asset Information
A.

Statement of Plan Assets at June 30, 2020

The assets of the Carmel Area Wastewater District Pension Plan are invested with Commonwealth
Financial Network

Investments:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

212,196

Pooled Mutual Funds-Equity

3,489,479

Pooled Mutual Funds-Fixed Income

1,785,942

Participant Loans

16,173

Cash value at June 30, 2020

$ 5,503,790

Receivable from disbursement account

28,362

Loan payment receivable

0

Market Value assets at June 30, 2020

Carmel Area Wastewater District Pension Plan
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Asset Information
B.

Changes in Assets during the 2019/2020 Plan Year
1. Market Value assets at July 1, 2019

$ 5,432,101

2. Changes during year
(a) Credits
(i) Employer contributions
(ii) Participant contributions
(iii) Earned income
(iv) Investment gain (unrealized and realized)
(v) Total credits
(b) Charges
(i) Investment Expenses
(ii) Retirement and Disability benefits
(iii) Lump sum benefits
(iv) Loan defaulted
(v) Administrative fees
(vi) Total charges
3. Market Value assets at June 30, 2020 = 1 + 2(a)(v) - 2(b)(v)
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$

0
0
208,431
107,495

$ 37,079
176,787
0
0
2,009

315,926

215,875
$ 5,532,152

Asset Information
C. ACTUARIAL VALUE OF ASSETS – ASSET AVERAGING

(1)

July 1, 2020 Market Value

(2)

Previous Asset Gains and Losses

(a)
(b)
(c)

$ 5,532,152

(i)
Amount

2018/19 Gain
2017/18 Gain
Total Asset Adjustment

$38,424
29,598

(ii)
Weighting
2/3
1/3

(iii)
(i) x (ii)
$25,616
9,866
$35,482

(3)

Adjusted Assets [(1) – (2)(e)(iii)]

(4)

Minimum Actuarial Value of Assets [ 85% x (1) ]

4,702,329

(5)

Maximum Actuarial Value of Assets [ 115% x (1) ]

6,361,975

(6)

Actuarial Value of Assets [ (3); not less than (4) or more than (5) ]
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$5,496,670

SECTION IV
Census Data
A.

Classification of Participants
July 1, 2020

July 1, 2019

1. Active participants accruing benefits:
(a) Under normal retirement age
(b) Over normal retirement age
(c) Total

5
1
6

6
0
6

2. Terminated participants with deferred vested benefits

3

4

3. Retired and disabled participants presently receiving
benefit payments

4

3

13

13

4. Total = (1c) + (2) + (3)

B.

Age and Service Profile of Active Participants
Completed Years of Accrual Service July 1, 2020
Age
0-24
25-29
30-34
35-39
40-44
45-49
50-54
55-59
60-64
65-69
70+

1-4

5-9

10-14

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0

0

0

15-19

20-30

0
0
0
0
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
2

Active Participants

Total

0
0
0
0
0
1
2
0
1
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
3
2
0
1
0
0

4

0

6

July 1, 2020

Average Age
Average Service Plan Participation:
Average Annual Salary:

Carmel Area Wastewater District Pension Plan
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July 1, 2019

50.93
20.97
$118,588

SECTION V

Assumptions and Methods

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation of the
Plan follows:
Actuarial Methods:
Actuarial Cost Method:

Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method

Valuation of Assets:

Effective July 1, 2014, the Actuarial Value of Assets are determined
based on the smoothed market value (without phasing). Under this
method, a gain or loss for a year is determined by calculating the
difference between the expected value of the assets for the year and
the fair market value of assets at the valuation date. The actuarial
value of assets is equal to the market value of plan’s assets with gains
subtracted or losses added at the rates described as follows:
(1) 2/3 of the prior year’s gain or loss, plus
(2) 1/3 of the second preceding year’s gain or loss
The asset value determined under this method will be adjusted to be no
greater than 115% and no less than 85% of the fair market value.
Before July 1, 2014, assets are valued at fair market value on June 30
as reported by the District.

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Yield:

Pre-retirement, net of expenses:
4.50% per annum.
Post-retirement, net of expenses:
(a) Lump Sums: 6.25%,
(b) Annuities: 4.50%.

Salary Scale:

3.5% per annum.

Rate of Retirement:

Participants are expected to retire on their Normal Retirement Date.

Rate of Employee Turnover:

None
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Assumptions and Methods
Rate of Disability:

None

Rate of Mortality:

(1) Pre-retirement: None
(2) Post-retirement:
(a) Lump Sums: 1994 GAR Mortality Tables, blended 50% male and 50%
female.
(b) Annuities: PubG(A)-2014 Healthy Annuitant Generational
Mortality Tables with Generational Projection Scale
MP-2019 (Males and Female).*
*For the 2019 year, RP-2014 Top- Quartile Healthy
Annuitant Generational Mortality Tables with Projection
Scale MP-2018 was used.

Expenses:

It is assumed that expenses will be paid by investment returns greater than the
assumed investment yield (i.e., investment return is net of expenses).

Payment Form:

It is assumed that :
(a) 50% participants elect lump sums,
(b) 50% participants elect annuity payments;
at retirement, termination, death or disability.

Amortization Period
of Unfunded Liabilities

The unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities are fully amortized as of July, 1
2020. Gains and losses arise on/after July 1, 2020 will be amortized over a 5year period.
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SECTION VI
Plan Provisions
Effective Date:

July 1, 1969

Most Recent
Restatement Date:

July 1, 2003

Most Recent
Amendment Date:

Effective July 1, 2009

Plan Year:

July 1 to June 30

Eligibility for Coverage:

All employees hired prior to October 29, 2005.

Employee Contribution:

None required.

District Contribution:

Full cost of Plan.

Normal Retirement Date:

July 1 after reaching age 62 and completing five years of Plan
participation.

Delayed Retirement Date:

First of any month following actual retirement after attaining age 62 and
completion of five years of Plan participation. An employee can work
beyond his normal retirement date and continue to earn pension
benefits.

Early Retirement Date:

None

Disability

Total and permanent disability which lasts at least six months resulting
in termination of employment.

Normal Form of
Retirement Benefit:

The amount of annual retirement income determined by the benefit
formula is payable monthly for life with 120 payments guaranteed.

Automatic Form of
Distribution of
Retirement Benefit:

Unless otherwise elected by the participant, the normal retirement
benefit will be automatically paid to a married participant in the form of
a reduced actuarial equivalent joint and 50% to survivor annuity.
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Plan Provisions
Optional Forms of
Distribution of
Retirement Benefit:

If elected by the participant, his benefit, in an actuarial equivalent
amount, may be paid in the form of:
(a) a joint and survivor annuity with the reduced survivor annuity
payable as 50%, 66-2/3% or 100% of the monthly benefit payable
during the lifetime of the participant;
(b) a straight life annuity;
(c) a life only annuity;
(d) a lump sum payment.

Formula for Annual,
Normal Retirement
Benefit:

2.5% of the average earnings paid to the employee during the highest
one plan year, multiplied by the number of years of accrual service.

Accrual Service:

Total number of Years in which an employee is credited with at least
1,000 hours of service. No accrual service shall be credited after
October 29, 2005. Participants employed on October 29, 2005 shall be
credited with an additional 3 years plus 0.333 years for the period July1,
2005 through October 31, 2005.

Early Retirement Benefit:

None

Benefit at Deferred
Retirement:

Greater of the accrued benefit, based on accrual service and
compensation to late retirement date and the actuarially increased
Normal Retirement Benefit.

Disability Benefit:

Immediate payment of actuarial equivalence of the accrued benefit
calculated the same as a retirement benefit, based on average earnings
and accrual service as of the disability retirement date.

Death Benefit:
Prior to Retirement:

After Retirement:

The greater of the actuarial equivalent of the Vested Accrued Benefit
(applicable to married or unmarried participants), or the benefit the
participant's spouse would have received if the participant had
terminated on his date of death and elected to begin receiving his
benefit under the automatic joint and 50% to surviving spouse pension
option commencing on his earliest retirement date
In accordance with the annuity payment form in effect.
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Plan Provisions
Vesting:

Vesting Service

.

Years of
Vesting
Service
0-2
3
4
5
6
7 or more

Vested
Percent
0%
20%
40%
60%
80%
100%

Total number of Years in which an employee is credited with at least
1,000 hours of service. For participants employed on October 29,
2005, an additional three years is credited.

Benefit:

Vested Accrued Benefit as of date of termination, payable as of Normal
Retirement date. Immediate lump sum option available.

Plan Factors for Actuarial
Equivalence

Interest: 6.25%
Pre-Retirement Mortality: None
Post Retirement Mortality: 94 GAR (50% male 50% female)

Termination of Plan:

In the event of termination of the Plan, funds are to be distributed, to
the extent available, in the following order:
(a) benefits of participants who had retired prior to plan termination;
(b) benefits of participants who had reached Normal Retirement Age
at termination, but had not yet retired;
(c) all other benefits;

Administration:

The District is the Plan Administrator.

Funding of Plan:

Through a Trust, assets are held at Commonwealth Financial
Network.

Carmel Area Wastewater District Pension Plan
2020 Actuary's Report

Page 16

246

STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Mark Dias, Safety and Compliance
Administrator

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Adoption of Updated Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) Risk Mitigation
and Response Plan

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended the Board of Directors receive and adopt an updated version of the
District’s COVID-19 Risk Mitigation and Response Plan (Response Plan).
DISCUSSION
At the June 25, 2020 regular Board meeting the Board adopted an updated Response Plan
which incorporated an Exposure Control Plan (ECP). The Response Plan is designed to
ensure the protection of employees and the continued operation of the treatment facility
and collection systems.
From June to December the Response Plan was implemented. During this time Federal,
State, and County agencies were all updating their COVID “guidelines.” The Response
Plan held up well and only minor administrative changes needed to be made by the
General Manager. However, on December 2, 2020, many of the key guidelines became
codified by Cal/OSHA as regulations (Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations).
Fortunately, the same consultant who developed the first ECP was prepared to fold the
new regulations into an updated ECP, which was finalized on Jan 15, 2021.
The key updates include: a precise definition of an exposure; more explicit communication
and training requirements; an updated list of controls (protocols and mitigations); explicit
Return-to-Work criteria; investigation protocols; and updated reporting requirements.
Therefore, the June 25 Response Plan requires the integration of the new ECP protocols.
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While the new regulations require additional training, documentation, and effort, all can be
implemented immediately without impact to operations or District activities.
Mark Dias, Safety and Compliance Administrator, will give a brief presentation during
the January 28, 2021 meeting.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
The cost for the updated ECP was $1,000 and will be covered in O&M safety budget.
The costs for the remaining efforts are being tracked separately and staff continues to apply
COVID-19 costs to the specific General Ledger number created for this pandemic.
Presentation
PowerPoint slide presentation – screen share
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
COVID-19 Risk Mitigation and Response Plan

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
3945 Rio Road
Carmel, CA 93923
As Proposed – January 28, 2021
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This plan has been developed to protect the District employees against risk. Updated goals
of this January update are to:
1) Incorporate the new Exposure Control Plan meeting OSHA/Cal-OSHA requirements, and,
2) Update preventative health screenings and testing protocols
3) Update protocols for Exposure and Illnesses (medical evaluations, medical leave and
return to work) that are not covered by the ECP
4) Describe response levels to maintain essential functions and critical processes under
various scenarios

TABLE OF CONTENTS
1. Exposure Control Plan
2. Additional Measures to Reduce the Spread of COVID-19 in the
Workplace
2.a
Precautionary Actions for District Employees
2.b
Precautionary Actions for District Management
3. Tiered Plan for Maintaining District Operations
2.a.
Risk Level 1
2.b. Risk Level 2
2.c.
Risk Level 3
2.d. Risk Level 4
Appendix A:
Appendix B:
Appendix C:

Exposure Control Plan
Screening Protocols
Exposure and Illness Response Protocols

3
3
3
3
3
4
4
4
5
9
10
45
37

The General Manager reserves the right to modify or change this plan at any time based on her
discretion, and updated information or direction from health authorities and regulators.
If the General Manager is not able to continue to work due to quarantine or illness then the role will be
assigned in this order: Plant Engineer, Maintenance Superintendent, Principal Engineer.
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Carmel Area Wastewater District
COVID-19 Risk Mitigation and Response Plan
(Response Plan)
1. Incorporation of COVID-19 Exposure Control Plan
An Updated Exposure Control Plan (ECP) has been professionally prepared for the District
based on the latest Cal-OSHA regulations adopted December 2020.
The ECP will remain the primary/guiding document for ongoing controls and measures and
is found as Appendix A.
2. Precautionary Measures to Reduce the Spread of the COVID-19 in the Workplace
2.1.
•

2.2.

Precautionary Actions for Immediate Implementation by District Employees:
Follow the COVID-19 ECP and the Protocols and Measures found in this Response
Plan
Precautionary Actions for Ongoing Implementation by District Management

•

Stay aware of the latest information on the COVID-19 outbreak, available on the
CDC website, State Department of Public Health and Monterey County Public
Health website. Follow the directives from these official agencies.

•

Continue to implement daily health and temperature screening protocols for all
employees and visitors entering facilities per Appendix B.

•

Continue to Implement Exposure and Illness Response Protocols for all employees
and visitors per the updated Appendix C.

•

All non-essential travel remains cancelled until further notice

•

Cancel staff gatherings except for essential functions. When gatherings are
approved, maintain minimum 6’ separation and require the use of masks.

•

On-site group tours remain cancelled until further notice.

•

Use remote conference solutions such as Microsoft Teams and Zoom.
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3. Tiered Plan for Maintaining District Operations
This section identifies how District operations, including individual employee roles, may
need to change based on a range of COVID-19 infection scenarios in the County or amount
CAWD employees. The co-equal objectives for Section 3 of this Response Plan are:
i.
Best protect employees against the spread of COVID-19, and
ii.
Maintain critical District wastewater supply operations for the community.
The plan for maintaining District operations has four tiers based on the COVID-19 activity
levels in the County. The fourth and highest tier addresses a confirmed case of COVID-19
of a District employee.
3.1.

Risk Level 1: Health Officials have declared minimal COVID-19 levels in our
community and removed all restrictions

Trigger Points: Official notice from Health officials
Under Risk Level 1, the risk to employees of contracting COVID-19 is low and thus the
District shall conduct normal business operations as allowed by State and County Health
Orders. Standard hygiene practices shall be followed, and large indoor gatherings should
be carefully managed.
3.2.
Risk Level 2: New cases of COVID-19 are low and are consistently decreasing
in California, Monterey County or in Surrounding Counties
Trigger Points: The District can return to Risk Level 2 if the General Manager determines,
after review of the latest statements from Health officials, that the number of confirmed
cases of COVID-19 in California or Monterey County pose a minimal threat to employees.
Under Risk Level 2, the risk to employees of contracting COVID-19 remains relatively low,
due to limited numbers of confirmed cases in the state, county and surrounding counties.
Measures to be implemented at Risk Level 2 include, but may not be limited to, the
following:
•

Determine if the ECP needs to be modified, suspended or removed

•

Have cleaning service disinfect identified surfaces and bathrooms more frequently.
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Supplement through employee efforts to daily sanitization of identified
administrative office surfaces on days that the cleaning service does not do so.
•

Limit routine in-person meetings in favor of conference calls or video conferencing
whenever possible.

•

Open Lobby to public (after safety improvements installed).

•

Management will continue to exercise reasonable precautions and will act if
symptoms associated with COVID-19 are present.

•

Retain the ability for Board members to attend meetings remotely or cancel
meetings as necessary.

Before lowering to Risk Level 2, District management will hold meetings to determine the
trigger points, review latest health guidance and list specific steps needed to implement
the necessary modified operations for the lower risk levels. Communication to staff will
be key. If not already in place, authorities, triggers, and procedures for modifying key
elements of this Response Plan will be identified and prepared for implementation.
3.3.

Risk Level 3: Current or Increased Number of Confirmed Cases of
COVID-19 in California and Monterey County

Trigger Points:
Risk Level 3 was declared by the General Manager on March 18, 2020. Ongoing Shelter in
Place orders for Monterey County will also trigger Risk Level 3.
At Risk Level 3, COVID-19 will remain a declared epidemic by the CDC, the state and/or
local health authorities with active spread in people living in Monterey County and
surrounding counties. As such, the risk of contracting COVID-19 for District employees
remains high. At the direction of the General Manager, the District will maintain modified
operations and follow the ECP to minimize all contact of employees with the general
public and will focus on maintaining essential duties necessary to maintain wastewater
service to the public, with the minimal number of employees.
General Procedures
Operational scenarios will be updated for possible implementation on how best to
maintain essential services with reduced staff, should one or more District employees
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contract the virus (Risk Level 4). In addition to the actions being implemented under Risk
Level 2, Operational modifications to be implemented at Risk Level 3 shall include, but not
be limited to, the following:
•

Cease collecting payment at the front office from the general public and, instead,
require all customers to mail in payments and conduct business by phone. Develop
ability to accept credit card payments.
o Notify the public by website, media, answering service, and notice board.
o Administrative office will remain closed to the general public.
o Notify other local agencies and vendors of the District’s office closure to the
public (via email or phone).

•

Board meetings shall be postponed or conducted by teleconference rather than by
in-person meetings.

•

Implement practices developed including; staggered shifts if appropriate, less
interaction with homeowners, methods of leaving door notices, etc. to increase
physical distance among employees and between employees and the public.

•

Separate departments and minimize in-person interactions between District
administrative, operations, and distribution employees to the maximum extent
possible.
o Within departments, minimize face-to-face interactions of key personnel as
well.
o Coordinate by email, phone, and text messages whenever possible and
effective.

•

At the direction of the General Manager, certain employees may be directed to
perform their duties from home.

•

Enable non-essential staff to work remotely if work can be completed remotely.

•

Eliminate all group food served to employees. Eliminate use of reusable
community dishes and utensils, switch to compostable.

•

The General Manager will coordinate with local agencies to discuss procedures and
potentially mutual aid.
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Staffing Action Plan for Risk Level 3
Staff will isolate themselves into the following groups during lunch and breaks in
separate areas
Group 1:
Treatment, Maintenance and Laboratory staff
Group 2:
Collections staff
Group 3:
Admin staff (General Manager, Engineers, Principal Accountant, Board
Clerks)
•

Group 1 – Plant Operations and assigned shifts will continue as normal with ECP
precautions in place.

•

Group 2 – Collections maintenance will continue as normal. Staff will perform
normal inspection rounds and cleaning. Inspections will be completed with minimal
interaction with plumbers or the public. Underground Service Alerts will continue.
Sewer permits will be processed electronically and invoice for payment will be sent.

•

Group 3 – Administrative staff will continue to conduct business as normal, but the
office will be closed to the public. All interactions with the public will be via
telephone, permit drop box in front of Admin or email. Engineers will work remotely
and come into work as needed.

•

Treatment plant site access – Treatment plant buildings will be closed to nonessential vendors and contractors unless they follow the Screening Protocols in
Appendix B. Deliveries will still be accepted but they should be directed to be
dropped off at the outdoor where the material can be isolated, and staff will not
interact person to person. Brine and Food Waste will be accepted, but drivers may
not enter buildings.

•

Board of Director Meetings will be held via conference call or a virtual meeting.

3.4.

Risk Level 4: Confirmed Case(s) of COVID-19 Among District Employees

Trigger Point
Risk Level 4 will be declared by the General Manager if an outbreak of two or more District
employees test positive for COVID-19.
Because of the small size of the District, two or more District employees are confirmed to
have contracted COVID-19 is a situation that poses a relatively high risk to critical
functions if other District employees contract the virus or must quarantine and are
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unavailable to work.
General Procedures
In addition to the actions and operational procedures already being implemented,
additional operational modifications/actions to be implemented at Risk Level 4 will be
declared and shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
“Risk Level 4 will be declared by the General Manager if two or more work exposure
incidents occur, or if a work exposure incident results in a workplace transmission and
the General Manager decides further risks cannot be immediately mitigated. “

•

All employees not scheduled to maintain critical function will work from home if
applicable, until directed otherwise by the General Manager or their supervisor.
o Each employee will be compensated by the District under Paid Administrative
Leave until the employee is cleared to return to work per the ECP or the General
Manager. Under Risk Level 4 employees will not be required to utilize accrual
balances (sick/vacation) prior to implementation of Paid Administrative Leave.
o Employees not exhibiting symptoms of COVID-19 will be on-call for work activities
at the direction of the General Manager, or their direct supervisor. All on-call
employees must respond and be at work within 2 hours if called upon to work.
o Employee(s) that have contracted COVID-19 must not come to work until they
meet the return to work criteria found in the Jan 15, 2021 ECP.

•

If an employee has been confirmed to have COVID-19, the District will notify other
employees of their possible exposure to COVID-19 as required in the latest ECP, but
will maintain confidentiality of the infected employee. The notification shall be
documented.

•

Management will conduct risk assessment of potential exposures per the ECP and
latest CDC guidance. District employees who are determined to have had a significant
exposure incident will be instructed to stay home for up to 10 or 14 days and until they
can provide medical clearance.
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•

Board meetings shall continue to be postponed or conducted by teleconference (if
possible) rather than by in-person meetings.

•

Implement any potential remaining actions identified to minimize in-person contact
among employees and between employees and the public.

•

Implement all identified minimum essential functions necessary to maintain only
essential processes and services.

Staffing Action Plan for Risk Level 4
Staff will isolate themselves into the following groups:
Group 1:
Treatment and Laboratory staff
Group 2:
Collections staff
Group 3:
Administrative staff (CMMS Administrator, Safety Officer,
Superintendents, Engineers, Principal Accountant, Board Clerks)
•

Group 1- There will be three treatment plant operators per shift, one administrative
person to process purchase orders, a maximum of two laboratory person and one
maintenance person assigned to each shift. They will keep the plant in operation and
perform essential duties such as inspection rounds, State required sampling and basic
maintenance. Lab staff will process samples. Staff will check in at the beginning and end
of each shift with the Chief Plant Operator (CPO). The CPO will monitor Supervisory
Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) and supervise staff from home.

•

Swing Shifts (3:00PM-11:30PM) will be implemented.

•

Group 2- Two collections workers (bonded teams) will be assigned to each shift.
Collections staff will cease cleaning, CCTV work and normal activities. They will perform
station checks twice per week, perform repairs, respond to SSO’s and monitor SCADA
from the collection’s office. The collections supervisor will split time between the
collections office and supervise staff from home via remote access. No inspections will
be completed and interaction with the public will only occur due to an emergency.
USA’s will cease.

•

Group 3- Administrative Staff will continue to conduct business and the office will
remain closed to the public. All interactions with the public will be via telephone or
email.

•

Treatment plant site access- Treatment plant buildings will be closed to non-essential
vendors and contractors unless they follow the Screening Protocols in Attachment B.
Deliveries will still be accepted but they should be directed to be dropped off at the
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maintenance shop where the material can be isolated, and staff will not interact person
to person.
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Appendix B- Daily Health and Temperature Screening Protocols
The purpose of these protocols is to help maintain a safe work environment and
minimize the risk of contracting or spreading the COVID-19 virus in the workplace by
screening for COVID-19 exposures and symptoms. This screening shall be performed in
the same manner among all employees and the results of the screening are to be kept
confidential.
1. The District will notify employees of this temperature screening requirement in
advance of implementation.
a. Temperature Screening is mandatory for all employees, managers and
Directors
b. Screening should be completed prior to starting work and prior to entering
workspaces.
c. When an employee calls in sick, they will be called the same day by their
supervisor who will verbally administer the screening over the phone and
record the results.
d. Employees still have a responsibility to self-report and not come to work if
they have a fever or other symptoms or have been exposed to a person
confirmed with COVID-19. These screenings are not to be used as a
substitute for that responsibility.
2. Persons performing the screening should wear appropriate protective equipment
(e.g., mask, gloves)
3. The temperature screening area will be located where incoming traffic can be
controlled and allow for employees to appropriately social distance from one
another. When possible most screening will be done while remaining in vehicles.
a. Monday – Friday mornings before 7:00: The screener will begin screenings at
6:45. The screener will be waiting in a CAWD vehicle facing the gate inside the
entrance road. Employees will drive up next to the screener’s vehicle and lower
their window just enough to allow a temperature reading.
b. Monday – Friday after 7:00 AM: Announce yourself to the screener and do not
enter the screener’s space. The screener will meet you outside.
c. Saturday & Sunday: Meet under the alcove near doors to locker room building.
Maintain 6’ separation and allow for privacy. Screening on weekends will be
conducted by lead/senior worker for the day.
d. If circumstances such as weather or late arrival requires an alternative screening
location, the location should be a large open area or structure such as the
collections canopy or shop. Ensure that the testing area is (1) semi-private; (2) six
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feet distance from others; (3) has access to cleaning/disinfectant wipes and
paper towels.
e. At the Administration Office (3945 Rio Road) screening will be held in front lobby
area.
Screenings shall not be held indoors in any common areas (breakroom, locker
rooms, Ops building) or small rooms (trailers, bathrooms, etc.)
4. Time spent for screening is compensable time. Arrive before 7:00 AM. It is
understood that employees otherwise arriving on time may be delayed by the
screening process.
5. Summary of Screening
a. Employees will first be asked questions regarding any COVID-19 symptoms
and if they have had contact with a person diagnosed with COVID-19..
b. Second, the temperature check will involve a non-contact temperature scan.
If the reading is below 100.4° Fahrenheit you may proceed to work.
c. If the reading is above 99.5 but below 100.4 the person will be rescanned
again in four hours. If during that time an employee feels ill in any way notify
your supervisor immediately.
6. Safety protocol:
a. Use appropriate Protective Personal Equipment (PPE) including new gloves
b. Check individual’s temperature
c. After all screenings are complete, disinfect thermometer
d. Remove gloves last
e. Thoroughly wash hands
7. Non-contact thermometers will be used for initial screening. Any contact
thermometers used must be thoroughly disinfected after the screenings are
completed.
8. Temperature Screening Steps
a. If the reading is 99.0 or lower, one reading is sufficient. If the reading is above
that range, a second reading should be conducted.
b. If the second reading is between 97 and 100 degrees and within 0.3 degrees of
the first reading, it is accepted. If it is more than 0.3 degrees different from the
first reading, a third reading should be taken.
c. If the temperature is below 100.4° Fahrenheit, the person may be permitted to
work. However, if the temperature reading is above 99.5° the employee should
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be asked to carefully monitor how they are feeling and be re-checked after 4
hours.
d. If the temperature is 100.4° Fahrenheit or more, confirm with at least one
additional non-contact reading. The screener shall test on themselves as a
control.
e. Ask if employee has recently completed physical exercise. If yes, they can rest for
a few minutes before a re-test.
f. If still high, have the employee self-test using a higher sensitivity contact
thermometer in the ear canal. Disinfect the thermometer before and after
transferring the unit.
g. If confirmed by the ear readings there will be enough evidence that the
employee has a fever and will be sent home with paid leave under the COVID
sick leave policy.
9. If an employee is sent home the employee’s direct supervisor will be confidentially
notified, and they will call the employee to monitor their condition. Recommend
that employee with temperature of 100.4° or higher contact their healthcare
provider for further instructions. Provide employees information on testing options
and locations and encourage that they be tested.
10. Daily log sheets will be kept in a locked confidential file in the Safety Trailer
11. Anyone refusing required testing will be denied entry to the facility. Employees who
refuse testing may be subject to disciplinary action. Employees are not permitted to
refuse to go home, and similar to an employee refusing a test, an employee
generally may be disciplined for insubordination or unprofessional conduct during or
as a result of the screening process. After sending an individual home, all areas of
the facility the employee may have touched or been present in before being
screened will be thoroughly cleaned.
12. This policy does not in any way negate the requirement to wear a face mask and to
practice social distancing as work duties permit in the workplace.
13. Visitors, contractors and delivery drivers who will not be entering workspaces or
working within 6 feet of employees can enter CAWD properties but are required to
maintain distances and wear a face mask.
14. Visitors, contractors and vendors drivers who will be entering workspaces or must
work within 6 feet of employees must take the same screening, maximize distancing
when possible and wear a face mask.
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To All Visitors
If you will be entering buildings or will be working within 6 feet of CAWD employees, the
following safety requirements will apply before you can begin your visit or work.
The purpose of these guidelines is to help maintain a safe work environment and
minimize the risk of contracting or spreading the COVID-19 virus in our workplace. It is
for the mutual safety of our employees, and equally, yourself and your employees.
What to Expect
You will be given both a verbal survey and a non-contact temperature test. This
screening is exactly the same screening given to all CAWD employees each day. The
results of the screening will be kept confidential.
1. These screenings are mandatory and required prior to starting work or entering
an indoor workspace.
2. The temperature screening will occur while you remain in your vehicle just inside
the front gate. A CAWD employee will drive up alongside you and complete the
screening from their vehicle.
3. The screening process will have two parts.
a. First you will be asked questions regarding if you have experienced any
COVID-19 symptoms and if you have had contact with a person
diagnosed with COVID-19.
b. Second, your temperature check will involve a non-contact temperature
scan. If the reading is below 100.4° Fahrenheit you may proceed to work.
4. If your temperature is 100.4° or higher and is confirmed, you will not be
permitted to work at the CAWD site. You will be encouraged to inform others,
self-quarantine and contact your health provider.
This policy does not in any way negate the requirement to wear a face mask and to
practice social distancing when you are at the CAWD treatment plant facility.
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Employee Daily Screening Register
Date: ______________________
26900 Hwy 1
Q1: Have you
Q2: Have you
Q3: Have you
Temperature
knowingly come had any of the
had any of the
Check Procedure
into contact
following
following
with anyone in
symptoms in the symptoms in
97.5°- 99° = Pass
your household, last 24 hours:
the last 24
family, friends
Fever, new dry
hours: Sore
99.5° - 100.3° =
who have had a cough, fatigue,
throat, runny
Monitor in 4
fever or COVID
shortness of
nose, headache hours
symptoms in
breath, chills,
congestion,
the last 24body aches, loss
nausea,
100.4°+ = Send
hours?
of taste or smell? vomiting,
home
EE Name
diarrhea
Pass?
Pass?
Pass?
Pass/Monitor/Fail
Operations
DayEngel
DeOcampo
Dixon
Garrison
Hooks
Mui
Schmidt
Treanor
Veile
Waggoner
W- Holland
Young
Collections
Blevins
Bowman
Lauer
Millington
Napier
Quintero
Maintenance
Ange
Cristi
Dias
Foley
Skinkle
Mailey
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Employee Daily Screening Register Date: ______________________
3945 Rio Road
Q1: Have you Q2: Have you Q3: Have you
knowingly
had any of the had any of the
come into
following
following
contact with
symptoms in
symptoms in
anyone in your the last 24
the last 24
household,
hours: Fever,
hours: Sore
family, friends new dry
throat, runny
who have had cough, fatigue, nose,
a fever or
shortness of
headache,
COVID
breath, chills,
congestion,
symptoms in
body aches,
nausea,
the last 24loss of taste or vomiting,
NAME
hours?
smell?
diarrhea
Pass?
Pass?
Pass?
Admin
Barringer
Buikema
Grover
Lather
Pacheco
Visitor/Vendor
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Temperature
Check Procedure
97.5°- 99° = Pass
99.5° - 100.3° =
Monitor in 4
hours
100.4°+ = Send
home
Pass/Monitor/Fail

Visitor/Contractor/Vendor Register
Q1: Have you
knowingly come
into contact
with anyone in
your household,
family, friends
who have had a
fever or COVID
symptoms in the
last 24-hours?

NAME/DATE

Pass?

Date: ______________________

Q2: Have you
had any of the
following
symptoms in the
last 24 hours:
Fever, new dry
cough, fatigue,
shortness of
breath, chills,
body aches, loss
of taste or
smell?
Pass?

300

Q3: Have you
had any of the
following
symptoms in
the last 24
hours: Sore
throat, runny
nose,
congestion,
nausea,
vomiting,
diarrhea?
Pass?

Temperature
Check Procedure
97.5°- 99° = Pass
99.5° - 100.3° =
Monitor in 4
hours
100.4°+ = Send
home
Pass/Monitor/Fail

End of Appendix B
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APPENDIX C - EXPOSURE AND ILLNESS RESPONSE PROTOCOLS
LINE

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16

Trigger

TRIGGER (listed from highest to lowest risk)

Very High
Very High
Very High
Very High
Very High
High
High
High
Med-High
Med-High
Med-High
Medium
Medium
Medium
Medium

Positive
Positive
Key Symptoms
Key Symptoms
Key Symptoms
Exposure
Exposure
Exposure
Poss. Exposure
Poss. Exposure
Poss. Exposure
Poss. Exposure
Poss. Exposure
Other symptoms
Other symptoms

Travel/Various

Risk Based

CAWD EE is confirmed case (external exposure)
CAWD EE is confirmed case (work exposure)
CAWD EE was exposed at work and is self quarantining
EE calls in sick w/ fever, "acute respiratory illness" symptoms, loss of taste/smell
EE Fails screening for fever or "respiratory illness" symptoms, loss of taste/smell (Q2)
EE Fails daily screening for non-work exposure (Q1)
EE household member is a confirmed case (family)
EE household member is a confirmed case (non-family)
EE household member has been exposed, symptomatic and/or awaiting test results
EE informs a close contact is symptomatic, no testing planned
EE informs a close contact is symptomatic and awaiting test results
EE had potential work exposure but at a distance w/ confirmed case
EE had potential personal exposure but at a distance w/ confirmed case
EE fails screening for overlapping symptoms (sinus, throat, nausea, diarrhea)
EE calls in sick with overlapping symptoms (sinus, throat, nausea, diarrhea)
Potential exposure due to higher risk travel and/or social activities. Including; air travel, public
transportation, large social gatherings over 10 people, weddings

RISK LEVEL

WCSDIUIPFLFFCRACDPHECP*Valid test**
***

Authority
Quarantine (14 days or per
guidelines and policy)

Workers Compensation
State Disability Insurance
Unemployment Insurance
Paid Family Leave
US Dept of Labor Families First Coronavirus Response Act
California Department of Public Health Outbreak Guidelines
See Section 7 of CAWD Exposure Control Plan (Appendix A of CAWD Policy)
Test is administered no earlier than 5 days from exposure date
Symptoms to be tracked to distinguish between common illnesses and COVID-19
In consultation w/ Covid Managers Group (GM, Superintendent, HR and Safety Officer)
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Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per CDPH, ECP and law
Per CDPH, ECP and law
CDPH and Policy
CAWD Policy
CAWD Policy
CAWD Policy
ECP
ECP
ECP
ECP
General Manager

Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Yes***
Yes***
Yes***
Yes***
Yes***
Yes***
Depends***
Depends***
3 day min- track symptoms**
3 day min- track symptoms**
Per GM***

Return to work medical
evaluation***
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Per ECP (Cal/OSHA)
Yes-incl valid test*
Yes-incl valid test*
Yes-incl valid test*
Yes-incl valid test*
Yes-incl valid test*
Yes-incl valid test*
Yes-incl valid test*
Yes-incl valid test*
Medical Eval
Medical Eval

Leave type
Per law (FFCRA)
Per law (WC, FFCRA)
Per Law (WC, FFCRA)
COVID Admin leave then Admin (FFCRA)
COVID Admin leave then Admin (FFCRA)
COVID Admin leave then Admin (FFCRA)
Per law if caretaker, Admin (FFCRA)
COVID Admin leave
COVID Admin leave
COVID Admin leave
COVID Admin leave
COVID Admin leave
COVID Admin leave
Personal leave
Personal leave

Per GM***

Per GM***

Link to Montage e-visit

Version 7- Jan 28, 2021

STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Barbara Buikema, General Manager

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Pebble Beach Community Services District – Regular Board Meeting
December 11, 2020

DISCUSSION
Agenda items from the December 11, 2020 meeting that are of specific interest to this
District:
•

The oath of office was administered to the three board members who were
reelected: Richard Verbanec, Richard Gebhart, and Leo Laska.

•

Total cash balance at the end of Oct 2020 was $20.7M; of that amount, $15.3M was
designated for Capital Acquisition and Outlay Reserves. Property taxes comprise
roughly 85% of District revenues with user fees making up 12%.

•

The October 2020 Cash Basis Budget Report showed revenues of $0.8M or 2.9% of
budget. Total expenditures through October total $2.6M or 9.4% of budget.

•

Forest Lake Reservoir held 42 MG (million gallons) of recycled water or 37% of
permitted capacity. Current storage volume is 7% below the historic average of 45
MG.

•

Total irrigation water demand for the 2020 calendar year through November was
967 AF (acre feet). Total demand for the calendar year is 1% above the 5-year
average of 960 AF. The month of November reflected a net storage increase of
approximately 10 million gallons marking the end of irrigation season. By
comparison, a net storage increase of approximately 14 MG was observed in
November of last year.
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•

Average daily wastewater flow of 285,000 gallons per day (GPD) was measured in
November at the PBCSD-Carmel gate. This represents 28% of the total flow at the
CAWD treatment facility. The measured PBCSD flow was 18% below the five-year
average of 349,000 GPD for the month of November; the CAWD total flow was 10%
below the five-year average of 1,150,000 GPD for November.

•

The 4th Fairway Diversion is currently the only facility online and in production.
The MPCC No. 8 Well, MPCC No. 9 Well, and MPCC Bird Rock
Well were all shutdown at the end of September as irrigation demand slowed. Total
production for the 2020 calendar year through November is approximately 14.7
million gallons.

•

Staff is currently awaiting final submittal from Pro-Pipe before starting
comprehensive review of sewer system assessment data. Staff anticipates receipt of
final submittal by mid-December.

•

Staff is evaluating the scope and feasibility of replacing Programmable Logic
Controllers (PLC’s) at Pump Stations P1 through P7 in an effort to expedite the
transfer of all wastewater facilities onto the District’s new SCADA server before the
end of FY 2020-21.

•

The Board adopted a resolution authorizing the purchase of a replacement
combination jet/vacuum sewer line cleaning truck for a total amount not to exceed
$440K.

•

The Board adopted a resolution authorizing the purchase of portable closed-circuit
televising equipment for a total amount not to exceed $55K. Existing equipment is
inoperable after nearly fifteen years of use.

•

Average daily wastewater flows measured in million gallons per day (MG) show:

MONTH
July - 20
Aug – 20
Sept - 20
Oct – 20
Total

TOTAL
37.211
36.386
33.559
32.551
139.707

CAWD FLOW
25.504
24.877
23.082
23.689
97.152
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PBCSD FLOW
11.707
11.509
10.477
8.862
42.555

PBCSD
31.461%
31.630%
31.220%
27.225%
30.460%

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF RETIREMENT PENSION PLAN TRUSTEES
MEETING HELD – January 7, 2021
A meeting of the Retirement Pension Plan Trustees was held on Thursday,
January 7, 2021 at 10:00 a.m.
Those Present Included:

Michael Rachel, Director, Trustee
Rob Wellington, Legal Counsel, Trustee
Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Trustee
Haley Hitchman, Hastie Financial Group
Robert Siegfried, Director

Note: This meeting was held via ZOOM software
I. 4th Quarter 2020 Review
As of 12-31-20 the total weighed return for the quarter was 9.62% and for the
year it was 17.55%. This can be translated to mean that in the fourth quarter the
portfolio took in 80% of the S&P returns with 60% of the risk, and 95% of the
returns for the year, with 60% of the risk.
At the last quarterly meeting the Committee asked Hastie Financial to show us
how a “test” 65/35 portfolio might perform. Currently our portfolio is allocated
60% stocks/40% bonds. The impact is that 5% added stocks in the portfolio can
add 0.74 basis points in return. Mr. Hastie reminded that we may see rates go
back up in 2021 and that we are now at the early phase of growth curve where
we may start to see inflation. The Committee was of the option that we should
move to 65/35.
Over the course of the year iShares Core has represented one of our portfolio’s
core holding with annualized return of 16.02%. JP Morgan Large Cap and
Federated Hermes Kaufmann are performance drivers. Columbia Contrarian
outperformed the S&P at 22.29%. In the bond market we saw that high yield
bonds have a positive correlation with the equity markets. PGIM High Yield
Fund had an annualized return of 5.59%. Guggenheim Total Return Bond fund
will be a core holding going forward.
II. 1st Quarter Action Plan
No changes are recommended to the portfolio for the 1st quarter of 2021.After a
discussion, the Pension Committee advised that we would be willing to change
our investment objectives from 60/40 stock/bonds to 65/35. Mr. Hastie agreed
and informed that they would rebalance the portfolio accordingly.
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Portfolio Risk Measures (3-year measure):
Three
Year
0.66
12.75

S&P 500

Five
Year
0.67
10.61

S&P 500

Ten
Year
0.67
9.52

S&P 500

Beta (a)
Standard
18.73
15.26
13.63
Deviation (b)
Mean
13.97
13.17
12.94
13.99
11.22
14.19
Alpha
4.06
2.85
1.38
(a) Strategy is to maintain Beta in the range of 0.60 - 0.67.
(b) Strategy is to remain at roughly 2/3 of S & P 500, this is inline with current
investment objectives.
(c) Alpha is strong, given that gold is down, and markets are up.
III. Review of Strategic Asset Management Plan 2020 Actuary’s Report
The 06-30-20 Actuarial Report was presented to the committee. The
consensus was that the report should be shared with the full Board. There is
a separate report in the Board packet.
IV. Review of CalPERS Actuary Report
a. Classic Plan – Actuarial report shows an Unfunded Accrued
Liability (UAL) of $38,196 for 20-21 and an estimated UAL for 21-22
of $160,835
b. PEPRA Plan – Actuarial report shows a UAL of $352 for 20-21 and
an estimated UAL for 21-22 of $13,091
V. Discussion of Section 115 Trust
a. Request for Proposals (RFP) results and recommendation – the RFP
was sent to five firms, three responded: CalPERS, Keenan Financial
Services, and PARS. The Committee recommended that CalPERS
be selected primarily because their fee structure was lower than
any of the other proposals. They recommended that the results go
to the full Board. There is a separate report in the Board packet.
b. Funding strategy – the Pension Committee reviewed the material
for initial funding and indicated their support for a budget
amendment of $500K from the Capital Reserve fund and a 70/30
split with CalPERS’ two investment options. There is a separate
report in the Board packet.
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at approximately
11:30 a.m.
Respectfully submitted,
Barbara Buikema, General Manager
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Carmel Area Wastewater District

Defined Benefit Plan

4th Quarter and 2020 Performance Review

1st Quarter 2021 Action Plan

January 7, 2021
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4th Quarter OVERVIEW

308

2020 OVERVIEW
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65/35 Portfolio Scenario

Stocks/Bonds
60/40
80/20
100/0

4th Quarter
2020

2020

9.72
11.44
12.98

17.55
20.50
21.71
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Annual Risk
Premium/Add. 5%
Equities
0.74
0.30

4th Quarter OVERVIEW
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4th Quarter OVERVIEW
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2020 OVERVIEW
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2020 OVERVIEW

314

MARKET REVIEW – 12/31/2020

3 Month

1 Year

3 Year

5 Year

S&P 500 TR

12.15

18.40

14.18

15.22

Russell Mid Cap

19.91

17.10

11.61

13.40

Russell 1000

Russell 2000 Growth
MSCI EAFE

MSCI Emerging Markets
Barclays Capital US
Aggregate

13.69
31.37
16.05
19.70
0.67
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20.96
19.96
7.82

18.31
7.51

14.82
10.25
4.28
6.17

5.34

15.60
13.26
7.45

12.81
4.44

1ST QUARTER 2021 FUND CHANGES

 No Changes

 Rebalance the rest of the portfolio
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1ST QUARTER 2021 OVERALL PORTFOLIO
5%
9%

JP Morgan Large Cap Growth - 12%
iShares Core S&P 500 - 14%

12%

Columbia Contrarian Core - 5%

5%

14%

8%
5%

5%
7%

8%
5%
10%

Columbia Dividend Income - 7%

iShares Morningstar Mid Cap - 5%

Federated Kaufmann Small Cap - 7%

PGIM International Opportunities - 10%
PGIM Global Total Return - 8%

American Funds Govt Securities - 5%
Guggenheim Total Return - 8%

7%

BlackRock Inflation Protected Bond - 5%
PGIM High Yield - 9%
Cash - 5%
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RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE
BETA:
A measure of volatility (risk) relative to the Standard & Poor's 500 Index. Beta of 1.0 indicates
risk equal to that of the Standard & Poor's 500 Index over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and
10 years. Beta of less than 1.0 indicates risk less than that of the S&P 500 Index.

CAWD Portfolio

3 Year
0.66
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5 Year
0.67

10 Year
0.67

FUND RISK & COST STATISTICS
Mutual Fund/ETF

3 Year Beta

JPMorgan Large Cap Growth
iShares Core S&P 500
Columbia Contrarian Core
Columbia Dividend Income
Vanguard Mid Cap
Federated Kaufmann Small Cap
PGIM International Opportunities
PGIM Global Total Return
American Funds Govt. Securities
Guggenheim Total Return
PGIM High Yield
BlackRock Inflation Protected Bond

1.06
1.00
1.03
0.86
1.05
1.09
0.90
1.28
0.76
0.74
0.29
0.97
319

Net Expense
Ratio
0.69
0.04
0.77
0.71
0.04
0.91
0.90
0.63
0.36
0.52
0.55
0.65

RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE
STANDARD DEVIATION:
Another measure of volatility (risk). A higher Standard Deviation indicates a higher degree of volatility
(risk) over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and 10 years. We will compare the CAWD Portfolio with
the S&P 500 Index.

CAWD Portfolio

Standard & Poor's 500 Index

3 Year
12.75
18.73
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5 Year
10.61
15.26

10 Year_
9.52
13.63

RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

MEAN:
Mean return over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and 10 years. We will compare the CAWD
Portfolio with the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year
13.97

CAWD Portfolio

Standard & Poor's 500 Index

13.17
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5 Year
12.94

13.99

10 Year
11.22

14.19

RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

ALPHA:
A measure of risk-adjusted returns. An Alpha of 0 indicates a return proportionate to the degree of
risk taken. A positive Alpha indicates a return generated in excess of the degree of risk taken.

CAWD Portfolio

3 Year
4.06
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5 Year
2.85

10 Year
1.38

STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

CAWD Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Electricity Use Update

RECOMMENDATION
Receive Report- Informational only; no action required.
DISCUSSION
The following abbreviations are used in this report:
• kW – Kilowatt – an instantaneous measure of electrical power
• kwh–kilowatt-hour a measure of electrical power used in one hour
• kwh/month – electrical power used for all hours in a month
• Hp – Horsepower – a measure of mechanical power (comparable to kW)
Electricity Usage
This report is a 6-month recurring update on ongoing electricity usage reduction efforts
at the WWTP.
The last report in June 2020 showed that electricity use had been reduced by 10% (to levels
equal to electricity use prior to Phase 1). The 10% decrease was the result of taking
Digester No. 1 offline in December 2019. There have been no additional reductions in
usage of electricity since the last report in June 2020 and consumption has remained
steady. However, the Cogen system was put back online in July 2020 and the system is
producing consistently higher levels of electricity thanks to improvements to the system
controls and the startup of the new 65 kW microturbine. The microturbines do not reduce
electricity use at the WWTP but they do reduce how much electricity we buy from PG&E.
Previous recommendations for reducing energy use at the WWTP discussed below were
provided in prior reports and remain unchanged.
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See attached Figure 1 - Historical Power Usage with Pre-Phase 1 Baseline
Further Reductions in Electricity Usage
The Phase 1 WWTP Rehabilitation Project included a new blower that is 15% more
efficient and therefore it was assumed that the total electricity usage at the CAWD WWTP
would be about 10,000 kw/hr-month less after that project. However, several conditions
have delayed the anticipated baseline reduction in electricity usage after Phase 1. The
recommended remedies are discussed below and summarized in Table 1.
1. Turn Off Mixed Liquor Return (MLR) Pumps (Operational Modification) - The MLR
Pumps were not in operation for many years before Phase 1 and were therefore
not contributing to power use in the Pre-Phase 1 baseline usage data. These pumps
are located in the aeration basins and were turned on by Operations near the end
of the Phase 1 project in 2017 in an effort to optimize aeration basin performance.
The electricity usage of these pumps is significant as they recirculate between 3 to
6 million gallons per day (MGD) of water within the aeration basins on a 24/7 basis.
The completion of the BioWin model in May 2020 indicated that these pumps have
no effect on aeration basin performance. Furthermore, the full-scale tests have not
proven a benefit. However, Plant Operations continues to seek a benefit associated
with these pumps and has decided to continue running them.
2. Plant Water (3W) Hydropneumatic Tank Control Failure (CIP Project /Maintenance
Activity) - Halfway through Phase 1 the 3W hydropneumatic tank control system
failed and was abandoned in favor of using the new backup pressure sustaining
valve installed for redundancy in Phase 1. This requires that a 25 Hp 3W pump be
run continuously (24/7) at full speed with a bleed valve for control. Previously this
system was running in an on/off operation and would only run about 40% of the
time. The now 24/7 operation has resulted in the 3W system consuming about
7,000 kwh/month more power than prior to the equipment failure. The issues with
the hydropneumatic tank and associated controls is planned to be addressed as
part of the electrical improvements in Project 18-01 (Elec/Mech Rehabilitation and
Sludge Holding Tank Project) as well as putting all of the 3W pumps on variable
frequency drives to further reduce power consumption.
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Table 1: Summary of Further Estimated Savings
Action Item
1. Turn Off MLR Pumps

Estimated Savings
7,000 to 15,000 kwh/month

2. Install new pump controls and variable
frequency drives in pending CIP project
#18-01
Total:

7,000 kwh/month

Status
Pending Ops
Tests
Pending Project
#18-01

14,000 to 22,000
kwh/month

In conclusion, there are two pending items shown in Table 1 that will further reduce
electricity usage at the CAWD WWTP by about 14,000 to 22,000 kwh/month, which
would be a further reduction in electricity use on the order of about 10%.
Microturbine Improvements
As part of Project #18-11 - Microturbine Integration Project, multiple system
improvements have been implemented over the past year associated with the
microturbine cogeneration system. The newly improved system was put online in MidJuly 2020. The new 65 kW microturbine is online. Other critical improvements that were
implemented include: a new gas chiller, new exhaust ducting, and a new Supervisory
Control Data Acquisition (SCADA) and PLC control system. The new system successfully
handles peak fluctuations in digester biogas production and is now capable of using 100%
of the gas from the digester.
Currently CAWD is producing enough biogas to generate about 27,000 kwh/month of
electricity which is an average of about 38 kW continuous. This covers about 15% of the
total CAWD Secondary WWTP power usage.
New PG&E Time-of-Use Periods and Rate Changes
Another development on the energy front is that PG&E Time-of-Use rate plans are
changing. The growth of solar energy on the grid has shifted peak demand times from
mornings/afternoons to evenings when the solar generation facilities are no longer
producing power. Prior Time-of-Use rates had the peak and partial peak during normal
CAWD working hours. Now peak demand times occur primarily after 4 PM. This change
is beneficial to CAWD as typically our highest flows are in the late morning. In addition,
manual operation of equipment during the day yields higher electricity use during
daytime work hours.
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Although time-of-use periods are shifting (which is beneficial to CAWD), PG&E rates
will likely continue to increase moderately year over year. Preliminary information
indicates that PG&E rates will increase 4.2% for CAWD in 2021. It remains to be seen how
much the Time-of-Use time change will benefit CAWD electricity costs. Nevertheless, it
is positive that CAWD peak energy usage is now during off-peak periods thanks to
higher levels of solar energy production in California. Figure 2 below shows the new
Time-of-Use structure.
Figure 2 – New PG&E Time-of-Use Rate Structure

Attachment:
• Figure 1 – Historical Power Usage with Pre-Phase 1 Baseline
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Figure 1 – Historical Power Usage with Pre-Phase 1 Baseline
260,000
21 months after Phase 1
Average (197,942 kwh/month)

29 months during Phase 1
Average (198,026 kwh/month)

250,000
240,000

12 months since Digester #1 Taken Down
Average (178,615 kwh/month)

230,000
220,000
210,000

36 months before Phase 1
Average (178,426 kwh/month)

200,000
180,000
170,000
160,000
150,000
140,000
130,000
120,000
110,000
100,000
90,000
80,000
70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000

Month
Blower Meter (kwh/month)

Secondary Meter (kwh/month)

327

COGEN Meter kwh/month

Dec‐20

Oct‐20

Aug‐20

Jun‐20

Apr‐20

Feb‐20

Dec‐19

Oct‐19

Aug‐19

Jun‐19

Apr‐19

Feb‐19

Dec‐18

Oct‐18

Aug‐18

Jun‐18

Apr‐18

Feb‐18

Dec‐17

Oct‐17

Aug‐17

Jun‐17

Apr‐17

Feb‐17

Dec‐16

Oct‐16

Aug‐16

Jun‐16

Apr‐16

Feb‐16

Dec‐15

Oct‐15

Aug‐15

Jun‐15

Apr‐15

Feb‐15

Dec‐14

Oct‐14

Aug‐14

Jun‐14

Apr‐14

Feb‐14

Dec‐13

Oct‐13

Aug‐13

Jun‐13

Apr‐13

Feb‐13

Dec‐12

‐
Oct‐12

kilowatt hours per month (kwh/month)

190,000

Staff Report
TO:

Board of Directors

FROM:

Domine Barringer, Board Secretary

DATE:

January 28, 2021

SUBJECT:

Form 700 Statement of Economic Interest FY2020-2021
Timeline Submission

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board of Directors and all principal officers who are filing
Form 700 submit the final documents into the administration office on or before March
15, 2021. The filing deadline for Form 700 into Clerk of the Board for Monterey County
is April 1st, 2021. Having the submission completed in advance allows time for any
corrections that are needed prior to the April 1st deadline.
Copies of the prior year Form 700 and the current Form 700 have been provided under
separate cover.
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Carmel Area Wastewater District

P.O. Box 221428 Carmel California 93922  (831) 624-1248  FAX (831) 624-0811
Board of Directors
Barbara Buikema
General Manager
Edward Waggoner
Operations Superintendent
Robert R. Wellington
Legal Counsel

Gregory D'Ambrosio
Michael K. Rachel
Robert Siegfried
Charlotte F. Townsend
Kennedy White

ATTENDANCE AT PBCSD BOARD MEETINGS FOR 2021
It is important for at least one CAWD Board Member to attend the Pebble Beach
Community Services District's regular Board Meetings, held the final Friday of every
month at 9:30a.m., and if possible, any special meetings during the assignment period,
with usual compensation.
Members may provide an oral report at the next CAWD Board M eeting which follows
their attendance at the PBCSD meeting.
Assignments are for a period of one month. It is the responsibility of the assigned
Member to get a substitute if the Member cannot attend.
January 2021

Charlotte Townsend

February 2021

Ken White

March 2021

Greg D’Ambrosio

April 2021

Mike Rachel

May 2021

Bob Siegfried

June 2021

Charlotte Townsend

July 2021

Ken White

August 2021

Greg D’Ambrosio

September 2021

Mike Rachel

October 2021

Bob Siegfried

November 2021

No Meeting

December 2021

Charlotte Townsend
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Staff Report
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Barbara Buikema, General Manager

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Naval Postgraduate School Internship Project

RECOMMENDATION
This report is informational only.

DISCUSSION
An oral report was given on this topic at the regular September 24, 2020 Board meeting.
Since that date staff was asked to provide a copy of the student reports.
To recap, the District agreed to participate with Dr. Mitchell Friedman at the Graduate
School of Defense Management, Naval Postgraduate School in the course “Managing for
Organizational Effectiveness”. This was during the summer quarter of 2020 and CAWD
was assigned to a student group (Team Alpha) for their course project. The class was
intended to prepare students to analyze, understand, and influence organizations. The
student group acted as a consultant and utilized course concepts to identify, analyze, and
develop a plan to address a key problem the organization may face.
The student deliverables are the attached executive summary and a Zoom presentation to
the class.
FISCAL IMPACT
None
Attachments
1.
Team Alpha – Team Organizational Consulting Report
2.
Team Alpha Organization Consulting PowerPoint presentation
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CARMEL AREA
WASTEWATER DISTRICT
GB3010
TEAM ALPHA

Team organizational consulting report

Caldwell, Gabriel (LCDR)Barrett, Dennis (LT)Cho, Judith
(LT)Cohen, Benjamin (1stLT)
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Organizational Structure:
Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) is a relatively flat organization with a Board of
Directors at the top who broadly oversee the organization’s operations. Below the Board is the
General Manager, Barbara Buikema. Barbara’s responsibilities include the daily management of
the organization’s infrastructure, sustainability, and long-term planning. She has five
superintendents

who

make

up

her

“management

team.”

These

superintendents are

departmentalized and manage the day-to-day operations of their respective departments while
acting as intermediaries between Barbara and the ground level employees. The superintendents
include Rachel Lather, the Principal Engineer; Patrick Treanor, the Plant Engineer; Ed Waggoner,
the Operations Superintendent; Chris Foley, the Maintenance Superintendent; and Daryl Lauer the
Collections Superintendent. Barbara also has a principal accountant and two administrative
specialist who report to her for all administrative and financial matters. Finally, there are, in total,
ten employees who fall under the Maintenance Superintendent, the Operations Superintendent,
and the Collections Superintendent.
CAWD Project Methodology/Research:
We began our research by conducting an interview with the CAWD General Manager,
Barbara Buikema, and her two administrative assistants. The discussion was cordial, and Barbara
was forthcoming and direct. From there we received several pieces of documentation which would
help us form our recommendations and allow for a transparent picture of the organization.
Two particular

documents that

were noted

as

most

useful in

our research

were the

results of their employee surveys conducted in 2011 and 2017. We were able to grasp that many
of the company’s employees were dissatisfied with the organization’s leadership and culture.
Further discussion with Barbara revealed that she was hired, in part, to correct the issues brought
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up in the 2011 survey. She began her work at CAWD by directly attacking the largest concerns
with an eye on re-shaping the organizations culture. The result of her efforts were captured in a
2017 follow-up survey that showed that many employees were much happier with management
and the company’s culture. While this was a positive shift, it was clear that there were still areas
of concern amongst the staff in regard to performance evaluations, leadership development, and
the company’s long-term strategic goals, to name a few. This was supported by some of the other
documentation that we were able to access, such as minutes from Board of Director meetings,
specifically those regarding strategy. These were most revealing in their lack of clarity in
communicating the organization’s strategic goals and future in a way that can be easily translated
and applied to the employee’s duties.
Research Results Summary:
As previously stated, the information that we were able to gather helped guide our survey and
interview question development. We used our survey questions to gauge employee motivation,
employee perception of their manager’s emotional intelligence, interdepartmental cohesion, and
employee perceptions of the value of their inputs. We received a statistically significant number
of responses that we believe was a sufficiently representative sample (20 of the 27 employees
responded to the survey.) Many of the results were positive, as seen below:

•

Supervisor’s emotional intelligence: 80% positive; 5% negative; 15% positive with a

qualifier “My Supervisor A+… but management team C-.”
•

Employee motivation: 70% positive; 25% negative; 5% positive with a qualifier for

example, “I do try to produce at a high level … but I do not feel that the district will provide
me with an increased paygrade, promotion, etc.”
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•

Employee feedback opportunities: 80% positive; 5% negative; 15% positive with

qualifier such as “Good, but needs to be done in a more timely manner.”
•

Interdepartmental cohesion: 85% positive; 5% negative; 10% positive with a

qualifier such as “Yes but … safety and operations is not always cohesive.”

What stood out most was the relatively low employee motivation and those who gave a reply with
a qualifier. Through both the survey and personal interviews, we also found that interdepartmental cohesion was an area of concern across the board.
We decided to personally interview Barbara’s “management team.” We used the questions to
elicit more qualitative feedback from those employees who act as the “bridge” between the
executive management team (Barbara and the BOD) and the rest of the employees. The questions
focused on their understanding of emotional intelligence, their perspective on how the culture has
changed over the years, their perspective on the problems that were discovered in 2011, and interdepartmental cohesion. We also asked about their perception of the evaluation process and their
ability to develop their own teams and foster a positive culture within that team.
A resounding positive takeaway from the interviews was the evidence of significant improvement
since the 2011 survey. However, we found that there are points of concern in regards to interdepartmental communication, trust between employees and management, and the organizations
performance feedback system.
In the summer of 2017, CAWD employed the Consulting Services International Human
Resources Group to conduct an employee survey and interviews. This was a follow up
to the survey previously conducted in 2011. The purpose of the survey was to:
- Measure employee’s perception of their work environment.
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- Identify areas of strength and areas for improvement.
- Identify job satisfaction levels.
- Identify organizational structural issues.
The survey also offered an opportunity to employees to provide their own comments. Findings
were that over half of the employees provided comments. That was a significant increase from the
previous survey. The analysis by CSI provided the following upon conclusion of the 2017 survey:
“As you can see with the results in the 2017 Employee Survey there has been
some back sliding in some areas and improvement in others. Our belief is that
some of these discouraging results are directly related to the employment of
the Maintenance Superintendent and how he treated those that reported to
him and others. We know there are two sides to every story. Without hearing
the other side, we must make our assumptions with the information that we
have and move forward. The lack of appropriate response from the General
Manager and the lack of protection that was provided was brought up by
many. The General Manager should have been tuned into what was
happening and investigated. When asked the General Manager stated that she
was unaware of the extent of the problem and certainly would have responded
accordingly had she been aware.
The current superintendents seem to have positive, supportive relationships
and are building trust within and outside of their teams. It will take time to
rebuild that trust with the General Manager.
There is a lot of work to be done. Relationships need to heal and the trust
needs to be gained. The General Manager is aware that she plays a crucial
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role in this rebuilding. We have seen positive results after the 2011 survey
results. We are confident that with some time and attention the results will
greatly improve.”
Team Alpha utilized the results of this survey to provide a baseline for the state of CAWD in 2017,
and to follow up on identified areas requiring improvement.
What They’re Doing Well:
There were certain aspects of the current operational culture that we find to be effective
or improving, and believe should be highlighted in this report. There is an upward trend and
momentum behind strengthening a sense of teamwork and team building. We heard from
employees about the vast improvement in this particular aspect and the organization’s concerted
effort in sustaining progress, while also striving to keep the momentum going. Actions such as
dismantling segregating silos and fostering an environment of competence has helped bring the
district together and has improved, not only professional interactions, but social ones as well. The
team gets the opportunity to build rapport, trust, and reliance amongst each other, which only
improves communication and understanding. The most impressive aspect of their teambuilding
efforts was their conducting of the NeuroColor personality test of all employees. This gave every
employee the opportunity to better understand their co-workers as well as themselves. This
understanding is important in effective communication and conflict resolution. Teamwork is the
very foundation of effective interdependency. In a community as small as CAWD, it is crucial in
mission accomplishment.
Another positive aspect we’d like to highlight is democratized decision making. Employee
involvement, especially when direction pertains specifically to them, creates more trust and buy in
from all levels. It is a tool leaders and managers can use to give their employees a voice.
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Ultimately, the utilitarian approach is successful when considering directives and overarching
policy such as the employee benefits package. We think it is important to give everyone an
opportunity to be heard. This concept is only heightened by good communication within the
organization and an understanding of the bigger picture. Democratized decision making is also
useful in an organization like CAWD, whose organization appears to be very top heavy. In such
an organization, where there are many leaders and managers, and a relatively small number of
lower employees, collaboration is key. In all aspects of work, you have competing priorities,
personalities, and skill sets. More often than not, a meeting of the minds is required in order to
proceed in the best possible way.
CAWD offers their employees great education benefits for those wishing to expand their
educational level and learning. Educational Assistance is provided by CAWD up to $5,250.00 per
year. CAWD offers these benefits to qualified and interested, regular, full-time employees.
CAWD also encourages their employees to advance in their job-related skills and education
through the District’s training reimbursement program. They pay for successful certifications
needed to hold certain CAWD positions, as well as additional certifications for cross training. The
state of California Water Board or Engineering Licensing are mandatory in order to operate or
design treatment facilities. Additionally, CAWD pays for employees to attend local as well as
distant conferences, work courses,

and

or professionally

enhancing

meetings.

Employees who travel to any one of the aforementioned opportunities receive their full regular
pay and travel expense included with some limitations on dollar amount. All these educational
benefits are “win-win” for both the employees and the company. The employee gets the
education, training, and required skillsets needed for professional growth. Development within the
organization can lead to higher positions and pay raises. At the same time, the company benefits
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by having a well-trained and educated employee, gaining experience, and honing their skills.
They are able to capitalize on them within the organization to achieve superior results. These
education benefits are also laid out in the CAWD employee handbook.
Currently, CAWD does not have a formalized internal recognition program in place to
recognize an employee of the quarter or employee of the year. However, the General Manager
Barbra Buikema stated that they do participate in the local Monterey Bay Section California Water
Environment Association (CWEA) program. Supervisors nominate their employees to compete
against other local wastewater agencies surrounding Monterey Bay from Santa Cruz down to
Carmel. Afterward, a nice dinner is held by CWEA to recognize the winners. Many CAWD staff
members attend the dinner in support of the recognition program. If the CAWD employee wins at
the local level, they are advanced to complete for a state level award. All winners also get
recognized at the following Board meeting, where they publicly announce the employee’s
achievement; winners are also recognized in a quarterly newsletter. CAWD employees have
had numerous wins over the years within their Operators, Maintenance, Lab and Collections line
of work. Two years ago, CAWD had an employee win for Collection Worker of the Year at the
state level. Currently, CAWD has one of their Collection Workers being recognized as Collection
worker of the Year for the Monterey Bay Section. Both are big achievements for the awardee and
the organization. This is an outstanding external recognition program, that encourages top
performance and appreciation at the local and state levels. It is important to recognize employees
within the organization for the job they do. It not only shows recognition and appreciation
but encourages others to excel and continue to perform. Even though CAWD does not have an
internal recognition program of their own CWEA is definitely a great way to recognize and reward
their employees. We would recommend also looking into the idea of a CAWD employee of the
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quarter/year recognition program if possible, to recognize employees on their achievements more
frequently with a signed letter of appreciation by the Board of Directors.
Production meetings are conducted biweekly with the Supervisors and GM. Information
discussed is of current and future work, projects, and issues. The Supervisors then filter
information to the line staff within their individual departments. Some superintendents have taken
upon themselves to conduct weekly meetings within their own staff. One superintendent in
particular made it a point to mention his open-door policy, for any concerns or issues needing
immediate attention, resolve, or clarification. Most supervisors communicate with their staff daily
and check up on them throughout the day, providing guidance and mentorship. We highly
encourage sustainment of the production meetings and any other sync meetings to keep
up with the proper flow of communications. It is a great way to ensure everyone is tracking on the
day to day requirements and sync understanding of current/future visions.
Challenges/Recommendations:
CAWD is currently using an annual evaluation form to provide formalized feedback to its
staff. It covers ten subjects for review and includes a final section that relates to goals accomplished
in the previous period and the goals set for the next period. Each subject is graded as either
“Exceeding Expectation”, “Meeting Expectation”, or “Needs Improvement”, and includes a short
description of what the section is supposed to evaluate. This form is completed by the manager or
superintendent

and

then debriefed

in person

to

the

employee.

A

common

theme throughout speaking to the superintendents and the employee survey results was that the
annual performance evaluation is usually not given in a timely manner. The management team was
insistent that they gave continuous and regular feedback to their teams throughout the year and the
evaluation was more of a formality and less of a tool. Because of the current hierarchy in the
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organization, the General Manager is responsible for writing more of these evaluations that any
other person on the staff. In reviewing the evaluation process, there were several opportunities that
could be leveraged by CAWD to further improve the efficiency of the system and provide
documented and balanced feedback. An evaluation can be a very powerful tool that does more
than provide an “employees standing” and be the basis of any positive or negative counseling.
Conducting a formalized evaluation every six months will encourage more consistent record
keeping on not only employee performance but also qualifications, training, and goals. To this end,
it is recommended that the evaluation be evolved into a three-step process. It begins with the
employees rating themselves in the ten existing categories and then completing a “brag sheet”
about themselves. This “brag sheet” can focus on large scale accomplishments, like next level
training accomplished, substituting into a more senior position, or creatively solving an unexpected
situation that saved the district money or innovated a new solution. Next, the employees would
offer feedback on how their direct supervisor is performing. These categories would need to be
discussed and implemented by CAWD staff, but some suggestions are:
•

Communication style

•

Consistency in management/leadership style

•

Approachability

•

Coachability

•

Accountability

•

Problem-solving

•

Training Support

•

Mentoring
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Once the employee has finished the first step and submitted their report in an online format,
it goes to their manager. The manager can then review the self-evaluation and their own manager
evaluation of said employee. The manager can then evaluate the employee on the same scale and
offer their comments. Once the form is completed by the manager, it is now viewable by both the
employee and the manager. The evaluation debrief should occur shortly thereafter and should
always be conducted in person. If the management team continues their fantastic track-record of
constantly engaging with and interacting their teams, then there should be few to no “surprises” in
the evaluation feedback, meaning that neither party should be caught completely unaware by what
is written. Our recommendation encourages a 360-feedback loop that does not exist in the current,
formalized structure. A formal evaluation should not be only top-down feedback and it is important
to note that this is not the impression that CAWD gives regarding its evaluation process. Ensuring
that these evaluations never become a “top down feedback only” tool is critical in avoiding a return
to the 2011 mentality of the district. When the two parties come together for the in-person
evaluation, both now have an opportunity to ask specific questions and to seek clarification. A
change in the evaluation system may encourage a continuous awareness of the intra-personal skills
necessary to work as part of the team, even though much of CAWD does interact on a daily basis.
By allowing the employees to brag about themselves, there may be more opportunities for the
managers to leverage those successes to award employees or make them more competitive for any
regional or municipal awards. But most importantly, a “brag sheet” encourages employees to be
rightfully proud of their accomplishments and they contributions to the organization. While
monetary awards are the easiest and most commonly used motivator, there is a great deal
of strength and loyalty that is built from encouraging people to be proud of what they have done
and to place some responsibility on them for identifying those achievements. CAWD has
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demonstrated that they are consistently taking long-range views of itself. A bi-annual review can
reinforce these efforts by asking employees what their plans are for anywhere between one to five
years down the road. If the evaluation were to include a section that asks employees to not only
set short-term and long-term goals but to also rate their likelihood to stay with the organization,
CAWD can begin to forecast personnel. This forecasting can extend to budgeting, training,
promotion, transition and employee morale, among others.
There are already numerous systems currently in use with CAWD that could be rapidly exploited
for a digital evaluation system and most are nested within Microsoft 365, which is already in
widespread use across the district. There would be no need to find and pay for a new system, and
even the existing evaluation form could be easily modified to accommodate the proposed three
stage process. But it is important to keep records that cannot be manipulated or altered after they
are submitted and all key parties should have access to them at any given time for reference down
the road. Finally, the evaluation form should be considered a “living” document. The last time the
current evaluation form was apparently adjusted was 2016. Four years is simply too long. At a
minimum, the form should be reviewed with each Human Resources report, but preferably it is
reviewed by an internal “joint” task group. One that is comprised of employees and leaders at all
levels. If it is a tool to benefit the entire organization, then representation from all levels should be
present. And it prevents yet another task from falling solely on the shoulders of the general
manager.
The other major recommendation is the creation of an Employee Replacement/Succession
Plan. The plan would be a process for identifying and developing personnel in order to
replace existing personnel once they leave the organization permanently or require temporary
substitution. By having this forward thinking plan in place, the organization would ensure
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continuity and minimally interrupted service and operation. This plan would require identifying
the

key

positions and

developing

personnel,

in

house

and

over

time,

to have adequate qualifications and advanced skillsets in order to perform in said position. We
believe that it is good to hire from within when possible. Not only does it add value to the
company in terms of continuity, but it also adds value to employees through growth, development,
and dependability within the organization. CAWD’s part time Human Resources is a great fit for
assisting

with

replacement/succession

planning. Currently,

CAWD only

has one identified sucession plan, that of the General Manager. The current GM is planning on
retiring in the next two years. In response to this upcoming change, she was required to take time
off work in order to allow for three potential candidates for her position to fill the GM role while
she was out of office. As Acting GM, those candidates were able to exercise their leadership and
skill on a day to day basis. In that time, the organization got to see how well they performed in the
GM position and used it as a tool to help determine who will be the best fit for the job. The current
GM provides continual mentorship and guidance to the three potential candidates and gives them
the opportunity to do things that they would not normally do in their current positions, giving them
the opportunity to gain upper level managerial experience. Each candidate was also given an
additional 5% payroll stipend for the time they spent as Acting GM. Similar to the process of
hiring from within to replace the current GM, we recommend that CAWD develop
a replacement/succession plan for all key roles within the organization.

Barriers to Change:
As to be expected by any well-established organization, there are a few barriers to change
that may exist when implementing any new institutionalized program or policy. The utilitarian
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approach does not always satisfy every member of a body to their fullest extent, however,
concessions are made in order to serve the group in the best possible way. It is natural to reject
change, especially when one does not particularly agree with it or they find it unnecessary. The
best way to deal with organizational change is for the enforcers to be transparent and
communicative and for the masses to keep the larger picture in mind. Another barrier to change is
the level of task saturation. In order to implement and experience effective change, the change
initiative must be kept in the forefront of day to day decision making and kept high on the list of
priorities. One specific example of this, as discovered through our interviews and survey, is the
onset and sustainment of the “COVID mindset.” It is possible to implement new initiatives in a
virtual way. We received a lot of feedback on the desire to start things in person, however, in the
current global environment, that is not a feasible plan. Instead of pressing the pause button on
change, we encourage CAWD to find innovative ways to reach their people in a virtual way.
Lastly, we would like to address the current hierarchy within the organization. As stated before, it
is a small organization with only 27 employees. Of those 27 employees, 9 people are considered
to hold supervisory or managerial roles, not to include the Board of Directors. In the current
structure, the organization appears to be considerably top heavy. This has been identified by
several employees to be a source of conflict, especially with the highly inter-dependent nature of
the work. On top of that, Barbara, the General Manager, carries the majority of the managerial
workload. Several supervisors described her role as a “burn out job.” It is infinitely more difficult
to distribute ownership in the current hierarchical structure. Ownership needs to be spread out to
every single employee in order for positive change to be quick and effective. Perhaps
a reevaluation of the current structure would aid in the positive culture CAWD has worked so
diligently to achieve.
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In summary, CAWD proves to be an exemplary organization. While every working
organization has their fair share of issues, it is our pleasure to say how wonderful it was to work
with such open and receptive people throughout the project. Our recommendations are given to
only enhance the momentum already seen in the organization.
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CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER
DISTRICT
MANAGING FOR ORGANIZATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS: TEAM ALPHA
LCDR CALDWELL, LT AULIVELD, LT BARRETT, LT CHO, 1STLT COHEN
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
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RESEARCH METHODOLOGY
• INITIAL INTERVIEW WITH GM
• REVIEWED CAWD SOURCE DOCUMENTATION
•

HR CONSULTING ASSESSMENTS 2011 - 2017

•

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDAS AND MINUTES

•

EMPLOYEE EVALUATION TEMPLATE

• DEVELOPED EMPLOYEE SURVEY
• DEVELOPED INTERVIEW QUESTIONS
• INTERVIEW SUPERINTENDENTS AND ADDITIONAL "MANAGEMENT" PERSONNEL
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2017 SURVEY FINDINGS
• SUPERINTENDENTS AND PRINCIPLE ENGINEER SHOULD MEET AS A GROUP AND INDIVIDUALLY WITH
THE GM ON A WEEKLY BASIS
• ALL STAFF GATHERING AT LEAST ONCE A QUARTER
• UPDATE AND DISTRIBUTE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK
• PERFORMANCE REVIEWS MUST BE DONE ONCE A YEAR MINIMUM AND IN A TIMELY FASHION
• INVEST IN PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT TO TRAIN NEW MANAGEMENT
• CONTINUE EMPLOYEE FUNCTIONS (BBQS, HOLIDAY CELEBRATIONS) TO LIFT MORALE
• GM CONTINUE COMMUNICATION IMPROVEMENT AND APPROACHABILITY
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EMPLOYEE SURVEY RESPONSES
• SUPERVISOR'S EMOTIONAL INTELLIGENCE: POSITIVE 80%; NEGATIVE 5%
• POSITIVE W/QUALIFIER 15%

• EMPLOYEE MOTIVATION: POSITIVE 70%; NEGATIVE 25%
• POSITIVE W/QUALIFIER 5%

• EMPLOYEE FEEDBACK OPPORTUNITIES: POSITIVE 80%; NEGATIVE 5%
• POSITIVE W/QUALIFIER 15%

• INTERDEPARTMENTAL COHESION: 85% POSITIVE; 5% NEGATIVE
• POSITIVE W/QUALIFIER 10%

• EMPLOYEE UNDERSTANDING OF ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE: 100% POSITIVE
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OPPORTUNITIES FOR SUSTAINMENT
• EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS
• RECOGNITION PROGRAM
• PRODUCTION MEETINGS
• TEAM BUILDING
• DEMOCRATIZED DECISION MAKING
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STRATEGIC PLANNING
WHAT

WHY

• PERSONNEL

• FUTURE MISSION PLANNING AND ALIGNMENT

• 3 / 5/ 10-YEAR PLAN

• INTERVAL GOAL SETTING
• PLAN OF ACTIONS AND MILESTONES
• TEAM UNDERSTANDING AND ENGAGEMENT OF
THE OVERALL MISSION
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TRANSITION AND SUCCESSION PLAN
WHAT

WHY
• ENSURE CONTINUITY OF SERVICES AND
PERSONNEL

• DEFINE “REPLACEMENT VS. SUCCESSION”
PLAN

• DON’T LOSE THE POSITIVE MOMENTUM
WHILE BEING READY TO ADAPT

• ASSESS INTERNAL VS. EXTERNAL HIRE
• HUMAN RESOURCES INVOLVEMENT

• VALUE ADDED TO EMPLOYEES AND WITH
THE EMPLOYEES

• EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT
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MIDTERM EVALUATION
WHAT

WHY

• 3 PHASE EVALUATION

• 360 FEEDBACK LOOP

• EMPLOYEE

• EMPLOYEE "BRAG SHEET"

• MANAGER

• INTRA-PERSONAL SKILLS

• MEET

• CONSISTENCY

• GOAL SETTING

• FORECASTING/PLANNING
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IMPLEMENTING CHANGE
BARRIERS OR OBSTACLES

POTENTIAL SOLUTIONS

• RESISTANCE TO INSTITUTIONAL CHANGE

• SEA LEVEL RISING RELOCATION

• TASK SATURATION

• TIME MANAGEMENT

• COVID MINDSET

• DIRECT AND CONCISE LANGUAGE

• CURRENT HIERARCHY

• CONSIDER A DEPUTY DIRECTOR POSITION
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QUESTIONS?
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STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Barbara Buikema, General Manager

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Special District Association Meeting January 19, 2021

DISCUSSION
The Special Districts Association of Monterey County (SDA) met virtually on January 19,
2021.
The first speaker for the evening was George Riley, a member of the Monterey One Water
Board and a local activist. His topic was public banking or a fully chartered bank that is
owned by a public entity and lending is its focus, not customer service. The purpose of
public banks is to provide funding for public infrastructure and housing at low interest
rates, and to respond to state and local financial woes by providing low-interest loans.
How it works? Community funds and assets are deposited in the public bank. California
municipalities and special districts can deposit their funds in a public bank instead of
private bank. Low interest rates are charged with all profits returned to the community.
The Public Bank acts as a “mini-Fed” for the region, assisting local banks and guaranteeing
loans. The Public Bank concept is that it is self-funding and self-sustaining; therefore, it
does not imperil state funds or tax dollars. California legalized public banking in 2019
when the governor signed the Public Bank Act, or AB 857 which allows city and county
governments to create or sponsor public banks. The purpose of Mr. Riley’s presentation
was to introduce the topic to the Monterey County SDA members and to the assorted
guests who expressed an interest.
The second speaker for the evening was Mark Stone, Assembly member District 29.
Opening the meeting he acknowledged it has been an interesting year. In his words,
Sacramento right now is reminiscent of an “armed camp” for the inauguration, but the
pandemic, fires, and politics are just the few of the challenges California has faced this past
year. Sacramento is struggling to set a recovery in motion. There are serious issues with
housing affordability and tenant evictions.
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While a considerable amount of money is devoted towards homelessness, he said right
now they area trying to “hold the line” until the pandemic is resolved, and people can get
back to work. There were several comments regarding the price of housing in California.
Mr. Stone also spoke of the number of homes that were burned during this past year’s fires
and how they can be rebuilt more thoughtfully for the future.
Questions about the COVID-19 vaccine clarified that they are coming straight to the
County not through the state. Mary Adams interjected to further clarify that they are going
straight to providers such as Community Hospital and not through the County. Mr. Stone
indicated that larger urban counties are further along in vaccination than Monterey County
because they have received more vaccine. Rural counties have struggled, but they are
working to increase amounts sent to rural areas like Monterey County.
Finally, there was some discussion about Broadband access which Mr. Stone supports
heartily. Mr. Stone indicated that the large incumbent providers make it look like it is well
covered. It is not; and in the past there has not been legislative support. However, with the
pandemic it has shined a light on the disparities so he thinks there will be another run at
the issue and it will be more successful.
Kate McKenna, Executive Director of the Local Agency Formation Commission of
Monterey County (LAFCO) gave an update on activities at LAFCO. She highlighted that
LAFCO is working on an annexation for Carmel Area Wastewater District.
The next SDA meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, April 20 at 6:00 p.m. either virtually or at
Bayonet and Black Horse Golf Course Clubhouse in Seaside.
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STAFF REPORT
To:

Board of Directors

From:

Barbara Buikema, General Manager

Date:

January 28, 2021

Subject:

Selection of Topics for CAWD Spring 2021
Newsletter

DISCUSSION
Staff is requesting Board input for topics to the District’s Spring 2021 newsletter. The
Spring issue is a four-page issue and includes the annual Prop 218 notice.
Suggested topics for the upcoming issue include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Undergrounding of Outfall pipeline
Long term plans for rehabilitation of Collection System
Safety spotlight
Microorganism of the Month
Budget graphs
Sidebar – if you see something, say something. Call CAWD first.
Disposal of flushable wipes in the trash, not the toilet
If we can come to agreement on a rate rebate – a story detailing requirements and
eligibility.
COVID-19 precautionary measures at Admin and Plant
BioBot reporting
Employee Spotlight – new employee Alex Quintero

FISCAL IMPACT
The 2020-21 Budget provides $32,100 for two newsletters and a Prop 218 Notice – this
includes consultant services for design and writing, printing, postage, and delivery.
The Spring 2021 issue is the second of the two issues planned and is included in the
approved newsletter budget. Fiscal Year to date expenditures for newsletter
preparation are $10,492.56.
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